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APPLICATION FOR TAX EXEMPTION/ABATEMENT
OF

Grant Avenue 319,LLC

In compliance with Executive Order 02-003 of the Mayor of City of Jersey City, the
Applicant herewith submits the following inormation in support of its application for a
Five Year Tax Exemption under and pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:21-1et seq.

Applicant: Grant Avenue 319, LLC
6317 AvenueN
Brooklyn, NY 11234

Project: Grant Avenue West
(Six Story Multifamy Buildig)
319 Grant Avenue
Jersey City, NewJersey
Block 1297.5, Lot 66, 67, 68, 69.A (to be
changed and designated Lot 75)

The Grant Avenue West multifamly building is referred to herein as the "Project".



LIST OF EXHITS

A.

B.

C.

D.

E. and E-1

F.

G.

H.

Description of Propert;

Cost of Completed Project;

Estimated Tax Computation;

Muncipal Land Use Approvals;

DiSclosure Statement and Certificate of Formation;

Certification of Compliance with State and Local Laws;

Certification of Diligent Inqui;

Proposed Tax Agreement;



1. Identification of the Propert:

The Property is located at 319 F Grant Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey and is more
paricularly known as Block 1297.5, Lot 66,67,68, 69.A, on the offcial tax map of
the City of Jersey City, State of New Jersey. The Propert is more paricularly
described on Exhbit A attached hereto and made a par hereof.

2. General Statement of the Nature otthe Project:

The Project was constrcted on a lot area of 10,750 square feet and is located in the
West Side Avenue Redevelopment Plan. The Gross square footage on the buiding is.
45,433 SF over six (6) stories. The land was purchased Januar 31,2008 and the
City Council approved the Final Site plans in a resolution dated June 24, 2008.
Permts were issued on November 18,2008 to begin constrction. The constrction

was completed on Apri 15, 2011 and the Project was issued its final certificate of
occupancy. The site is located on a dead end street and is diectly across from a hub
of transportation for the light rai system in Jersey City.

3. Term of Abatement:

The Applicant requests that the term of the exemption be for five (5) years beging
the date of completion of the project on April 15,2011 (the "Exemption Commence-
ment Date") and ending on the date that is one day prior to the fift'anversar of

the Exemption- Commencement Date.

4. Improvement that was Constructed:

The Project was originally approved as a condomium building, includig twenty-
seven (27) aparments and twenty-two (22) indoor parkig spaces. The aparents
include seven (7) one-bedroom unts on the first floor and twenty (20) two-bedroom
unts above the first floor. Concrete constrction was used to build the six (6) stories.

Due to the depressed economic real estate market conditions, the Project's ownership
changed the project late in 2010,' after substantial constrction, to one of rental as
replacement to the original. condomium buildig plans. Rentals are offered at the
prevailig market price that has enabled the buildig to be fuly occupied. However,
the Project has to obtain the five year real estate tax abatement in order to allow for
the revenue in. five years to be sufcient to meet the building's permanent mortgage
debt service, real propert tax, and operating expense requirements.

5. Total Cost of the Project:

The constrction cost of the pröject, as indicated on Exhbit B, incllides $6,349,857
paid to contractors and subcontractors. This amount excludes the cost of the land,
soft costs, construction lo~ interest and cost of the constrction loan.



6. Financing Structure:

The Project is financed by capital provided by the members of Grant
Avenue 319, LLC and, the construction loan funds from the Magyar Bank,
New Bruswick, N.J. On May 13, 2011, Grant Avenue 319, LLC received
approval from Northfield Ban of the Commerical Mortgage for the project.

7. Exemption Requested:

The Applicant seeks a five (5) year tax exemption under and pursuant to
N.J.S.A 40A:21-1 et seq. (The "Five Year Exemption and Abatement
Law") for the Multi-family rental Project. The Applicant requests that the
tax agreement be based on the following formula:

Project Taxes durg the Term of Exemption

Year One
Year Two $10,195
Year Three $20,384
Year Four $30,580

Year Five $40,769

Land Tax Only
20% real estate taxes on new improvements
40 % real estate taxes on new improvements
60% real estate taxes on new improvements
80% on real estate taxes on new improvements

Following the expiration of the term of the exemption, the Applicant will
pay full real estate taxes.

A fiscal plan for the management of the Project and a calculation and
breakdown of the aforementioned real estate taxes is set forth in EXhbit
~attched hereto.

Based on the above formula it is estimated that the Project will generate
real estate taxes payable to the City of Jersey City in the amount of
approxiately $166,508 during the term of the exemption.

8. Municipal Land Use Approvals:

On June 24, 2008, in a Resolution, the City Council approved the Final
Site Plans.



9. Real Estate Tax Assessments:

The total 2010 estimated real estate tax assessment for the Propert at which
The project is located was valued as follows; Land was assessed at $187,100
and the improvements were assessed at $738,300 for a Total assessment of
$925,400. Taxes are estimated using the curent (2010) tax rate of$69.03
per thousand of assessment. See Exhbit C for details.



10. Real Estate Tax Levied:

The total payment for muncipal real estate taxes for 2009 totaled $11,113.85. Refer to
Exhbit C for details of the tax on the propert.

11. Status of Municipal Taxes and Other Charges:

The Applicant is the owner of the Property known as Block 1297.5, Lot 66,67,68, and
69.Aon the offcial ta map of the City of Jersey City, County of Hudson, State of
New Jersey. To the best of the Applicant's knowledge and belief, all real estate taxes
and other assessments against the propert have been paid in ful The Applicant will

payor cause to be paid all real estate taxes or other assessments due on the propert to
be paid prior to the execution of the Exemption! Abatement Agreement.

12. Disclosure Statement and Certcate of Formation:

. A Disclosure Statement is attached hereto as Exhbit E. The Applicant is a Limted
Liability Company organzed under the laws of the State of New Jersey. A copy of the .
Certficate of Formation is attched hereto as par ofExhbitE-l.

13. Estiated Jobs Created:

The Applicant does not expect to have any employee~ at the projectnow or in the
futue. The rental of the aparents will be performed by unelated real estate

companes. Other servces provided to the building will be by outside vendors and/or
other non-related building services companes.

14. Compliance with State and Local Law:

A Certification by the Applicant tht the Project meets the requiements of the laws of .
The State of New Jersey and the City of Jersey City is attached hereto as Exhbit F.

15. Certcation of Truthfulness and Dilgent Inquir:

A Certification of the Applicant that all inormation contaied in the application is tre
and correct to the.best of its knowledge afer having made dilgent inquiy id attached
hereto as Exhbit G.

16. Tax Agreement:

The Proposed Tax Agreement for the Applicapt is attched hereto as Exhbit H.



17. Fee:

The fee for this application is $5,400 and submitted herewith.



Address:

EXHmITA

LEGAL DESCRITION

319 Grant Avenue
Jersey City, New Jersey
Block 1297.5, Lot 66,67,68, & 69.A (to
be known as lot 75) .

(SEE :MTES AN BOUNS DESCRITION ATTACHED)



File No: HUD-7659-08

SCHEDULE A-4

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ALL that tract or parcel of land and premises, situate, lying and being in the City of Jersey City,
County ofHu~son and State ofNe:"Jersey, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point in the southwesterly line of Grant Avenue, said point being distant
northwesterly 204.74 feet from the comerformed by the intersection of the said line of Grant
Avenue with the northwesterly line of West Side Avenue; thence ruing

1. SQuth 41 degrees 37 minutes 21 secon'ds West, 100.00 feet to a point; thence running

2. . Nortwesterly and parallel with Grant Avenue Nort 49 degrees 00 minutes OOseconds West,
1 07~50 feet to a point; thence running

3.' North 41.degrees 37 minutes 21 seconds East, 100.00 feet to a point on the aforesaid
. southwesterly sidel irie of Grant A venue, thence runIng

4. Southeasterly along said sid~line So)lth 49 degrees ob minutes 00 seconds East, 107.50 feet

to the point and place of Beginning. . .

The above premises is also known as Lots 66, 67, 68 and 69 in Block 3 and the westerly 7.50' of Lot
70 in Block 3 on "Map of BúiIdirig Lots onihe Line ofthe'Newark ánd New YprkRailroad, 20

. minutes from New York at West Bergen, "dated 1867 and filed in the Hudson CountY Register's
Offce on May 16,1867 as Map# 576.

Above Description is in accordance with a Survey prepared by Pronesii Surveying, Inc., P.Ls.,
daledJuly 10, 2006.

Note forInforñiation: Being known and desigirated as Tax Lot 66,67,68 &. 69.A in Block
1297.05.on the Tax Map of the City of Jersey.City, CountyofHudson,
State ofNew Jersey.

, Note for Information: Being commonly known as 312-325 Grant Avenue, Jersey City, NewJersey. .

LT National Title Services
(201) 610 - 9455

Old Republic National
Title Insurance Company

"



BA+A

Bodnar Architect & Associates
52 Long Hi Road
Long Valley, NJ 07853
(908) 879-8900
(908) 391-2255 cell
(908) 879-5985 fax

Certfication to:
Grant Avenue LLC
6317 AvenueN
Brooklyn, NY 11234

March 52011

RE: 319 Grant Avenue Jersey City NJ
Block1297.5 Lots 66,67,68,69A

The buidig is complete and has fial zonig and buidig 
reviews and approvals.

The gross square foota.ge on the buildig is 45,433 SF over 6 stories. The lot area is 10,750 square feet and
is locatèd in the wesfsiç1e avenue redevelopment plan.
The sitds 10cä1fid oiiadèad end street'andis diectly across from a main hub of transportation for the light
rail systëm ii Jersey Gitý. . .
The bujdig consists.òf27 aparents (20 two bedrooms unts and 7 one lJedroom unts).

The buidig.~hÌl aniidóor parkig faCi1Ìty has the abiltytoh()use 22 çats.
The blidig:is conscted of a poured concÌete strctue and has 

brick and stone veneer façade.

The aparents are seJfcontaiIed unts .thathave their own hèatigand coolig system as well as hot water
generation.
The blldig is also cop.tain severa1lie safety. elements that 

include sprîer systems, fie/smoke/ carbon

monoxidealar systems.
The buidiig.also has an elevator to accoDlodate a 

per son in a guey as well as an emergency backup

genetatorfør the elêvator.

The height of the 1;uidig is 67'-0" measured 
from grade to top of parapet:

The buidig is 97'-6'; wide by 75'-0" wide at the residential 
level which covers 68% of the lot area.

The fust floor dieIiionS are 97' -6" wide by 94' -0" and the lot coverage at ths floor is 86.5%.



BA+A . ')

Bodnar Architect & Associates
52 Long Hi Road
Long Valey, NJ 07853

(908) 879-8900
(908) 391-2255 cell
(908) 879-5985 fax

Grant Avenue LLC
6317 Avenue N
Brooklyn NY 11234

March 52011

RE: 319 Grant Avenue Jersey City NJ
BIock1297.5 Lots 66, 67, 68,69A

Proj ect data

The project know as 319 Grant A venue is a 27 unt Residential aparent buidig located in jersey City,

New j ersey. .
The gross squae footage on the buidig is 45,433 SF over 6 stories. The lot area is 10,750 squae feet and
lot is 107.5 feet wide by 100 feet deep. the proj ect was designed in accárdace with the wèst side avenue
redevelopment'plan.
The site is located on a dead end street and is diectly across :fom a mai hub of tranportation for the light
rail system in Jersey City.
The blldig co:Îists of27apaients(z,0 two bedrooms uits and 7 one. bedroom unts).
The bUndig has an indoor pårkig fac;WtYhas the abilty toJioûse 22 cars.
The buidigis coiltrcted:òfa pöuréël:Gpncrete strcte and has 'brick and stone veneer façade.
The aparents are self'coIitaèd unts thaJ have therr own heatigand' coolig system as well as hot watergeneråqoíi . .
The roo:tstrctue if a flat style modifiedToofig membrane 'system.
The buidigis also contams severalIiesafet)elements that iiclude sprier systems, fie/smoke/ carbon

monoxide aÜlrm'systems.
The buiding also has an elevator to accommodate a per son in a guey as . well as an emergency backup
generator for the elevator. .

The height of the buidig is 67'~0" measued from grade to top of parapet.
The buidig is 97' -6" wide by 75' -0" wide at the residential level which covers 68% of the lot area.
The ,fist floor dimensions are 97'-6" wide by 94'-0" and the lot coverage at ths floor is 86.5%.

The aparent square footages are as follows.
Unit201
Unit 202
Unit 203
Unit 204
Unit 205
Unit 206
Unit 207
\

950 sf 1 bedroom

860 sf I bèdroom

849 sf 1 bedroom

904 sf 1 bedroom

650 sf 1 bedroom

10 10 sf 1 bedroom
1100 sf 1 bedroom



BA+A

Unit tye at 319 Grant Avenue

Unit 301-401-501-601
Unit 302-402-502-602
Unit 303-403-503-603
Unit 304-404~504~604
Unit 305-405-505-605

1278 sf 2 bedroom
1340 sf 2 bedroom
1240 sf 2 bedroom
1300 sf 2 bedroom
1372 sf 2 bedroom



EXHffIT B

Estimated Cost of Project Construction

The Estimated Cost is calculated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A-2l-3G) as

follows:

. Cost (see note 1 beIQw):

./.'1
a. Direct 'Labor and Materials

(inclusive of Contractor's fees): $6,349,857.00

b. Architectual: 82,850.00

c. Engineeri~: 99,167.00

Estitated Cost: $6,531.874.00

Note 1- N.J.S.A. 40A:21-3G) states estiated "costs" does not include land costs, soft costs
(other than architectural and engineering costs), and financing costs. For the foregoing reason the
cost difers from the total pi:oject costs caIcuIated Ûnder'the Long Term Tax Exemption Law and
set out in the Financial Agreement.



EXHIT C

ESTIMTED TAX COMPUTATION,FOR YEAR 2011

See Attached Letter
From

Offce of the City Assessor
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
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EXHITn

ZONIG APPROVALS

(SEE ATTACHED)



RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING BOARD OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY
GRANTING FINAL MAJOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL

APPLICANT: GRANT AVENUE 319, LLC

FOR: FINAL MAJOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL

PROPERTY: 319-323 GRANT AVENUE
Block 1291.5, Lots 66, 67, 68 & 69A ,

CASE NO. P06-094.2

WHEREAS, an application having been made by Grant Avenue 319, LLC, for

the approval of its final major site plan originally approved by the Board on

January 9th, 2007, as amended on June 24th, 2008 and further amended on

December 15th, 2009 for the premises located at 319-323 Grant Avenue, .

designated as Lots 66,67,68 & 69A, in Block 1297.5, on the official tax maps for

the City of Jersey City, County of Hudson, State of New Jersey (the "Premises");

and

WHEREAS, the Premises is located within the boundaries of 
the West Side

Avenue Redevelopment Plan (Residential) District; and

WHEREAS, on January 9th, 2007 the Jersey City Planning Board (the "Board")

granted preliminary major site plan approval for the construction multi-family

building containing twenty-seven (27) residential dwelling units with twenty-two

(22) on site parking spaces; and



. '

WHEREAS, on June 28th, 2009 the Board granted an amendment to the

preliminary major site plan approval for the construction multi-family building

containing twenty-seven (27) residential dwelling units with twenty-three (23) on

site parking spaces; and

WHEREAS, on December 15th, 200-9 the Board granted an amendment to the

preliminary major site plan allowing for the reduction in the number of on-site

parking spaces from twenty-three (23) to twenty-two (22); and

WHEREAS, the Planning Board having considered 
the evidence and testimony

presented by the Applicant, including the oral recommendations of planning staff

and no objectors appearing in opposition to the application; 
and

WHEREAS, after careful consideration, the Planning Board made the following

findings of fact and reached the following conclusions:

FINDING OF FACTS

1. The Applicant is the owner of the Premises and requests a final approval

of its preliminary major site plan originally approved by the Board on January 
9th,

2007 and amended on June 28th, 2008 and further amended òn December 15th,

2009 for the construction of the multi-family building containing twenty-seven
,

(27) residential dwelling units and twenty-two (22) on-site parKing spaces (the

"Project").

2



2. The applicant has constructed the Project in accordance with the
)

preliminary major site plan approval, as amended, except for de minimus

deviations to the midline cornice and front porch entry of the building.

3. The Board finds that the deviations were aesthetically beneficial to the

Project and supported by planning staff in its recommendation of approval.

4. The Applicant has met the procedural requirements of the Ordinance,

including the payment of fees, and in all other respects the application conforms

to the requirements ofthe Ordinance and the Plan for approval of the fir:al major

site plan in the City of Jersey City.

5. Exceptihg the deviations stated above, the Applicant constructed the

Project in accordance with the preliminary site plan approved by the Board on

January 9th, 2007, as amended on June 24th, 2008 and further amended on

December f5th, 2009.

6. The Board finds that approving the final major site plan application would

not have a substantial impact on the 
character of the neighborhood, the -existing

zoning, or the existing building and land use patterns and will generally conform

with the neighborhood zoning scheme, the Ordinance, the Plan and the intent of

the City's Master Plan, and the benefit of granting such an approval greatly.

outweighs any substantial determent to the neighborhood, the existing zoning,

3



the existing building and land use patterns, the Ordinance, the Plan or the intent

of the City's Master Plan.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Board of the City of Jersey

City, for the foregoing reasons as well as thöse stated on the record 
by the

board members which are incorporated herein by reference, approves the within
i

application, Case Number P06-094.2 for Final Major Site Plan as submitted.

4



RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING BOARD OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY
GRANTING FINAL MAJOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL

APPLICANT: GRANT AVENUE 319, LLC

FOR: FINAL MAJOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL

PROPERTY: 319-323 GRANT AVENUE
Block 1297.5, Lots 66, 67, 68 & 69A

CASE NO. P06-094.2

DATE OF HEARING: February 8th, 2011

VOTE: 5-0-0

VOTING IN FAVOR:
1. Vice-Chairman Leon Yost
2. Commissioner Roseanna Petruzzelli
2. Commissioner Franklyn Perez
3. Commissioner Michael Sims
5. Chairman Michael Ryan

NONE
NONE

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FOR : J ,
JERSEY CITY PLANNING BOARD

DATE OF MEMORIALIZATION: March 8th, 2011

5



EXHIT E

DISCLOSUR STATEMENT

NAM OF ENTITY: GRAT AVENU 319, LLC

ADDRESS: 6317 Avenue N
Brooklyn, NY 11234

PERCENT
OWNR'S NAM ADDRESS" OWND

Seraffino Tomassetti 6317 AvenueN 40
Brooklyn, NY 11234

Neil Sorrentino 6317 Avenue N 40
Brooklyn, NY 11234

Joseph R. Sorrentino 6317 Avenue N 20
Brooklyn, NY 11234

Total: 100

I certif that the above represents the names and addresses of al members in the
above Limited Liability Company (LLCJ. If one or more of the above named is itself an
entity, the applicant will provide the names and addresses of any entity owng a 10% orgreater. interest therein. '

lfuer certif that no offcer or employee of the City of Jersey City has any
interest, direct or indiect, in Grant Avenue 319, LLC.

I certify that the foregoing statements made by me are tre. i I am aware that if any
of the foregoing statements made by me are willflly false, I am subject to punshment '

DATE: Mayll _,2011 Grant Avenue 319, LLC

/~ ,;r~it.



EXHmITE-1

CERTIFICATION OF FORMTION

(SEE ATTACHED)
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DIVISION OF REVENUE, BUSINESS GATEWAY SERVICES F=~-~, '~
The above-named DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY was duly filed in
accordance with New Jersey State Law on 01/28/2008 and was assigned
identification number 0400214270. Following are the articles that
constitute its original certificate.

1. Name:
GRANT AVENUE 319 LLC

(j;r~
Jjlll ! wm iV

CERTIFICATE OF FORMTION

GRA A VENU 319 LLC
0400214270

2. The Registered Agent:
, JOSEPH SORRENTINO

3. The Registered Office:
16-10 ROUTE 88 WEST
BRICK, NJ 08724

4. Business Purpose:
Real Estate

~ 5. Effective Date of this filng is:
01/28/2008 ' -

'7 7"
,

~'~.~
'~

. .---

6.l)embers/Managers:
, JOSEPH SORRENTINO

16-,10 ROUTE 88 WEST

ßRIÇK, NJ 08724

Signatures:
JOSEPH SORRENTINO
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Continued on next page...
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have
hereunto set my hand and
a~ed my Offcial Seal
at Trenton, ffiis
01/29/2008

~~Q2c , A l ;Y.. ¡-

R.' David Rousseau
Treasurer of the State of New Jersey

I



EXHIT F

COMPLIACE WITH STATE AN LOCAL LAWS

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned being a member of Grant Avenue 319, LLC, the Applicant under ths

Application, hereby certifies that:

1. The Project meets the requiements of the laws of the State of New Jersey and the
City of Jersey City for consideration for granting the tax.exemption requested in
ths application.

2. The foregoing statements made by me ths -- day of May, 2010 are true to the
best of my knowledge and I understand that if it is wilfuly false, I am subject to
punshment.

Grant Avenue 319, LLC

S" ~ __.d,By:, ~ / t9/r~'
Serafinoomassetti, Member



EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION

DILIGENT INQUIY

The undersigned being a member of Grant Avenue 319, LLC, the Applicant under ths
Application and the developer of the proj ect located at 319 Grant Avenue, Jersey City,
New Jersey hereby certifies that:

1. All inormation contained in the application for the five (5) year tax
exemption is tre and correct to the developer's knowledge, afer he has
made diligent inquiy to conform the accuracy of al inormation.

2. The foregoing statements made by me this.i day of May, 2011 are tre

to the best of my knowledge and I understand that if it is willfuly false, I am
subj ect to punshment.

Grant Avenue 319, LLC

By: -Sir~ ¡; ~ ~'
Serafii omassetti, 11ember



EXHIT H

PROPOSED TAX AGREEMENT

FOR

GRAT AVENUE 319, LLC



TAX AGREEMENT
FIV YEAR / NEW CONSTRUCTION

Tms AGREEMENT made on this -iday of May, 2011, by and between
the CITY OF JERSEY CITY (City), a muncipal corporation organzed under the
Laws of the State of New Jersey and havig its pricipal place of business at 280 Grove
Street, Jersey City, New Jersey, and GRAT AVENU 319, LLC (Applicant),
whose pricipal place of business is 456 Fifth Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11215.

WITNESSETH:

WHREAS, the Muncipal Council has indicated by its intention to utilize the
five year tax exemption provisions authoried by Aricle VIII, Section I, paragraph VI of
the NJ State Constitution and the Five Year Exemption Law, N.J.s.A. 40A:21-1 et
seq. for improvements and projects by the adoption of Ordiance 05-060; as amended by
Ordince 07-146; and

WHREAS, the applicant is owner of certain propert located at 319 Grant
Avenue, in the City of Jersey City, County' of Hudson and State of New Jersey,
designated as Bloc~ 1297.5, Lots 66, 67, 68 & 69.A, on the Tax Assessor's Map, more
commonly known as Grant Avenue West located at the street address of 319 Grant
Avenue, and more particularly described in the metes and bounds description attached
hereto as Exhbit A (propert);

WHREAS, on or about May 10th, 2011, the Applicant applied for a five year
abatement of taxes for the newly completed, on April 15,2011,27 unt multiple dwelling
Residential Aparent Building with 22' indoor parkig spaces and contaig gross
square footage on the building of 45,433 SF over 6 stories (Improvements) pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 40A:21-I et seq and Section 304-12 of the Muncipal Code (Law); and

WHREAS, the City has reviewed the application, approved the constrction of
the Improvements and authoried the execution of a Tax ExemptionAgreement by the
adoption of Ordinance ii-do/ 01 May _ _ , 2011.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises and
covenants hereinafter contained, the paries agree as follows:



ARTICLE I: APPROVAL OF TAX EXEMPTION

The city hereby agrees to a tax exemption for the newly constrcted Grant Avenue
West Proj ect located at 319 Grant Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey contag fort-five

thousand, four hundred th-thee gross squae footae (45,433 SF) and 22 indoor

parkig spaces, over six stories (Iprovements) on the propert, as fuer described in
the Application, attched hereto as Exhbit B, pursuat to Law and Ordinance 10-021
which authorized the execution of ths Tax Agreement (Law), subject to the terms and
conditions, hereof

ARTICLE IT: IN LIEU OF TAX PAYMNTS

The Applicant agrees to make payments on the Improvements (separate and apar
from taxes on the land which shall contiue to be subject to conventional assessment and
taxation for which the Applicant shall receive no credit agaist the in lieu of ta payment)
in lieu of ful propert ta payments accordig to the followig schedule:

1. For the fist fu calendar year of 20 11, afer completion, no payment in lieu of taes

on the new improvements.

2. For the 2nd ful calendar year of2012, approxiately 20% to be the sum of$10,195
on the new imrovements. '

3. For the 3rd full calendar year of2013, approximately 40% percent of the actu
taes otherwse due, curently estiated to be. $20,3 84 on the new improvements.

4. For the 4th calendar year of2014, approxiately 60% of the actu taes otherwse
.dl.e, cuently ,~stimated to be the sum of $30,580 on the new improvements.

5. For the 5th calenda year of2015, approxiately 80 % of the actu taes otherwse
due, curently estiated to be the sum of $40,769 on the new improvements.

ARTICLE il: APPLICATION FEE

The Applicant has paid the sum of $5,400 to the City on or' before the date ths
Agreement is executed. Faiure to make such payment shall cause the ta exemption to
termate.



ARTICLES IV: FEDERA, STATE AN LOCAL LAW

The constrction of the Improvements is subject to all applicable federal, State
and local laws and regulations on pollution control, worker safety, discriation in,

employment, housing provision, zonig, plang and building code requirements.

ARTICLE V: TERM OF EXEMPTION

The tax Exemption granted shall be valid and effective for a period of five (5) ful
calendar years from the date of Substantial Completion of the Project, which shall
ordiÌarly mean the date on which the City issues, or the project is eligible to receive, a
Certificate of Occupancy, whether temporar or final, for par or the whole of the Proj ect.
Durg the term of the tax exemption, the Applicant shall make an in lieu of tax payment
to the City in accordancé with the schedule set fort above. Prior to the commencement
of the tax exemption, and upon expiration thereof, the Applicant shall pay full
conventional taxes on the Improvements.

ARTICLE VI: COUNTY EQUALIZATION AN SCHOOL AI

Pursuant toN.J.S.A. 40A:21-11(c), the percentage, which the payment in lieu of
taxes for the ta exempt propert bears to the propert tax which would have beeii paid
had an exemptiòn not been granted for the propert under ths Agreement, shall be

applied to the valuation of the propert to determe the reduced valuation of the property
to be included in the valuation of the City for determg equalization for county tax
apportionment and schqol aid, durg the term of the tax exemption agreement coverig
ths propert. At the expiration or termation of this Agreement, the reduced valuation
procedure requied under the the Law shall no longer apply.

ARTICLE Vl: OPERATION OR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

If durg any year prior to the termation of ths Agreement, the Applicant ceases

to operate or disposes of the Propert, or fails to meet the conditions for qualifying for
tax exemption under ths agreement or pursuat to Law, then the tax which would have
otherwse been payable for each and every year, shal become due and payable from the
Applicant as if no exemption had been granted. The Tax Collector shall, with 15 days
thereof, notify the owner of the propert of the amount of taxes due.

However, with respect to the disposal of the propert, if it is determed that the
new owner will continue to use the propert pursuant to the conditions which qualify the
property for exemption, the tax exemption shall continue and ths a Agreement shall
remain in ful force and effect.



ARTICLE vm: TERMATONIELIGIBILITY
FOR ADDITIONAL TAX EXEMPTIONS

Upon the termnation of this Agreement for tax exemption, the Project shall be
subject to all applicable real propert taxes as provided by State Laws and Regulations
and City Ordinances. However, nothg'herein shall be deemed to prohibit the Project, at
the termation of ths Agreement, from qualfying for and receiving the full benefits of
any other tax preferences allowed by law. Furermore, nothg herein shall prohibit the
Applicant from exercising any rights under any other tax provisions of State law or City
Ordinances.

ARTICLE IX: PROJECT EMPLOYMNT AGREEMENT

Project Constrction was completed on April 15,2011.

ARTICLE X: NOTICES

All notices to be given with respect to ths Agreement shall be in wrting. Each notice
shall be sent registered or certfied mail, postage prepaid, .retu receipt requested, to the

par to be notified at the addresses set fórt below or at such other address as either

par may from time to time designate in wrting:

Notice to City Business Admstrator
City Hall, 280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

Notice to Applicant Grant Avenue 319, LLC
6317 AvenueN
Brooklyn, New York 11234

And Joseph R.Sorrentino, Esq.
6317 Avenue N
Brooklyn, NY 11234



ARTICLE XI: GENERA PROVISIONS

Ths Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the paries and canot be
amended, changed or modified except by written instrent executed by the paries

hereto.

In the event that any provisions or term of this Agreement shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by a Cour of competent jursdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or
render unenforceable any other provision hereof; provided, however that the City
continues to receive the ful benefit of any economic term hereunder.,

This Agreement shal be governed by and constred in accordance with the Laws
of the State of New Jersey.

This Agreement may be executed in several counterpars, each of which shall
constitute but one and the same agreement.

IN WITNESS WHREOF, the City and the applicant have caused ths
Agreement to be executed on the date and year above wrtten.

WITNESS: GRAT AVENU 319,LLC

BY~~'
SeraÍmo To assett

Member

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

Robert Byrne
City Clerk

Brian O'Reily
Business Admiistrator



ARTICLE XI: GENERAL PROVISIONS

This Agreement contais the entire Agreement between the paries and cannot be
amended, changed or modified except by written instruent executed by the paries

hereto.

In the event that any provisions or term of this Agreement shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by a Cour of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or
render unenforceable any other provision hereof; provided, however that the City
continues to receive the full benefit of any economic term hereunder.

This Agreement shall be governed by and constred in accordance with the Laws
of the State of New Jersey.

This Agreement may be executed in several couterpars"each of which shall
constitute but one and the same agreement.

IN WITNESS WHREOF, the City and the applicant have càused ths
Agreement to be executed on the date and year above wrtten.

WITNESS: GRA AVENU 319, LLC

~ ' .~.~ . ,BY:~1 , ~/&h~
SeraImo Tomtt
Meinber

ATTEST: ,CITY OF JERSEY CITY

Robert Byrne
City Clerk

Brian O'Reily
Business Administrator i
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Attn: Mr. AI Cameron, Dpty. Director
of HE DC

By:

GlennviewTownhouses II Urban
Renewal Associates, LP
c/o Jersey City Housing Authority
400 US Highway 1

Jersey City, NJ 07306
Attn: Ms. Joan Pollock, Development
Director

May 2011
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CERTIFIED APPLICATION TO THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY

FOR LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION

OF

GLENNVIEW TOWNHOUSES II . WEST

In compliance with Executive Order #S-02-003 of the Mayor of the City of Jersey City, the Applicant herewith

submits the following information in support of its application for a Long Term Tax Exemption pursuant to the

Urban Renewal Corporation and Association Law, N.J.S.A 40A:20-1 et seq.

Applicant: Glennview Townhouses II Urban Renewal Associates, LP

Clo Jersey City Housing Authority

400 US Highway NO.1 (Marion Gardens)

Jersey City, New Jersey 07306

Property: Block 2088.1, Lots 5 and 6

296 and 306 Woodward Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07304

Development: Glennview Townhouses II West, an affordable family

rental housing development

Located at 296 and 306 Woodward Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07304

Applicant's Architect: Nando Micale

Nando Micale Architecture

1700 Market Street, 28th Floor

Philadelphia, PA 19103

Applicant's Attorney: Nancy A. Skidmore, Esq.

Connell Foley, LLP

Harborside Financial Center

2510 Plaza Five

Jersey City, NJ 07311-4029

(201) 521-1000
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LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit

A.

B.

C.

D-1.

D-2.

E.

F-1.

F-2.

G.

H.

i.

J.

Description of Property

Preliminary Site Plans & Architectural Renderings

Description of Leases

Total Annual Gross Revenue Computation - Year 1

Total Annual Gross Revenue Computation - Year 16

Estimated Total Development Cost

Projected Statement of Property Operations - Year 1

Projected Statement of Property Operations - Year 16

Proposed Financial Agreement

Certificate of Formation and Disclosure Statement

Cooperation Agreements in Place

Financial Agreements in Force
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APPLICATION

1. Identification of the Property:

The development is located at 296 Woodward Street, known as Block 2088.1, Lots 5 and on the Tax Map of

the City of Jersey City. The Property consists of approximately 37,292 square feet (or 2: 0.86 acres) of vacant land. The

metes and bounds description of the land where the Development is located is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Further, for

context, the preliminary site plans and architectural renderings have been provided as Exhibit B.

2. Type of Development:

The Property was formerly a portion of the Lafayette Gardens public housing development once operated by

the Jersey City Housing Authority ("JCHA"). Upon the award of a HUD HOPE Vi Implementation Grant in 2001, JCHA

began incrementally revitalizing the Lafayette Gardens neighborhood. With the completion of the 24 units at the

Development and at its sister project, Glennview Townhouses II-East - which together make up the seventh and final

rental phase of the Lafayette Gardens Revitalization Plan - JCHA and the Michaels Development Company ("Michaels")

will have transformed four hundred ninety-five (495) formerly severely distressed public housing units into a vibrant new

mixed-income residential community. The Lafayette Gardens revitalization consists of: one hundred forty-eight (148)

senior rental units, three hundred thirty-three (333) family townhome rentals, and six (6) for-sale townhomes, developed

both on-site and in nearby neighborhoods. At the Development, as well as each of the other family developments at

Lafayette Gardens, the Development will be truly mixed income with a combination of public housing units, affordable

units, and market rate units.

The Property will be owned by JCHA and site control will be provided to the Applicant via a Long Term Ground

Lease with JCHA. The Property will be improved upon with twenty-four (24) newly constructed stacked townhome units

(the "Development"). As is shown in the provided site plan found in Exhibit B, the Development will consist of four
buildings, all of which are three story stacked townhomes and one stacked flat building.

In total, the Development contains just over 27,000 square feet of leasable residential space. The unit

breakdown is as follows:

Ava SF 

Total.SF per
Unit Type " Unit Count Type" . .'

1 BR 6 860 5,160
2 BR 12 1,150 13,800
3 BR 6 1,397 8,382
4 BR 0 1,889 -

24 27,342
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As is the case at the balance of the Lafayette Gardens family developments, the Development will have a

series of leasing tiers and include a mix of: public housing units (herein referred to as "ACC"), in which the households

will pay 30% of their income for rent; project based voucher units reserved for non-elderly disabled households (the

Applicant has secured three vouchers for these units) that will come from JCHA's waiting list; low income tax credit units

(leased to households earning at or below 60% of Area Median Income); non-L1HTC ACC units (households earning
between 60 and 80%AMI); and non-restricted 'market' units.

The anticipated number, size, and rent for the affordable apartments wil be as follows:

Leasing Tier Unit Type
No. of Square Net Monthly Tenant Portion of

Units Footage* Rent** Rent ,

ACC 1 BR 6 860 $ 466 $ 285
2 BR 6 1,150 $ 466 $ 340
3 BR 0 1,397 $ 466 $ 405
4 BR 0 1,889 $ 466 $ 440

ACC Only 1 BR 0 860 $ 466 $ 466
2 BR 1 1,150 $ 466 $ 466
3 BR 1 1,397 $ 466 $ 466

PBV- NEDS 2 BR 3 1,150 $ 1,206 $ 340
3 BR 1 1,397 $ 1,460 $ 405

Tax Credit 2 BR 0 1,889 $ 688 $ 688
3 BR 2 1,150 $ 787 $ 787

Market 2 BR 2 1,397 $ 1,500 $ 1,500
3 BR 2 1,889 $ 1,850 $ 1,850

24

* The exact square footage and rent could vary. The numbers above represent the average square footage and rent for each type of

apartment.

** The balance of the rents will be paid by HUD pursuant to either a Public Housing Operating Subsidy ("ACC" Subsidy) or a Housing

Assistance Payments Contract (project based vouchers).

As noted above, the affordable housing units wil be available only to those who qualify under the relevant

federal and state guidelines which are as follows: households which earn at or below 60% of the Area Median Income)

for all of the L1HTC funded units and under 80% AMI for the non-L1HTC ACC units of which there are two. Each ACC

and PBV household will be expected to pay 30% of their adjusted annual income towards rent. HUD's current published

unit rent limits per bedroom type and household type for 60% of AMI is as follows:
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NUMBER OF BEDROOMS

0 1 2 3 4 5
NO. PERSONS 1 1.5 3 4.5 6 7.5

$ 752 $ 804 $ 966 $1,116 $ 1,244 $ 1,373

Lastly, the market rate units, of which there are four (4) in the Development, will carry no income limitations.

Interstate Realty Management Company, (herein referred to as "IRM"), who is an affiliate of the Developer and

corporate guarantor, the Michaels Development Company i, LP, will serve as the property manager and will qualify

potential residents of the affordable units in accordance with federal and state guidelines. IRM currently operates the

over 35,000 units Michaels has developed since its creation in 1973, including all of the phases at the Lafayette

Gardens HOPE Vi development, which include two senior projects that are similar in scope to what is proposed to the

Development.

In addition to the many unit amenities, including modern, energy star appliances and ample living spaces and

storage areas, the residents will have access to the amenities of the nearly Barbara Place Community Center, Located

just across the street, Barbara Place Terrace's newly constructed 5,000 square foot multi-purpose building will provide

the residents of the Development immediate access to property management and the many free social services as well

as use of the buildings wellness center and multi-purpose room.

3. Type of Abatement Requested:

In light of the above, and as JCHA and Michaels have done at Lafayette Gardens, the Applicant seeks a Long

Term Tax Exemption based on a formula pursuant to the Urban Renewal Corporation and Association Law, N.J.S.A

40A:20-1 et seq.(the "Urban Renewal Law"). The P.I.LO.T requested is 8% of the Adjusted Annual Gross Revenue

(gross project revenue less utilities or "net shelter rents") for the income restricted units which translates to $10,424
annually or $521 per income-restricted unit per year. The formula for this conclusion is provided below.

Leasing
Tier
. . ... .

ACC 1 BR 6 $ 466 $

2BR 6 $ 466 $

3 BR 0 $ 466 $
4 BR 0 $ 466 $
1 BR 0 $ 466 $
2 BR 1 $ 466 $
3 BR 1 $ 466 $

2,796

2,796

466
466

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

33,552

33,552

ACC Onl

5,592
5,592
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PBV- NEDS 2 BR 3 $ 1,206 $ 3,618 $ 43,416
3 BR 1 $ 1,460 $ 1,460 $ 17,520

Tax Credit 2 BR 0 $ 688 $ - $ -

3 BR 2 $ 787 $ 1,574 $ 18,888
20 $ 13,176 $ 158,112

Less vacancy (5%) $ (7,906)
Less utilites $ (19,913)
Subtotal $ 130,294
Times 8% $ 10,424

For the non-restricted, or 'market' units, the Applicant requeststhat it be able to pay an annual fee based on

15% of the income for these two (2) units. This translates to a total annual payment of $11,216 or $2,804 per non-

restricted "market" unit. The calculation for this assumption is provided below.

4

$

$

$ '6,700
Less vacancy (7%)

Subtotal
Times 15%

36,000
44,400
80,400

(5,628)
74,772

11,216

In summation, for the first year of operations the Applicant would pay the City an annual fee of $21,639.

In accordance with the Long Term Exemption Statute and the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance

Agency's ("NJHMFA") Low Income Housing Tax Credit (herein referred to as "L1HTC") Qualified Allocation Plan, this

P .1. L. O. T. percentage would be fixed for the first 15 years of the exemption period. This is comparable to the terms of

the financial agreements between the City of Jersey City and the ownership entities for the Housing Authority's HOPE

Vi project phases at Lafayette Gardens. As discussed on page 10 of the provided Draft Financial Agreement, appended

hereto as Exhibit G, after the first fixed 15 years (Stage One), the Applicant will pay the City an Annual Service Charge

which will be adjusted in stages over the term of the tax exemption in accordance with N.J.SA 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

i. Stage Two: Beginning on the 1st day of the 16th year following Substantial Completion until the

last day of the 21 st year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge or 20% of

the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and Improvements;

IIi. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1st day of the 22nd year following the Substantial Completion until

the last day of the 27th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge or 40%
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of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and Improvements;

IV. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1 st day of the 28th year following Substantial Completion until the

last day of the 29th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge or 60% of

the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and Improvements.

The complete calculations for the estimated P.lL.O.T. have provided in the Total Annual Gross Revenue

Computation set forth in Exhibit 0 and the Proposed Statement of Stabilized Property Operations set forth in Exhibit F.

4. Term of Abatement:

The term of the tax exemption being requested by the Applicant is 30 years from the date of substantial

completion of the Development or for period not to exceed the period of time by which the Development is encumbered

by funding provided to the Applicant by the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Agency pursuant to the NJMHFA Law

commencing from the date of substantial completion of the Development (i.e. L1HTC compliance period, amortization

period for permanent debt - if applicable).

5. Description of the Development:

The Property consists of approximately 37,292 square feet (or 2: 0.86

acres) of land located at 296 and 306 Woodward Street, Jersey City.

Although the Property is currently vacant, the site was once part of the

former Lafayette Gardens public housing development. The Property, as set

forth in the provided site plan in Exhibit B and as shown to the right, is

formerly known as Block 2088.1, Lots 5 and 6. It is bounded by Woodward

Street to the North, Johnson Avenue to the West, Van Horne Street to the

South, and a previous Lafayette Gardens family phase to the East,

Glennview Townhouses i, which is currently under construction.

The site is currently zoned R-3. JCHA completed the demolition of the three story residential buildings on this

site prior to the Applicant's involvement.

Upon completion, Glennview Townhouses 11- West, will consist of a total of twenty-four (24) mixed income

rental units, arranged in four buildings. The buildings will contain several different types of units built three and four

story stacked row-home fashion, similar to those constructed at the previous Lafayette Gardens communities. The units

are stacked in various configurations with one unit either above or below the other. Each of the buildings will appear as
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conventional "row-homes" with each apartment having a front door (and no shared entrances).

The construction type will be wood frame, using a combination of brick, ground-face masonry units and

horizontal siding and shingles as exterior finish. The overall architectural design is one of traditional urban "row houses"

with architectural elements fòund within the larger Lafayette neighborhood incorporated in the building facades. A

mixture of gable and hip roof forms and a variety of roof pitches will be used. The roofs will be asphalt shingles,

consistent with the existing materials found in the neighborhood. Window and door openings wil be accented with cast

stone details where appropriate. End units are designed to "turn the corner" with entries on both faces, side bays and in

the line with the roof. All units will have covered entries from the street and outdoor storage is being provided for the

two and three bedroom units. Generous use of landscaping elements including street and ornamental trees, shrubbery

and ground covers will reinforce the existing streets, define the private spaces and enhance the project design. Along

with street extensions, new architecturally compatible street lighting will be provided. Exhibit B contains preliminary site

plan and architectural renderings and floor plans of the structures.

6. Estimated Total Cost of Development:

The total development cost, as set forth in Exhibit E is estimated to be $ 6,830,830. The construction costs
have been estimated based upon information compiled by the Applicant and its consultants. The Total Development

Cost is subject to approval by the NJHMFA.

7. Financing Structure:

Major financing for the Development will be provided by the following sources:

1. NJHMFA - in the form of: 1) a permanent 30-yr mortgage; 2) a Special Needs Trust Fund direct

subsidy; 3) and an a 9% Low Income Housing Tax Credit ("L1HTC") allocation from the Federal Low

Income Housing Tax Credit Program

2. Construction andlor Permanent Financing from JCHA

3. A direct subsidy from the Federal Home Loan Bank's Affordable Housing Program

4. A City CDBG allocation

8. Annual Gross Revenue and Expenses:

A Schedule of Annual Gross Revenue for the Development is attached hereto as Exhibit O. A Projected

. Statement of Operations is attached hereto as Exhibit E. As is the case with the Development Costs, the Annual Gross

Revenue and Projected Statement of Operations are subject to approval by the NJHMFA.
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9. Construction Schedule:

If the Applicant is successful in securing L1HTC's in the August 2011 Competitive Funding Round, the

construction of the Development is scheduled to commence in May 2012 and will be completed within approximately

fourteen (14) months. This construction schedule is subject to modification based upon the time required to obtain the

necessary funding and governmental approvals and permits from those local, state and federal governmental agencies

involved in the Development.

10. Fair Market Value:

The Current (2011) Land Assessment for the Property, Block 2088.1, Lots 5 and 6 is $144,000. The Real

Estate Tax Assessment attributable to Lots 5 and 6 is subject to review and determination by the Tax Assessor.

11. Current Real Estate Tax Status:

For 2010, no taxes were levied on the property as it is exempt being owned by the JCHA pursuant to a

Cooperation Agreement between the City and the JCHA. Enclosed as Exhibit I is a listing of the public housing

developments that are included in the JCHA's Cooperation Agreements with the City. The subject site is included within

this list.

Provided as Exhibi J, is a listing of other financial agreements in place within Jersey City between the City and

the JCHA, the Lafayette Gardens HOPE Vi ownership entities andlor Michaels Development Company and its

subsidiaries.

12. Developer Certification as to Commencement of the Development.

With the submission and signing of this application, the Applicant certifies that it wil not commence construction

of the Development prior to the receipt of final approval of the tax abatement and the execution of a Financial

Agreement between the City and the Applicant.

13. Estimated Jobs to be created:

Based on the Developer's past experience in the City and the projected scope of work at the Development, it is

anticipated that the Development will generate approximately forty-two (42) full time equivalent construction jobs during
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the term of construction. In addition, it is projected that the Development will generate two direct full time and one part

time permanent employment opportunities upon the commencement of operations of the Development. This

Development will not cause any loss or displacement of current employments opportunities. All of the aforementioned

employment opportunities will be immediately created. The Applicant agrees to execute a Development Employment

Agreement simultaneously with the execution of a financial agreement. The Applicant will also adhere to the Housing

Authority's Section 3 Employment and Contracting Opportunity Requirements.

The Development is exempt from the requirements of City Ordinance #07-123, which may otherwise require the

execution of a Development Labor Agreement. This Application is for tax exemption pursuant to the NJHMFA Law and,

therefore, not a "Tax Abated Development" as defined under Ordinance #07-123.

14. Compliance with State and Local Redevelopment Laws.

With the submission and signing of this application, the Applicant certifies that the Development is located in

the R-3 Zoning District and the Urban Enterpris'e Zone Area.

The Development will be constructed in accordance with the terms and conditions of any preliminary site plan

approval granted by the Jersey City Planning Board and in compliance with any state permits or approvals required for

the renovation or new construction. The application for preliminary site plan approval was heard by the Jersey City

Planning Board and approved on May 10, 2011.

15. Compliance with State and Local Law:

With the submission and signing of this application, the Applicant certifies that the Development meets the

requirements of the laws of the State of New Jersey and the City of Jersey City to qualify for a tax exemption.

16. Form of Financial Agreement:

Attached hereto as Exhibit G is a proposed form of Financial Agreement between the City of Jersey City and

the Applicant which is modeled after the Glennview Townhomes I agreement that was also sponsored by JCHA and

applied for by an affiliate of the Developer that was executed on August 26, 2008 and approved by Jersey City

Ordinance 08-106.
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17. Certificate of Formation:

The Applicant is an Urban Renewal Entity and Limited Partnership formed pursuant to the laws of the State of

New Jersey and is qualified to do business in New Jersey.

Attached hereto as part of Exhibit H is a copy of the Certificate of Formation as an Urban Renewal Entity dated

February 24,2011. A Disclosure Statement listing the names and address of the members of the Applicant is attached

hereto as part the above noted attachment.

18. Affordable Housing Contribution:

No affordable housing contribution is required pursuant to Section 304-28 of the Code of the City of Jersey

City. This Application is for tax exemption pursuant to the Urban Renewal Law, and this Development contains

affordable housing units that are in excess of 15% of the overall number of units. Therefore, the Development is

entitled to exemption on two separate bases under Section 304-28.

19. Fee:

Since this Application concerns a Development which provides housing for seniors of low or moderate income,
no application fee is required.

Respectively submitted:

Glennview Townhouses II Urban Renewal Associates, LP

Bi,its G eral Partner, Glennview II-Michaels, LLC

(L, ~
.. /"

\J
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EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Address: Property is commonly known as 296 and 306 Woodward Street, Jersey City, New

Jersey

Block 2088.1, Lots 5 and 6

A metes and bounds description is attached hereto.



PS&S
integrating design & engineering

Paulus, Sokolowski and Sartor, LLC
67B Mountain Boulevard Extension
P.O. Box 4039
Warren, NJ 07059
Tel: 732-560-9700

Transmittal
To: Gin Dawson Date: May 25, 2011

Firm: Michaels Development Company Project No: 2488-007

Addres: 3 East Stow Road Reference: Metes and bounds description

Marlton, NJ 08053

856-797-8957

From: Dieter J. Tomesko, P.L.S, P.P. Copy to: Kristina Vagen, Patrick Gorman (encls.)

Senior Associate B. Wecht, P. Ruskan

I: Overnight Mail 0 Copy of Letter D Shop Drawings 0 For Comments

0 Courier 0 Specifications D Test Results 0 For PB submittal

0 First Class Mail 0 AltaI Acsm Survey o For Review l: As Requested

6 Metes and bounds description for former Lot 3, Block 2088.1

now known as Lot 5, Block 2088.1

Metes and bounds description for former Lot 4, Block 2088.1

now known as Lot 6, Block 2088.1

Metes and bounds description for Lot 9, Block 2088.1

6

6

Remarks:
Enclosed are 6 copies of the metes and bounds descriptions for Lots 5, 6 & 9 in Block 2088.1 as requested for your

use. The prior Lot 5 description was not the correct one, due to lot number changes by the cit.

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact my offce.

Rev. Date: 5/6108
I

i

i

P:\02488\OO7\VlCorrespondence\T ransmlUals\OT _dawson_michaels_2011 0525_doc
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Busines Solution

PAUlUS,SOKOlOWSKI AND SARTOR, lLC
67 A Mountain Boulevard Extension
P.O. Box 4039
Warren, NJ 07059
Tel: 732-560-9700
Fax 732 764~565
fwecht~keyspnseivics.com
ww.psands.co

Francis C. Wecht. Jr. P,.LS., P.P
Vice President

LOT 3 BLOCK 2088.1

CITY OF JERSEY CITY, HUDSON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

BEGINNING at a point, said point being the intersection of the easterly sideline of Johnston Avenue (70'

Wide) with the southerly sideline of Woodward Street (60' Wide), and running thence;

i. Along a common line between the southerly sideline of Woodward Street (60' Wide) and the proposed
norterly sideline of Lot 3, Nort 59 degrees 00 miutes 03 seconds East a distance of 129.34 feet to a
point, thence;

2. Along a common line between the proposed westerly sideline of Lot 4 and proposed Block 2088.1 Lot
3, South 30 degrees 59 minutes 58 seconds East a distance of 200.00 feet to a point, thence;

3. Along a common line between the proposed southerly sideline of Lot 3 and the norterly sideline of

Van-Home Street (60' Wide), South 59 degrees 00 minutes 03 seconds West a distance of 129.34 feet
to a point, thence;

4. Along a common Iie between the westerly sideline of Lot 3 and the easterly sideline of Johnston
Avenue (70' Wide), Nort 30 degrees 59 miutes 58 s~onds West a distance of200.00 feet to the
point and place of BEGINNING.

Containíng a calculated area of25,868 square feet or 0.594 acres.

BEING the same Proposed Lot 3 as shown on a map entitled in par "Major Subdivision Jersey City Housing
Authority Woodward Terrace Block 2088.1 Lot 1.2" as prepared by Paulus, Sokolowski and Sartor, dated March 5,
2004 and fied in the offce of the County Clerk for Hudson County as instrment number 4064_

Francis C. Wecht, Jr.
Professional Land Surveyor
New Jersey License No. 27190

P:\0255 i \00 i \ V\Descriptions\lot3,doc Page i of I
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Business Solutions

PAULUS,SOKOLOWSKI AND SARTOR, LLC
67 A Mountain Boulevard Extension
P,O. Box 4039
Warren, NJ 07059
Tel: 732-560-9700
Fax 732 764-6565
fwecht(akeyspanservics.com
ww.psands.com

Francis C. Wecht. Jr. P.L.S., P.P
Vice President

LOT 4 BLOCK 2088.1

CITY OF JERSEY CITY, HUDSON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

BEGINING at a point, said point being distant from the intersection of the easterly sideline of Johnston
Avenue (70' Wide) with the southerly sideline of Woodward Street (60' Wide), Nort 59 degrees 00 minutes 03
seconds East a distance of i 29.34 feet to a point and runnng thence; .":

1. Along a common line between the southerly sideline of Woodward Street (60' Wide) and the proposed
norterly sideline of Lot 4, Nort 59 degrees 00 minutes 03 seconds East a distance of56.00 feet to a
point, thence;

2. Along a common line between the proposed easterly sideline of Lot 4 and proposed Block 2088.1 Lot
5, South 30 degrees 59 minutes 58 seconds East a distance of204.00 feet to a point, thence;

3. Along a common line between the proposed southerly sideline of Lot 4 and the proposed northerly
sideline of Lot 6, South 59 degrees 00 minutes 03 seconds West a distance of 15.66 feet to a point,
thence;

4. Along a common line between the proposed southerly sideline of Lot 6 and the norterly sideline of

Carbon Street (30' Wide), Nort 76 degrees 54 minutes 23 seconds West a distance of 5.75 feet to a
point, thence;

5. Along a common line between the proposed southerly sideline of Lot 4 and the norterly sideline of

Van-Home Street (60' Wide), South 59 degrees 00 minutes 03 seconds West a distace of36.20 feet to
a point, thence;

i

i
!

¡,'

I

6. Along a common line between the proposed westerly sideline of Lot 4 and proposed Block 2088.1 Lot
3, Nort 30 degrees 59 miutes 58 seconds West a distace of200.00 feet to the point and place of
BEGINNING.

Containing a calculated area of i 1,271 square feet or 0.259 acres.

BEING the same Proposed Lot 4 (56 foot wide right of way) as shown on a map entitled in part "Major Subdivision
Jersey City Housing Authority Woodward Terrace Block 2088 Lot 1.2" as prepared by Paulus, Sokolowski and
Saror, dated March 5,2004 and fied in the office of the County Clerk for Hudson County as instrment number
4064.

,
i
, .
I

f:'

Francis C. Wecht, Jr.
Professional Land Sureyor
New Jersey License No. 27190

P:\0255 i \001 \V\Desriptions\lot4.doc Page i ofl
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EXHIBIT B:

PRELIMINARY SITE PLANS & ARCHITECTURAL RENDERINGS
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EXHIBIT C

DESCRIPTION OF RESIDENTIAL LEASES

GOOD FAITH ESTIMATE OF INITIAL RENTS

1. Name of Tenant: Various - 24 in total

2. Term of Lease: Initial term of lease not less than 1 year.

3. Number of Apartments: 24

Affordable Apartments: 20

Market-rate Apartments: 4

Leasing Tier Unit Type
No. of Square Net Monthly TenantPortion of
Units Footage* Rent** Rent

ACC 1 BR 6 860 $ 466 $ 285

2 BR 6 1,150 $ 466 $ 340

3 BR 0 1,397 $ 466 $ 405

4 BR 0 1,889 $ 466 $ 440

ACC Only 1 BR 0 860 $ 466 $ 466

2 BR 1 1,150 $ 466 $ 466

3 BR 1 1,397 $ 466 $ 466

PBV- NEDS 2 BR 3 1,150 $ 1,206 $ 340

3 BR 1 1,397 $ 1,460 $ 405

Tax Credit 2 BR 0 1,889 $ 688 $ 688

3 BR 2 1,150 $ 787 $ 787

Market 2 BR 2 1,397 $ 1,500 $ 1,500

3 BR 2 1,889 $ 1,850 $ 1,850

24

* The balance of the rents will be paid by HUD pursuant to either a Public Housing Operating Subsidy ("ACC" Subsidy) or

a Housing Assistance Payments Contract (project based vouchers).

**The actual percentage of tenant rent to net rent could vary as HUD regulations restrict housing costs at 30% of annual

household income. These numbers are currently underwritten at 21 % AMI. The numbers above represent the projected



-~nnview Townhouses II - West
,¿nnview T01vnhouses II l1r6an 'Rnewa( .Asociates, L'P

c/o jersey City :Housing .Authority i..

average rent for each type of apartment.

4. Premium paid directly by Tenant Annually:

a. Fire & other insurance

b. Real Estate Taxes of Assessments

c. Operating and maintenance expenses*

NONE

NONE

UNIT UTILITIES - ELECTRIC, AC, GAS

5. Special Features in the Development

Community facilities: Access to social services, community spaces, wellness center, and tot lots

at the new nearby Barbara and Glennview communities

Immediate Proximity to public transportation, on-site parking, and storage

*Energy Effcient Design (Energy Star) which greatly reduce utility expenses for units
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EXHIBIT D.1

TOTAL ANNUAL GROSS REVENUE COMPUTATION

Year 1

ACC 1 BR 6 $ 466 $ 2,796 $ 33,552

2 BR 6 $ 466 $ 2,796 $ 33,552

3 BR 0 $ 466 $ $

4 BR 0 $ 466 $ $

ACC Onl 1 BR 0 $ 466 $ $

2 BR 1 $ 466 $ 466 $ 5,592

3 BR 1 $ 466 $ 466 $ 5,592

PBV- NEDS 2 BR 3 $ 1,206 $ 3,618 $ 43,416

3 BR 1 $ 1,460 $ 1,460 $ 17,520

Tax Credit 2 BR 0 $ 688 $ $

3 BR 2 $ 787 $ 1,574 $ 18,888

20 $ 13,176 $ 158,112
Less vacancy (5%) $ (7,906)
Less utilties $ (19,913)
Subtotal $ 130,294
Times 8% $ 10,424

$ 36,000

$ 44,400
4 $ 6,700 80,400

Less vacancy (7%) (5,628)
Subtotal 74,772
Times 15% 11,216

TOTALYR1PILOT 21,639
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EXHIBIT 0.2

TOTAL ANNUAL GROSS REVENUE COMPUTATION

Year 16

ACC 1 BR 6 $ 627 $ 3,763 $ 45,154

2BR 6 $ 627 $ 3,763 $ 45,154

3 BR 0 $ $

4 BR 0 $ $

ACe Onl 1 BR 0 $ $ $

2 BR 1 $ 627 $ 627 $ 7,521

3 BR 1 $ 627 $ 627 $ 7,521

PBV-

NEDS 2 BR 3 $ 1,708 $ 5,125 $ 61,503

3 BR 1 $ 1,708 $ 1,708 $ 20,501

Tax Credit 2 BR 0 $ $ $

3 BR 2 $ 1,059 $ 2,118 $ 25,412

20 $ 17,730 $ 212,765

Less vacancy (5%) $ (10,637)
Less utiliies $ (31,023)

Subtotal $ 171,105

Times 8% $ 13,688

Non-Restricted
Units

Market 2 BR 2 $ 2,019 $ 4,037 $ 48,448

3 BR 2 $ 2,490 $ 4,979 $ 59,753

4 $ 9,017 $ 108,201

Less vacancy (7%) $ (7,574)
Subtotal $ 100,627

Times 15% $ 15!094

,', TOTAL YR 16 ;;1I.0T $ 28;782



G(ennview Townhouses II -- West
G(ennview T01vnhouses II l1r6an 'Rnewa( .Asociates, LP

c/o jersey City :Housing .Authority I ,.._ ", ._ ___,._, __ , _,__ ',_ ,_,.' '''____,___ __ _____________, ___________...,'__________,______,____'____00'

'The actual rent in Year 16 will be based upon the HUD published rate for that year and will likely vary from this projection. The

assumed 3% inflation factor above is a projection determined by NJHMFA underwriting assumptions (as shown in the 15 year

Operating Income Projection Schedule found on the following page).
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EXHIBIT E

ESTIMATED TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST

1 Cost of land acquisition and any buildings thereon $ -

2 Cost of site preparation', demolition and development (inc!. utility fees) $ 75,000
3 Architects, engineers, surveyors, consultants, experts and attorney's fees (paid or $ 331,349

payable) in connection with the planning, execution and financing of the Development

4 Cost of necessary studies, surveys, plans, and permits (inc!. geo-tech, market study, appraisal) $ 17,438
5 Insurance, interest, financing, tax, assessment, and other operating and carrying costs $ 322,654

durina construction (inc!. accounting/cost audit, title, soft continçiency)

6 Cost of construction, reconstruction, fixtures, and equipment related to the real property $ 5,088,868

(inc!. interior demo and remediation, contingency)

7 Cost of land improvements $ -

8 Necessary expenses in connection with initial occupancy of Development (FF&E, marketing) $ 33,345

9 A reasonable profit or fee to the developer $ 852,035
10 An allowance established by the NJHMFA for working capital and contingency reserves, $ 110,143

and reserves for any operating deficits

11 Costs of guarantees, insurance or other additional financial security for the Development $ -

12 Cost of such other items, including tenant relocation, as the NJHMFA shall determine to be $ -

reasonable and necessary for the development of the Development, less any and all net

rents and other revenues received from the operation of the real and personal property on
the Development site during construction, improvement or rehabilitation

TOTAL $ 6,830,830



G(ennview T01vnhouses II - West
j(ennview T01vnhouses II l1r6an 'Rnewa( .Asociates, L'P
c/o jersey City :Housing .Authority i: ..,. ,_ __ '"

EXHIBIT F.1

PROJECTED STATEMENT OF STABILIZED PROPERTY OPERATION

Year 1

ANNUAL INCOME*

Apartments (Tenant Rent & Operating Subsidy)

Affordable Units

less
vacancy

Non-Restricted Units

less
vacancy

5%

$

$

$

$

$

$

158,113

(7,906)

80,400

(5,628)7%

Other Income

Total Development Income 224,979

OPERATING EXPENSES:

i. ADMINISTRATION

II. SALARIES

IIi. MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS

IV. MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS

V. INSURANCE

Sub
Total

$ 11,700

$ 24,375

$ 12,810

$ 2,250

$ 13,200

$ 64,335

$ 22,608

$ 17,176

$ 21,639

$ 9,600

$ 4,688

$ 8,461

$ 84,172

$ 148,5071

$ 76,472

Vi. OPERATING

VIi. MANAGEMENT FEE

ViiI. REAL ESTATE TAXES

IX. RESERVES

VI. SOCIAL SERVICES

VII. OTHER: Employee Benefits

I Total Operating Expenses:

NET OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEBT SERVICE:



G(ennview Townhouses II - West
G(ennview Townhoues II l1r6an 'Rnewa( .Asociates, L'P
c/o jersey City :Housing .Authority i,, ,________",_ __ _____,___._

DEBT SERVICE:

1. Principal and Interest

2. Debt Service on Other Mortgage Loans
$

$

66,497

I Total Debt Service $ 66,4971

NET OPERATING INCOME AFTER DEBT SERVICE: $ 9,975

*for detail see Ex. 0



Gíènnvíew 'Townhouses II - West
¡(ennview Townhouses II l1rvan 'Rnewa( .Asociates, L'P
c/o jersey City :Housing .Authority I ¡_____'__ _____

EXHIBIT F.2

PROJECTED STATEMENT OF STABILIZED PROPERTY OPERATION

Year 16

ANNUAL INCOME*

Apartments (Tenant Rent & Operating
Subsidy)

Affordable Units $ 212,765

less vacancy 5% $ (10,637)
Non-Restricted Units $ 108,201

less vacancy 7% $ (7,574)
Other Income $
Total Development Income $ 302,755

OPERATING EXPENSES:

i. ADMINISTRATION $ 18,220
II. SALARIES $ 37,968
III. MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS $ 19,948
IV. MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS $ 3,495
V. INSURANCE $ 20,556

Sub Total $ 100,187
VI. OPERATING $ 35,214
VII. MANAGEMENT FEE $ 26,752
VIII. REAL ESTATE TAXES $ 28,782
IX. RESERVES $ 14,947

VI. SOCIAL SERVICES $ 7,293
VII. OTHER: Employee Benefits $ 13,175

Sub Total $ 126,163

I Total Operating Expenses: $ 226,350

NET OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEBT SERVICE: $ 76,404

DEBT SERVICE:



G(ennview T01vnhoues II - West
(ennview Townhouses II l1r6an 'Rnewa( .Asociates, L'P

c/o jersey City :Housing.Authority I :_,.___._____ __.__,__,.__u__ __ ,'_____ ______ _, " ' ,_.__,___", ______,_______,__,__ '" ____ .,' __ _ .....,.. ,_.

1. Principal and Interest

2. Debt Service on Other Mortgage Loans
$

$

66.497

I Total Debt Service $ 66,497

NET OPERATING INCOME AFTER DEBT SERVICE: $ 9,908

*The actual NOI in Year 16 wil be based upon the adjusted project income (based on the HUD published rate for that year - which will

likely vary from this projection). Further, the assumed 3% expenses inflation factor above is a projection determined by NJHMFA

underwriting assumptions (as shown in the 15 year Net Operating Income Projection Schedule found on the following page).
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FINANCIAL AGREEMENT

This Financial Agreement (this "Agreement") is made and entered into as of this
day of , 201 1, by and between GLENNVIEW

TOWNHOUSES II URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, LP (herein referred to as the
"Redeveloper"), an urban renewal entity formed and qualified to do business in New Jersey
under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of J 992, as amended and
supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20- 1 et seq., having its principal offjce6!ü Jersey City Housing
Authority, 400 US Highway #1, Jersey City, New Jersey 073Q9~:,,~~reinafter referred to as the
"Redeveloper", and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Muniç'l'~l ë~rp9ration of the County of
Hudson and State of New Jersey, having its principal of;fcëcat 280òf~N:~Street, Jersey City,
NJ 07302 (hereinafter referred to as the "City").::':'" "~',:"

RECITÀLS

WITNESSETH: '", ". .
WHEREAS, the Entity has proposed-the redevelopméritof the area generally identified

as the lands situated at 296 and 306 Wood\vardStreet;otherwiseknown on the City Tax Map
as Block 2088.1, Lots 5 and 6, more paricülarly de~¿libedjn E:rhibit A, (herein referred to as
the "Property") into 24 units Of affordable reritalhb~sing (tliè"'Development" or the
"Improvements"); and .','. ',","," ' ',', ' ,~. ", .

WHEREAS~tÍiÚ¡Úlffordal)ld housing projèêtìš located within a city with numerous
redevelopmentplans as wèlbïs,a:iièri;dfat;afforçlai~ie housing and thus is eligible for tax

exemptionujdti'Cêrvase v. KäWaida T~0~tS::'Ï~c., 124 NJ Super 547 (Law Div. 1973),
Affirme,d;"Ì29 NJ s~psFfA4 (Ap~Ybiv. 1974); and

:'".; ;..?: ,: _" '.- :':~';:_:,;.~ '. ':'. . '::~L_~~ \ .

-.~REAS, The Piiøperty is currently vacant and owned by the Jersey City Housing
Authority C"JQRA"); and ":., ;'", "

WHEREÀ.S"theEntity plans to construct on the Property twenty-four (24) units, of
which will be eighteen'(J8) wil be reserved for households earing at or below 60% of Area
Median Income ("AMI"); four (4) will be reserved for public housing households earing
between 60 and 80% AMI; and four (4) wil be 'market rate' units, therefore carying no
income restrictions.

WHEREAS, ofthe 24 units, six (6) wil be one bedroom apartents, twelve (12) will
be two bedroom aparments, and six (6) wil be three bedroom units ("Development").
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WHEREAS, on , 20 i i, in accordance with the Act, the Entity filed
a written application to the City for approval of a tax exemption for the Development; and

WHEREAS, the City made the following findings:

A. Relative Benefits of the Development when compared to the costs:

i. the current real estate tax would generate" . ' if the property
were subject to conventional taxes, whereas, the Antlal Service charge as
estimated, and will generate revenue to the Cityii~fäìBr?ximately $2 i ,600;

4. the Development Shoul:å~$tãbi1ize and contri~Jf~t,Qtlie economic growth of
existing local business and tÕth~;tf&~tipt19f new b.ú~iness, which cater to the
new residents;

-; .':' '.~ . . '.

5. the Dév~lopin6Ìitprovides aff¿Fdable housing which advances an inherently

benefidalpublic putpose notwithstan4ing that the City's impact analysis, on fie
with the Officeoftie'CityClerk, indicates that the service charge will not
siipportthe ~6St:of p;O\lìdíng,riliícipal services to the Project; and

; ':'",; :,

2. the relative stability and predictability of the service charges wil allow the
owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance to
the building over the life ofthe Project, which wil insure the likelihood ofthe
success of the Development and insure that it will have a positive impact on the
surrounding area; and
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WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance adopted on
2011, the Municipal Council approved the above findings and the tax exemption application
and authorized the execution of this agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and

for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

:c',:,:,.

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PRovisl'Ö~s~
.-:.-.,~.~ :;"."

'", ~. ," :::; .
- ':":::',',".

Section 1.1 Governing Law .;::";":/ '
. ":"/-~):::~:"

This Agreement shall be governed by thepr,ayisions otthe Long Teir:!ï~~)(emption
Law, as amended and supplemented, NJ.S.A. 40A'20kLet seq.,iE(Cecutive Orde~:~fthe Mayor,

02-003, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance ,tvl)tbllàtith~iìzed the execution of this

Agreement. It being expressly understopd and agreed thaYih.ê'Çity expressly relies upon the

facts, data, and representations containedln,Jhe Application, ~~ched hereto as Exhibit 3, in
granting this tax exemption. ":.';':;...,'".

"'......

Section 1.2 General Definitions

Unless specifiçally pr~0i(iecd otherwisegrthe context otherwise requires, when used in

this Agreement, thefÓiÌqwing tenns shall have the following meanings:"..:.-," ,"....

i. Affordable L¿worM~dêfátëJncome - A Person or Household whose total Gross","", .'." . .. . . .,.... "..
Ariûallûçome is equalJo no more than 30% and 80% respectively of the median

gross inco~efiglle estabJished by geographic region and household size using the

income guidelirieapprov~dfor use by the New Jersey Council on Affordable
H9using or as it 1#ãy be amended pursuant to NJ.A.C. 5:92-12.

. - , :.' . . . . ::' ,"~., .

II. An~#,a\Jle Net ~t:ifit- The amount arrived at by applying the Allowable Profit Rate

to TotalD~yelop~ent Cost pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(c).
:;"';'-..:':"",.
....-......

III. AllowabllProfit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per anum arived at

by adding 1.25% to the annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity's initial
permanent mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or
guaranteed by a governental agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar
charge, if payable on a per annum basis, shall be considered as interest for this

purose. If there is no permanent mortgage financing, or if the financing is internal
or undertaken by a related pary, the Allowable Profit Rate shall be the greater of
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12% or the percentage per anum arived at by adding 1.25% per anum to the
interest rate per annum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate
on mortgage financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The
provisions of NJ.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.

iv. Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the

Development of whatever kind or amount, whether receiv~.das rent from any
tenants or income or fees from third parties, including quHî6flimited to fees or
income paid or received for parking, laundry, health,cnik.user fees or other services

(such as lease premiums for views, fireplaces, etçi).3No;d~ti\lctions wil be allowed
for operating or maintenance costs, including,p~t:ti9t limitê4,';:tp:gas, electric, water

and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal:átà'i'ihs~ance ch~gê:~;whether paid for
by the landlord, tenant or a third pary,;e5i~'ept for c,ustomary ope~äBig,expenses of
commercial tenants such as utilities,insttànçe and~es (including p:~yinents in

lieu of taxes) which shall be deducted frorriOi¡qssJfe~enue based on the actual";-. -",

amount of such costs incured.
'.......

V. Annual Service Charge - ThéaiÖlÌ:QtJlle Entity ha~'àgeed to pay the City for
municipal services supplied to th:e, Proj'êèt,;:\liich sum is in Lieu of any taxes on the

Improvements, pllr~uant to N.J.sk40A:2.0~1 i. '

Vi. Auditor'sReport - Acomplete financial statement outlining the financial status of
the Developmênt (for a'period of time asindicated by context), which shall also
include a certific~tion()fToUüDevelopment Cost and clear computation of Net

Pioflt.1Je cqntents,Õfthe Auditoi's'Report shall have been prepared in conformity

with genefåÎlyacceptédã.ccounting principles and shall contain at a minimum the
following: a bål~çe sheet, a statement of income, a statement of retained earings

'g:r,changes in stoèkholders' equity, a statement of cash flows, descriptions of
aÓdp'9ting polici~:s:; notes to financial statements and appropriate schedules and

expiit~t'ary matepal results of operations, cash flows and any other items required
by La~:iTheAû.àitor's Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such
principles~r'~ certified public accountant who is licensed to practice that
profession in the State of New Jersey.

VII. Certifcate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in par, pursuant to

NJ.S.A. 52:27D-133.

VIII. Debt Service - The amount required to make anual payments of principal and
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interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent

mortgage or other financing including returns on institutional equity financing and
market rate related pary debt for the Development for a period equal to the term of
this agreement.

ix. Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation

imposed upon the by the terms of this Agreement, or und~r'tle Law, beyond any

applicable grace or cure periods.

X. Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement s.iì~Ü me~;~Nlontgomery Senior

Living Urban Renewal Associates, L.P., whiçli"E~ti.ty is fori~a:iid qualified
pursuant to NlS.A. 40A:20-5. It shall alsQ:ih~l~de any subseqri(Ù-ita~~chasers or
successors in interest of the Project, prqÝiÇled they are formed andößerate,under theLaw. .':\'

. .-'.' ;" - :,' ~"":':"

".; .-.... '.:':.....:- '
XII. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or TaxFoireclô'su:r:e-A surrar proceeding by which

the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and å~iigby tax sale, under NJ.S.A.
54:5-1 to 54:5~t2gto54:5-129 et seq.

. . ',"
XIII. Land Taxes -tJ1le amot.t of taxes ass~ssèd on the value ofland, if any, on which

theJ,)~y~lopmerttx§;Jp'cåtèd;ir~;;if.appIicable, taxes on any pre-existing

irhIJrävèIL~nts.LaId';%axes may bëéxempt; however, if Land Taxes are levied,
Entity shalltec,elye a2tecltagainst the Annual Service Charge.".- .,:: ~- .. . "-.

XIV.:Lltiid Tax Payniebts - Payments made on the quarerly due dates, including

app-Hw~d grace pêriods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor

and thé;'Tax collector.

XV. Law - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and
supplemented, NJ.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor 02-003,

relating to long term tax exemption, as it may be amended and supplemented;
Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance 08-106, which authorized the execution of this

Agreement; and Ordinance , as may be amended or supplemented
from time to time, which requires the execution of a Development Labor
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Agreement, and all other relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances,
resolutions, rules and regulations.

XVI. Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Anual Service Charge shall
be the greater of:

(a) The amount of 
the total taxes levied against allteal property in the area

covered by the Development in the last fulltøJ:year'in which the area
was subject to taxation, or in the case of,t(~~~~,çmpt property, the

projected tax levy based upon the asses~'~d v~i\i~;for the year in which
the application is filed, which ~8untthe parie;~igre~ would be $_

; or
. ".: .,'.:::~ ',-

The Minimum AruuaÍ SetvceCharge shalllJe paid in each year in
which the Annual Service Charg~,c,alculated pursuant to NJ.S.A.
40A:20~12 or this Agreemerit, would be less than the Minimum Annual

Servi¿eCliárge.

XVII. Net Pirofit -tRt,\G-ros$R,evenues ofthel~ntity less all operating and non-operating
expenses ofth~Ê~tttY,~ä\iëtermJ1etl in accordance with generally accepted
a¿ëouhtlig,;~~ipcipí~~;:911t: ",,; ,"

""'";'''

(1)
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professional service fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building
and offce supplies and payments into repair or maintenance reserve
accounts; (e) all payments of rent including but not limited to ground
rent by the Entity; (f) all debt service, if applicable; and

(2) There shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or

obsolescence, interest on debt, except interest Whi.~h is par of debt
service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses og:øth~~compensation paid,

directly or indirectly to directors, offcers.¡täi;,stockholders of the entity,
.'~~û' ~.:~~\:_:~~:;:.:

or officers, parners or other persons 1lç.tling ;'ki:pl'~prietary ownership

interest in the entity. "";,'-'t~Yt:V;"
..") ".:.

XVIII. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the mas~Piine, feminine or neutraÏgendtr; the
singular, as well as the plural, as cont~xttê,Guires.:' " '

XIX. Substantial Completion - The determination bý;,tne City that the Project, in whole
or in par, is ready for the us~iitt:rid,ed, which ordiii~y shall mean the date on
which the Development receives, 6riSJ~iigible to recei~ê;åhy Certificate of
Occupancy for any portion of the Project," '

XX. 'ferminatioll-AnÝa,ctor omission which by operation of the terms of this

Financial A~reement shall cause the Entit)l to relinquish its tax exemption.

XXI. Total DevelopmèntCost - The total cost of constructing the Development through
the dateâCertificatê(s) of Occupari:cy is issued for the entire Project, which

. categoriesof9qst are setforthin NJ.S.A. 40A:20-3(h). There shall be included in

"'Total Developm.ent Cost the actual costs incurred by the Entity and certified by an
litiependent and'q~~lifiecf architect or engineer, which are associated with site
retie,gjation and cÌtanup of environmentally hazardous materials or contaminants in
acco~d~q.e wit1.Štate or Federal law and any extraordinary costs incurred including
the costêh~-,4~tngÍishing structures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of

relocatingdisplaced residents or buildings and the clearing oftitle. The Entity
agrees that final Total Development Cost shall not be less than its estimated Total
Development Cost.

ARTICLE II - APPROVAL

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption
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The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be
constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and
the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain property known
on the Official Tax Assessor's Map of the City as: Block 2088.1, Lots 5 and 6, more commonly

known by the street address of296 and 306 Woodward Street, and described by metes and
bounds in Exhibit 1 attached hereto.

Section 2.2 Approval of Entity
,,:,-'\'::""

-.d;):':':'
-.-,~a.

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate or;'ßbfÆ~t_lßln is attached hereto as
Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all tiìèireauisité"pr:.9visions of the Law;

has been reviewed and approved by the Commissioner of the DeparmerifJfrÇommunity

Affairs; and has been fied with, as appropriate, the. Office of the State Treasilêror Office of
the Hudson County Clerk, all in accordance with NJ;SA. 40À:~0-5.

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed,, .
Entity represents that it wil con~tntttw~ntY-four (24.Y'~~W modern stacked townome

units, of which twenty (20) will be afford~b12tö'tâQ:lÍlies of low ihbo:me under 80% AMI and
four (4) will be umestricted 'market' units. The D~~êfdPÏÎentwil;~ontain six (6) one bedroom

aparments, twelve (12) tw9gedroom apartrhentstand sik't~)':Wil be three bedroom
apartments as discusseçlirlgreå.tøtdetail in theihovided Application attached hereto as Exhibit
3.

Section 2.4 Construction Scbedule

The Entity agreešt() diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the
Develoihllent in accordaticewith theE~tirnated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as
Exhibit 5: '

Section 2.5 O*.iership, Mah~gement and Control

The Entity rept¿~erùs that it is the owner of the property upon which the Development

is to be constructed. UpOn constrction, the Entity represents that the Improvements wil be
managed and controlled as follows:

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the Land upon which the Development is to
be constrcted and wil manage and control the Project. The City acknowledges that the Entity
may enter into a management agreement for the Development and wil pay a management fee
in accordance with BID regulations as provided in the Entity's agreement with HUD, which fee
was disclosed in its tax exemption application. The City acknowledges that the Entity may
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enter into future management agreements so long as such agreements are not used to reduce
the City's economic benefits under this Agreement and the management fees to be paid are
comparable to those disclosed in the application.

Section 2.6 Financial Plan
". ",:"~'

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be fina.cèd in accordance with the
Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets fOrtd;e~titn~t~d Total Development

Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Development Cost, tlg source::,9't:Æunds, the interest
rates to be paid on construction financing, the source angi;át~~t of paid~ii~9apital, and the

terms of any mortgage amortization. .":',,,0,',(::;.:~~ ~~~~~
~. '.' '.': . ~ '", :

The Entity represents that its good (aith projections ofthejnitial rental schedules and lease.,.:.",

terms are set forth in Exhibit 7.

ARTICLE HI - DURA Ty'ON(lFAGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Teirm , -
So long as the:tt1''ìs,compli~ce with the Lå.\y and this Agreement, it is understood and

agreed by the paries h~fciï9,:tl1at t~:s,.l\greement shØll'remain in effect for the earlier of 33
years from the,date',8fthe ~å~PtlóiiofOrçíJl1.ance" ," on ,2011 which
approvedthê ik~-tX:~~ti(m fOf"aaxears frol1 the date of Substantial Completion of the

Projest/The tax exemptlo#:,~hall urily~beeffective during the period of usefulness of the

DevêiÒptn~J1t and shall cohitáiie in fórCe only while the Development is owned by a

corporatiori,deJ: association för'ed ard operating under the Law.

"", ARTiêiE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE
:'::::,;;

Section 4.1 Annual S~liice Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following payments to
the City:

(i) City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Annual

Service Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 8.0% of the Annual Gross
Revenue for the low and moderate income units. The Anual Service Charge for the
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unestricted units wil be equal to 15.0% of the Annual Gross Income. The Annual

Service Charge shall be biled initially based upon the Entity's estimates of Anual
Gross Revenue which shall not be less than the its estimate of Gross Revenue as set
forth in its Financial Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit 6.Thereafter, the Annual Service
Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with this Agreement.

A Minimum Anual Service Charge shall be due begirwng on the effective date
of this Agreement. The Annual Service Charge shall be due-öhthèfirst day of the

month following the Substantial Completion of the ProjeptV-Jp the event the Entity fails
to timely pay the Minimum Anual Service Charge qr.:th~ Ârtwl Service Charge, the
unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest pêrritted''ih,t4e case of unpaid
taxes or tax liens on land until paid./'" ' " ..':.

(ii) County Service Charge: an amounr~qi;al to 5% 
of the Anual SerÝceCharge

upon receipt of that charge, for remittance toth~J:~c,nllty:bY the City. ' .

..~': ~."

Section 4.2 Staged Adjustments

The Anual Service Charge shall B~~êiJ'ri~t~a,.in Stages ~~grihe term of the tax

exemption in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40À':20-12CEJaS,fqllows: id
- .-'; :'...",.';' "', '-."

'.~ :,~' ;:,: '"'." . .

1. Stage One;!Ffbir(,tlie first day oftlie month föÍ10wing Substantial Completion

until thé'Jast day~fithe fifteenth year, the Anual Service Charge shall be 8.0%
andÏ 5.8ôA',tor the iøZ: and moderateiricome units and market rate units,

reapectivelY; , --
"

," .....;-

Ii.' . St~~~:'rwò: Begihitig on the 1 st day of the 16th year following Substantial

Comp1etidniwiti1 thei~~tday of the 21st year, an amount equal to the greater of
the Anual Seì\ice Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on

,:..tJe value oftlÏ~:iand and Improvements;

III. Stägê"Three~;Beginnng on the 1st day of the 22nd year following the
Substartiai Completion until the last day of the 27th year, an amount equal to

the greater of the Annual Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes
otherwse due on the value of the land and Improvements;

IV. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 28th year following Substantial
Completion until the last day of the 29th year, an amount equal to the greater of
the Anual Service Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on
the value of the land and Improvements.
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iv. Final Stage: Beginning on the 1st day of the 30th year following Substantial
Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the
greater of the Annual Service Charge or 80% of the amount ofthe taxes
otherwse due on the value of the land and Improvements.

Section 4.3 Credits ." ~ ',_' -0",

.);:';;:i.'

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Servic~Jßli~~,::mid the Land Tax
Payments. The Entity is obligated to make timely Land TaxRaymentS;lmçluding any tax on the
pre-existing improvements, in order to be entitled to a J-a.Glicix credit 'å:~alnst the Annual

Service Charge for the subsequent year. The Entitysl1~ll be e~titled to crediffør.the amount,
without interest, of the Land Tax Payments maderiiÙ'te last four preceding quåW-erI'Y

installments against the Annual Service Charge. In ilý"q,llarer,:that.the Entity faHkto make any
Land Tax Payments when due and owing, such delinqiiéntyghall r~nder the Entity ineligible
for any Land Tax Payment credits agaititthe Anual Sef\i;¿~--;çliarge for that quarer. No
credit wil be applied against the AnnualSêtyiee Charge for påiia:lpayrents of Land Taxes.
In addition, the City shall have, among thisreriédyangother remêdì~s, the right to proceed
against the property pursuant to the In Remtax Forecl¿swei\ct,NlS.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or
declare a Default and terniina:1this Agreement. '

:~ '.' '. -: -, ".." -,-

Section 4.4 QuarterlýlnstaUments. '~:- . ,', '.

The Entity expresslyagrees tlJatthe Anual Service Charge shall be made in quarerly
installmentson.dth6$eq~tes ~h-eAdreal eSÚiteÚix'payrents are due; subject, neverteless, to

adjustrnent for over OI'ûid.erpay~eiit\7ithin thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar
year, In,the event that theEll1ity faíl~:tò.pay the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount
shall bear Ihe,Jiighest rate ofiÎiterestp~rmitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on the
land until paid;, .

Section 4.5 AdmiiIistratlveFee

The Entity shall also pay an anual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the
Anual Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two

(2%) percent of each prior year's Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on
or before December 31 st of each year, and collected in the same maner as the Anual Service
Charge. In the event that the Entity fails to timely pay the Administrative Fee, the amount
unpaid shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens
on the land until paid.

11



Section 4.6 Material Conditions

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes,
Minimum Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including adjustments thereto,
Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest thereon, are Material
Conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - DEVELOPMENT EMPLOYMENT AND;CONTRACTING
AGREEMENT

Section 5.1 Development Employment and Contracting A:greem';ht "',,
",".;.,

In order to provide City residents and businessê~'~ith certain em;l8Y#tnt and other
economic related opportnities, the Entity is subje,~£t? the terrs and conditi~ri~r9.fthe
Development Employment and Contracting Agtêeir~~t"attacli~ilhereto as Exhibit'S.

-','.', ".:::.: ~. ; .: "-.:.:

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF,::ecCUPANCY
. ";":.:" -i:

Section 6.1 Certificate of Occupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the oblig;atioriof the Entity to obtain all
Certificates of Occupancyinatlmely maner~() as to complete construction in accordance
with the proposed constlctionscnedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5, The failure to secure the
Certificates of Occupanqy, shall sul)ject the property to full taxation for the period between the
date of Substantial Completio:n andth(; date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained.

Section 6.2 Filiiigof Ç~rtificateof Occupancy

Hshall be the printat responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax
Assessor å:d;the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy. Failure of the Entity
to fie such iss\ìed Certificate6f Occupancy as required by the preceding paragraph, shall not
militate againståÎlY-e.?tion opnon-action, taken by the City, including, if appropriate retroactive

biling with interest for'a:Ycharges determined to be due, in the absence of such fiing by the
Entity.

ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1 Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established
and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

12



Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. An Auditor's Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or
calendar year, depending on the Entity's accounting basis that the Agreement shall
continue in effect, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor and.Municipal Council and
the NJ Division of Local Governent Services in the Depiírtment of Community
Affairs, its Auditor's Report for the preceding fiscal qc,8~lendar year. The Auditor's
Report shall include, but not be limited to: condoratìiitim:'wnt purchase price, and

the terms and interest rate on any mortgagees).asS~9iated'Wtit:tp.e purchase or

construction of the Development and such~Mii-s:.a~may rel~tê(t8J:he financial

affairs of the Entity and to its operationaiãperformance hereuudgt;;~plIsuant to the
Law and this Agreement. The Report~Æ~ìl':9~earlyittentify and calcJí~teAhe Net

Profit for the Entity during the previous yeài.:; ,
.".'- /;.'

B. Disclosure Statement: On theaniversary date6f;tneexecution of this Agreement,
and each and every year there~:f~rw1lile this agreeIrJ:Qtj~ in effect, the Entity shall
submit to the Municipal Councìl, thèTâXCollector an4the City Clerk, who shall
advise those municipal offcials required,tC?be"açi:yised; a Disclosure Statement
listing the persoils:n~:ying an ownetslùp:intere~ti#the Project, and the extent of the
ownership itit6;est 6feach and suchä4ditional information as the City may request
from time tQ:1inie.

Section 7.3 Illspeçtion/Audit,
. ,'-. '_.' .

j:.-,

The Entity shajÐ~ermit thb'íj:ispection of its property, equipment, buildings and other
facilitiésofthe Developrre~tand, i¡deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity
by repres'eiitatives duly auth9rlzed by the City and the NJ Division of Local Governent
Services in tlieÏ?eparment of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, npon request,
examination and ~9:t of its,lJ60ks, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such
examination or audifShaii:be made during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the
presence of an officerölagent designated by the Entity. All costs incurred by the City to
conduct the audit, including reasonable attorneys' fees if appropriate, shall be biled to the
Entity and paid to the City as par of the Entity's Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments
shall accrue interest at the same rate as for a delinquent service charge.

ARTICLE VIII- LiMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves

13



During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a
limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions ofN J .S.A. 40A:20-15. The Entity shall have
the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, lUpaid rentals, and reasonable contingencies
in an amolUt equal to five (5%) percent ofthe Gross Revenue ofthe Entity for the last full
fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such par of the excess Net Profits as is necessary

to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in NJ.S .A. 40A:20-15. The reserve is to
be non-cumulative, it being intended that no furher credits thereto s1l;xlbe permitted after the
reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent,ófthe'preceding year's

Gross Revenue. Pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:20-14(b) there is expres'~lyexcluded from the
calculation of Gross Revenue and Net Profit in the determinRtlÔn ol':Ek~ss Profit, any gain
realized by the Entity on the sale of any condominium llt, whether or'hbttaxable under
federal or state law. ' ", ',' "

',:'¡:"

_ -,:-,'~f,:.;:':;;. '.r' ", ',. ~~ ~.; 'j .

In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any tì~~:~f,~;ear, shall exceed the Allowable

Net Profits for such period, then the Entity,,~thin one hlUdt~&"apd twenty (120) days afer the
end of such fiscal year, shall pay such exC~;~'Ntt"Profits to th~"GltyJ1San additional service

charge; provided, however, that the Entity'kay'riäîtii~ìiAa reserv~:a¿ 'determined pursuant to

aforementioned paragraph 8',1." The calculatie)I of.tè6htitý'~~Kce~s net profits shall include
those development costsdirê¿flYfìttributable to ,site remediation and cleanup expenses and any
other costs excluded il1;the definitism of Total Development Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this
agreement even thoûgh-~tJ;9$e cost,s;hiay have been deducted from the Development costs for

puroses of calculating tli~;#WWiÎ:setvi((eGharge.; ,-'.è':':F-;"'-'~ -;: '. :'":":'., '-, : ";'Cl,.." '.',-,: ,-. "_".'.' '. .......:.. 'c-.'.::":" ''-., .-.;::.,:_.:.: :::"""

Section 8.i':~~~~~Ht;~~:Rese~¡~~cess Neí/trofit Upon Termination, Expiratioir or Sale

ARTicLE ix - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1 Approval

Any sale or transfer of the Project, shall be void unless approved in advance by
Ordinance ofthe Municipal CounciL. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written
application by the Entity, will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the
Development and the transfer of this Agreement provided: 1) the new Entity does not own any
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other Development subject to long term tax exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity
is formed and eligible to operate under the Law; 3) the Entity is not then in default of this
Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations under this Agreement is fully assumed by the
new Entity,S) the Entity shall pay the City a transfer fee equal to 2% of the then curent
Anual Service Charge as required by NJ .S.A. 40A:20-10d.

Section 9.2 Fee
.~ ::. ..;:';~:"' .

.'...:-..;:.

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for ap~i~val of a change in
ownership or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall1:),',fêqdit~d.Jo pay to the City a new

tax exemption application fee for the legal and administrativ€é;serviceJ:;,~$Jlie City, as it relates

to the review, preparation and/or submission of docU1éorllg~tötlìe Muni~iî5¡j'~Ç,ouncil for

appropriate action on the requested assignment. The,J'ee shall be non-refu(Üiblé~
.': :::" ".::t(:\;.. ';.~. "-.,.~ :_'.~: ":-.~,:.;'.:.. ..

ARTICLE X - COivEJANGÈ'-'
"," .,..'...., .,;.....:,.

:;"~~)~::;"-' ",:;:
':":":":?:'-~--'

Section 10.1 Operation

During the term of this Agreemenli-'ihe,LleyeJopment ~~~íll~eirtaintained and operated

in accordance with the provisions of the La\Y. o~~rati()niofthe Dev'~lopment under this

Agreement shall not only be terminable as pròvid,eáby NJtg'...:40A:20- 1, et seq., as currently
amended and supplerneritêd;bl1talso by a DefaJIt under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to
comply with the Lawshall constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among
its other remedies, h~~e:'tn't right tbterminate the tax exemption.",:-,;,,;"." '..

Section 1~:lJ;JlS~t9;~,~~~ ofi~t~fist~~~~f~š~btative
".-~ .

':l)'iiring the term8f~s Agteeiitnt, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-
005, ~aÔrdinance 02-075'''r,~auiring'\Vritten Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status.
The Entity'sfa.il.ue to complÝ.;with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a
Default under llls:Agreemenfand the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to
terminate the taxexèniption.

ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT

Section n.l Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or
failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable
notice, cure or grace period.
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Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the
Default (herein referred to as "Default Notice"). The Default Notice shall set forth with
paricularity the basis of the alleged Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt
ofthe Default Notice, to cure any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy
available to the Entity. However, if, in the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default canot
be cured within sixty (60) days using reasonable diligence, the city,;Wfirextend the time to
cure. "-) :::~~~ :':~:::,:

,-.,)~::" ..¡~~:\

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approveig~tensi~iì;'tlie.,City shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with s,e'Õtîbn 1"2. 1 .':':,

Should the Entity be in default due to a failt&e to pay any charges defiri'¿d'á~Material
Conditions in Section 4.8, the Entity shall not be subject-to t1ledêfault proceduralr~medies as
provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed im~gciiatéiy to terminate the Agreement as
provided in Aricle XII herein.

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default

The City shall, amongits other remedies, hav~ th¿:itgntio proceed against the property
pursuant to the In Rem TaXF6tê~Hosure Act, Nj,S.A. 54:5-1; et seq. and/or may declare a

Default and terminate 
'ths AgreeÍ~ient. Any defablt arising out of the Entity's failure to pay

Land Taxes, the MinirrUiAnnua1:'Service Charge, Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing
Contribution, or the AnuafS'erviêeDJ:ätges shEÙlíiot be subject to the default procedural
remedies as/pr~~ide~:iB:Arti2t~::xi herein; bût:shall allow the City to proceed immediately to

terminate the Agreement,as providenjn Article XII. All of the remedies provided in this
AgreemeJ:to the City, aiida,Jl, rightstucl remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be
cumulative'a,d concurencKtQ termination of any provision of this Agreement shall deprive
the City of arýiofits remedie:s,'or actions against the Entity because of its failure to pay Land
Taxes, the Minifu~:Anu~iService Charge, Anual Service Charge, Affordable Housing

Contribution or Adtrit,strátive Fees. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due and
owing at the time or -Whi~h, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if there

had been no termination. Furher, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum
Anual Service Charge, the Anual Service Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution,
Administrative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein
provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to
terminate the tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any other
specified remedy.
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In the event of a Default on the par of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Article
IV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's land
and property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act
supplementary or amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly
or impliedly to mean taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read,
as far as is pertinent to this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land.

ARTICLE XH- TERMINATION,

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy thtt)e-~atl1t withint1l~,:time period

provided in Section 11.2, the City may terminate thls)Âgreerrent upon thirt ($0) days written
notice to the Entity (herein referred to as the "Notiêe:Qf Termination"). ':!,; ,. . ,- 0 . .~"'. ;".::.:":: '~.' ';':

......:..-..:

The Entity may after the expiraÜ6iiQf,Qne year fro~'me,S;lbstantial Completion of the
Development notify the City that as of a ¿~rlaiå~aa;te designateciÆriithenotice, it relinquishes its
status as a tax exempt Project. As of the datêso s¿t;Íh~ttaxexempti'on, the Annual Service
Charges and the profit and diVidend restrictions sban termina.te:

Section 12.3 Final Accounting'

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of
the Entity orby virttle of the pr9vision'i,of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement,
the Entity shall provide a final accou" nting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to, ,
the prqyisions ofNJ.S.A 4QA:20- 13 and 1 5 as well as any excess Net Profits. For purposes of
rendering'afinal accounting,Jhe termÜl.~tion of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the end of
the fiscal yearJw the Entity."

..:. -.

Section 12.4 CoiNt:ntionahTaxes
" . "''""-".

";:. -;',;:

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the
Development shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be
assessed and conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt
taxable property in the City.

Section 12.5 Termination Payment
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In addition to any other remedies available to the City upon termination whether
voluntar or upon default, the Entity shall pay to the City an amount equal to the difference
between the service charge actually paid and the service charge that would have been due had
each adjustment period provided in Section 4.2 hereof, been of the shortest duration permitted
by law, thereby generating the most accelerated increases, permitted by law.

ARTICLE XIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 13.1 Arbitration

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the partitahereto or a
dispute arising between the paries in reference to,tJ:e.terms ang provisions as,ck~t,fort herein,

either pary may apply to the Superior Cour of NeW: Jêrsey by'knClPpropriate pröCe~ding, to
settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as wil tendte.ác~omplish the purp~ses ofthe
Law. In the event the Superior Cour shall not entertain juii~âlçtion, then the paries shall
submit the dispute to the American ArbÚhitionAssociation i~N-twJersey to be determined in
accordance with its rules and regulations ih~u6h'fl,:fasJ.ion to ac~6tnplish the purpose of the

Long Term Tax Exemption Law. The cost fQrthea.ljittåtiqn shall be borne equally by the
paries. The parties agree tnattie Entity may notfii~ an a¿ti¿riin Superior Cour or with the
Arbitration Association,tifiles~iii~Entity has fir~t paid in full all charges defined in Article IV,
Section 4.7 as Material Conditions.

AitrICLE.XIV ~WAIVER

Section iti Waivêt:

'N-dthng contained in.,this Finåhcial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or

relinquishcêt1t9Y the City of~y rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right
to terminate the-Agreement aid tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided
herein. Nothing hÚê1nshallbe deemed to limit any right of recovery of any amount which the
City has under law, inequity, or under any provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as par defendant
in any action alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this
Agreement and/or the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et~, the Entity shall indemnify and hold
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the City harless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable
attorneys' fees and costs, through trial and all stages of any appeal, including the cost of
enforcing this indemnity) arising out of Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives all
statutory or common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the puroses of this
indemnification. The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense, counsel to be
selected by the City, subject to the reasonable consent of the Entity. However, the City
maintains the right to intervene as a pary thereto, to which interventigtlthe Entity consents;
the expense thereof to be borne by the City.

).,~ ;

ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE( ':'::':':.~,;:i-.;.,'.~-: .

Section 16.1 Certifed Mail ~;t.-;i~:~i:. '.~.::

-.;, :;:~;.:

";:"; .i,'::

".';'." "-~-'~:'" ":'/~,"""

,.::,--.
"',",'"

Any notice required hereunder to be senth§éither partyto the other shâiMj:esènt by

certified or registered mail, retu receipt requested.:';' )'"

".-... . ';.:,~:::,..

Section 16.2 Sent by City

When sent by the City to the Entitythênotice shall be addressed to:" "'.,'"' '-,
Glennview Townouses II Urban RenewàlAS$ociates, LP
Three East Sto)YRoad, PO Box 994
Marlton/New Jersey 08053
Attn:1ÓélSi!ver, Vi~e President

aId

Jersey citýJ-i0using .Allthority
400 U.S. Higli\vay #1 ,.' '

Jersey City, Ne;w Jersey 07306

Att: Maria T.Maio, Executive Director

unless prior to giving Of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this
Agreement, of the name and address of Entity's Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide
suchMortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity
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When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk
City Hall
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business AdminisJ:(ìit6t,'and the Tax Collector

unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified ,tle':!Entity otherwse. The notice
to the City shall identify the Development to which it relates'i:rf~.:tfi¥LJrban Renewal Entity

....... ", ..,...':

and the Property's Block and Lot number). ' ' .

ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY

Section 17.1 Severabilty

If any term, covenant or conditi()ll of this Agreemeñt:Qf.the Application, except a
Material Condition, shall be judicially dà~lá.eqto be invalid6i-y:enforceable, the remainder
of this Agreement or the application of su¿~:'têrt~'êovenant or c~ri4iti6~ to persons or

circumstances other than those as to which iUs heiêlir~a.iicl-9r unë'nforceable, shall not be

affected thereby, and eachterm,covenant or concihion oftiiisAgreement shall be valid and be
enforced to the fullest ex:tê~¡:p~rii'itted by law. " ,

. .;'~.

ARTICLE XVin - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring
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construction against the pary drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for
both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.

Section 18.2 Conflcts

The parties agree that in the event of a conflct between the Application and the
language contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern andprevaiL. In the event of
conflct between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall governand.prevaiL.

Section 18.3 Oral Representations
" '. -~,

There have been no oral representations made by:;(#:tler,ofthe p~~shereto which are
not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, t1le:Ôrdi~kce authorizirighn~ Agreement,
and the Application constitute the entire Agreemetti,k~tween tlae paries and thèteßpall be no
modifications thereto other than by a written instrtc~~t.appro§~~i.and executed h:Y/both parties

and delivered to each pary.':,?j,;,d: ' ".:...;~::-.~._~:...:.,:

Section 18.4 Entire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in th~6~dtIliice oftheMunicipal Council
approving this Agreement are incorporated inthis Agreêm.ei:tçid made a par hereof.

Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealingswítheachpther, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the
City.

Section18.6 PendingL,tigation

TheEl1tity fully and 'Etely holds the City hanless and assumes any risk that may
affect the preseJ't,or future valldity of the within financial agreement, arising from any other
litigation.:"

¡':":.

ARTICLE xix - EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at
length herein:

1. Metes and Bounds description of the Project;
2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;
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3. The Application with Exhibits;

4. Certificate of the Entity;

5. Estimated Construction Schedule;

6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;
7. Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rental Schedule and Lease Terms;
8. Development Employment and Contracting Agreement;
9. Architect's Certification of Actual Construction CQst~.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the paries have caused these pre,seÌ1t$tqbe executed the day and
year first above written.,::- ':::,

ATTEST:

ATTEST:

GLENNVIEW TOWNHOUSES II URBAN
RENEW ALÀ.S.SQCIATES, LP

, . : .,' ~.:

~ . .':;

". '-. "'\:~.: ':::':';":":'

Joel Sil~èr;Vice Pr~sid~nt

,CITY OF JERSEY ClfTY

Brian O'Reily,
Business Administrator
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EXHIBIT 1:

Metes and Boiinds descriptiOlJl of th.e Project
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EXHIBIT Z:

Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement
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EXHIBIT 3:

The Application with Exhibits
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EXHIBIT 4:

Certificate of the Entity

.~.:'
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CHRis CHRISTIE
Governor

~tate of, llew J(erstp
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY ApFArRS

101 SOUTH BROAD STREET

PO Box 805
TRENTON, NJ 08625.0805 LORI GRIFA

CommissionerKIM GUADAGNO
Lt. Governor

, ..,,,...--,., "~,,.,,' -."-_.,,, .....'".."."~I

f!llt~j ~

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
MAR 02 Z011

SlATE TREA,rîijTO: State Treasurer
RE: GLENNVIEW TOWNHOUSES II URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, LP

(formerly Lafayette Family Phase V Urban Renewal Associates, LP, an Urban Renewal
Entity)
File # 900
An Urban Renewal Entity

This is to certify that the attached AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP OF AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY has been examined and approved by the
Department of Community Affairs, pursuant to the power vested in it under the "Long Term Tax
Exemption Law," P.L 1991, c.431 

,

Done this ,2th day of ~bru 201 i at Trenton, New Jersey.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

BY~~-
Edward M, Srñth, Director
Division of Codes and Standards
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AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT OF LiMITED PARTNERSHIP
GLENNVIEW TOWNHOUSES II URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, LP C_'.~

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
("Agreement"), is dated as of January 1" 2011, by and among GLENNVfEW 11-
MICHAELS, LLC, as general partner (the "General Partner") and each of MICHAEL J.
LEVin and ANDREW J. BOCCHINO, as limited partners (each a "Limited Partner" or
collectively the "Limited Partners")_ The General Partner and the Limited Partners are
sometimes individually referred to as a "Partner" and collectively as the "Partners".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the General Partner; Michael J. Levitt and Andrew J. Bocchino
formed the partnership as Lafayette Family Phase V Urban Renewal Associates, LP, An
Urban Renewal Entity, as a New Jersey limited partnership pursuant to a Certificate of
Limited Partnership dated as of May 15, 2008 and filed with the State Treasurer on
August 21, 2008 and that certain Agreement of Limited Partnership dated as of May 15,
2008 (the "Original Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the partners desire to change the name of the partnership; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to enter into an agreement among the
Partners to provide for, among other things, (i) the allocation of profits, losses and
distributions of cash flow and other proceeds of the Partnership among the Partners, (íi)
the respective right, obligations and interests of the parties hereto to each other and to
the Partnership and (iii) certain other matters,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, of the mutual promises of
the parties hereto and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
FORMATION

1.01 Continuation. The undersigned hereby continue the partnership (the
"Partnership") as a limited partnership under the New Jersey Limited Partnership Act,
N.J.S.A. 42:2A-1 et seq. and as an urban renewal entity under the Long Term Tax
Exemption Law, N.J,S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., as same may be amended from time to time
during the term of the Partnership (hereinafter collectively the "Act").

1.02 Name. The name of the Partnership shall be "Glennview
Townhouses II Urban Renewal Associates, LP".

1.03 Term. The term of the Partnership shall continue until December 31 i
2100 unless the Partnership is sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions of



this Agreement.

ARTICLE 1/
DEFINED TERMS

In addition to the abbreviations and definitions set forth hereinabove and in the
recitals to this Agreement, the following defined terms used in this Agreement shall
have the meanings specified below:

"Capital Account" means the capital account of a Partner as described in Section
10.03 of this Agreement.

"Consent" means the prior written consent or approval of the General or Limited
Partners or any other Person, as the context may require, to do the act or thing, for
which the consent is solicited.

"Interest" or "Partnership Interest" means the ownership interest of a Partner in
the Partnership at any particular time, including the right of such Partner to any and all
benefits to which such Partner may be entitled as provided in the Agreement and in the
act, together with the obligations of such Partner to comply with all of the terms and
provisions of this Agreement and of the Act.

"Net Cash Flow" means the gross cash proceeds from Partnership operations
(including sales and dispositions of property in the ordinary course of business) less the
portion thereof used to payor establish reserves for all Partnership expenses, debt
payments, capital improvements, replacements, and contingencies, all as determined
by the General Partner in its sole discretion. Net Cash Flow shall not be reduced by
depreciation, cost recovery deductions such as amortization or similar allowances.

"Project" means a multifamily apartment project for tenants located in Jersey
City, New Jersey,

"State" means the State of New Jersey.

ARTICLE III
PURPOSE AND BUSINESS OF THE PARTNERSHIP

3_01 Purpose. The purpose of the Partnership is to develop, finance, lease,
own and operate the Project and to engage in all activities in connection therewith.

,3.02 Authority of the Partnership. In order to carry out its purpose, the
Partnership is empowered and authorized to do any and all acts and things necessary,
appropriate, proper, advisable, incidental to or convenient for the furtherance and.
accomplishment of its purpose, and for the protection and benefit of the Partnership,

ARTICLE IV
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DUTIES AND OBLIGA nONS OF GENERAL PARTNERS

The General Partner shall use its best efforts in connection with its performance
of the following duties and obligations with respect to the Partnership:

(a) take all action that may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the
purposes of the Partnership as described in this Agreement; and

(b) do all other things (subject to the restrictions contained herein) that
may be necessary or desirable in order to properly and efficiently administer and carry
on the affairs, assets and business of the Partnership.

ARTICLE V
PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS

AND OBLIGA nONS OF THE PARTNERSHIP

5.01 Partners' Percentage Interests, The Partners' Percentage Interests in the
Partnership and required capital contributions are set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto.
The Partners acknowledge that each Partner has made their required capital
contribution.

5.02 Return of Capital Contribution. Except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, no Partner shall be entitled to demand or receive the return of his or its
capital contribution, No Partner shall have priority over any other Partner, either as to
return of such Partner's capital contribution or as to profits, losses or distributions unless
otherwise specifically provided herein. Moreover, no General Partner shall be
personally liable for the return of the capital contribution of any Limited Partner, or any
portion thereof, it being expressly understood that any such return shall be made solely
from assets of the Partnership, nor shall the General Partner be required to pay the
Partnership, or any Partner, any deficit in its or any other Partner's Capital Account

upon dissolution or otherwise, it being understood and agreed that any deficit in any
Capital Account shall not be treated as an asset of the Partnership. No Partner shall
have the right to demand or receive property other than cash for his or its Interest.
Each of the Partners hereby agree to, and does hereby waive, any right such Partner
may otherwise have to cause any asset of the Partnership to be petitioned or to file a
complaint or institute any proceeding at law or in equity seeking to have any such asset
partitioned,

5.03 Loans by the Partners. If the General Partner believes that additional
funds are necessary for the carrying on of the Partnership affairs, it shall have the right
to borrow in the Partnership's name the amount which it deems necessary, or it may
advance such sums or sums as may be required. Any money so advanced to the
Partnership by a partner shall bear interest at the rate of two percent (2%) over PNC
Bank prime, Any said advances shall be repaid prior to any distribution in respect of an
Interest in the Partnership.
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ARTICLE Vi
RIGHTS, OBUGA nONS AND

POWERS OF THE GENERAL PARTNER

6.01 Management of the Partnership. Except as otherwise set forth in this
Agreement, the General Partner, within the authority granted to it under this Agreement,
shall have full, complete and exclusive discretion to manage and control the business of
the Partnership for the purposes stated in Article III of this Agreement, shall make all
decisions affecting the business of the Partnership and shall manage and control the
affairs of the Partnership to the,best of its ability and use its best efforts to carr out the
purpose of the Partnership. The General Partner shall have the authority to execute
documents on behalf of the Partnership and to bind the Partnership thereby, and third
parties shall have the right to rely on the General Partner's signatures as being binding
on the Partnership.

6.02 Development and Syndication of the Project.

(a) Development. The Partners agree to acquire, develop, finance,
rehabilitate and syndicate a multifamily housing project as follows: The Managing
General Partner, will select all professionals related to the development, financing,

construction and syndication of the Project including, but not limited to, the Project's
architect, general contractor, lenders, tax credit syndicators and legal and accounting
professionals.

(b) Syndìcation. Each Partner hereto agrees to take such action as
may be required for such acquisition, development, financing and syndication of the
Project, including executing any amendments to this Agreement and to the
Partnership's Certificate of Limited, Partnership evidencing the admission and
withdrawal of partners. At the election of the General Partner, upon a syndication of the
Partnership or the Project, the Limited Partners agree to withdraw as partners to provide
for the syndication of partnership interests.

ARTICLE VII
TRANSFERS OF AND RESTRICTIONS ON

TRANSFERS OF, INTERESTS OF LIMITED PARTNERS

7.01 Restrictions on Transfers of Limited Partners' Interests. Under no
circumstances will any offer, 'sale, transfer, assignment, hypothecation or pledge of the
Limited Partner's Interest be permitted unless the General Partner shall consent thereto,
which consent may not be unreasonably withheld,

7.02 Admission of Substitute Limited Partners. Subject to the other provisions
of this Agreement, including this Article VII, an assignee of the Interest of the Limited
Partner (which shall be understood to include any purchaser, transferee, donee or
other recipient of any disposition of such Interest) shall be admitted as a substitute
Limited Partner of the Partnership only upon the satisfactory completion of the following:
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(i) consent of the General Partner (which may be arbitrarily and unreasonably withheld
in its sole discretion) shall have been given; and (ii) the assignee shall accept and agree
to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement by executing a counterpart
hereof or an appropriate amendment hereto, and such other documents or instruments
as the General Partner may require in order to effect the admission of such person as a
Limited Partner. A person who acquires all or any portion of a Limited Partner's
Interest, but does not become a substitute Limited Partner in accordance with this
Section 7.02 shall not have any rights or privileges of a Limited Partner under this
Agreement and/or the Act, but shall have the right to receive its share of the profis,
losses and distributions of the Partnership to which his, her or its assignor would have
been entitled.

7.03 Rights of Assignee of Partnership Interest. Any person who is the
assignee of all or any portion of a Limited Partner's Interest, but does not become a
substitute Limited Partner and desires to make a further assignment of such Interest,
shall be subject to all the provisions of this Article VII to the same extent and in the
same manner as any Limited Partner desiring to make an assignment of his, her or its
Interest.

ARTICLE VII
RIGHTS AND OBLIGA TlONS OF LIMITED PARTNERS

8.01 Management of the Partnership, No Limited Partner shall take part in the
management or control of the business of the Partnership nor transact any business in
the name of the Partnership. No Limited Partner shall have the power or authority to
bind the Partnership or to sign any agreement or document in the name of the
Partnership.

8,02 Limitation on Liability of Limited Partners. The liability of each Limited
Partner shall be limited to his capital contributions. No Limited Partner shall have any
other liability to contribute money to, or in respect of the liabilities or obligations of the
Partnership, nor shall any Limited Partner be personally liable for any obligatíons of the
Partnership, No Limited Partner shall be obligated to make loans to the Partnership.

ARTICLE IX
PROFITS, LOSSES AND DISTRIBUTIONS

9.01 Allocation of Profits, Losses and Cash Distributions from Operations.

Profits and losses for any fiscal year shall be allocated to the Partners in accordance
with their Percentage Interests. Net Cash Flow for the fiscal year shall be distributed in
such amounts and at such times as the General Partner determines, in their sole
discretion. All distributions shall be made to the Partners in accordance with their
Percentage Interests.

9.02 Allocation of Gains, Losses and Distributions from Sale and liquidation of
Partnership Property. (a) Gains and losses recognized by the Partnership upon the
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sale, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of the property owned by
the Partnership shall be allocated to the Partners in accordance with their Percentage
Interests,

(b) The proceeds resulting from the liquidation of the Partnership
assets pursuant to Section 10.02 hereof, and the net proceeds resulting from any sale
of the property of the Partnership or refinancing of any obligation of the Partnership, as
the case may be, shall be distributed and applied in the following order of priority:

(i) to the payment of all matured debts and liabilities of the
Partnership, excluding debts and liabilities of the Partnership to Partners or any
affliates;

Oi) to the setting up of any reserves which the General Partners
deem reasonably necessary for contingent, unmatured or unforeseen liabilities or
obligations of the Partnership; provided, however, that the balance of any such reserve
remaining at such time as the General Partner reasonably determine such reserve is no
longer needed, shall be distributed in accordance with Sections 9.02(c)(iii) and
9_02(c)(iv) hereof;

(iii) to the repayment of any unrepaid debts and liabilities
(including unpaid fees) owed to the Partners or any affiliates by the Partnership for
Partnership obligations; and

(ìv) the balance, to the Partners in accordance with their
Percentage Interests,

9.03 Capital Accounts. Throughout the full term of this Agreement, a separate
Capital Account shall be maintained and adjusted for each Partner in accordance with
the accounting rules of Section 1.704-1 (b )(2)(iv) of the Regulations.

9,04 Designation of Tax Matters Partner. The General Partner is hereby
designated as Tax Matters Partner of the Partnership.

6



ARTICLE X
SALE, DISSOLUTION AND LlQUIDA TlON

10.01 Dissolution of the Partnership. The Partnership shall be
dissolved upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

1.03 hereinabove;
(a) the expiration of the term as provided in Paragraph

(b) the death, retirement, disability, or adjudication of
bankruptcy of all the General Partners.

The Partnership may continue despite the death, retirement,
disability, or bankruptcy of a sole General Partner with the successor in interest as a
substitute General Partner, with the consent of all the limited partners. In the event that
at any time where there is more than one General Partner, then, in the event of the
death, retirement, disability or bankruptcy of a General Partner, the remaining General
Partner or partners may continue the business of the Partnership by unanimous consent
of all partners and the existence of the Partnership shall not be affected. In such case,
the estate of a General Partner may be admitted as a Limited Partner and the estate's
general partnership interest converted to a limited partnership interest.

10.02 Winding Up and Distribution. (a) Upon the dissolution of the Partnership
pursuant to Section 10_01 of this Agreement, the Partnership business shall be wound
up and it assets liquidated as provided in this Section 10,02 and the net proceeds of
such liquidation shall be distributed in accordance with Section 9.02 of this Agreement.

(b) It is the intent of the Partners' that, upon liquidation of the
Partnership, any liquidation proceeds available for distribution to the Partners be
distributed in accordance with the Partners' respective positive Capital Account

balances and the Partners believe that distributions under Section 9_02(b) of this
Agreement will effectuate such intent. In the event that, upon liquidation, there is any
conflict between a distribution pursuant to the Partners' respective positive Capital

Account balances and the ìntent of the Partners with respect to distribution of proceeds
as provided in subsection 9.02(b) of this Agreement, the General Partner shall,
notwithstanding the provision of Sections 9.01(a) and (b) 9.02(a) and (b) of this
Agreement, allocate the Partnership's gains and losses among the Partners in a manner
that will effectuate the distribution of liquidation proceeds to the Partners as provided in
Section 9,02 to be in accordance with the Partners' respective positive Capital Account
balances.

ARTICLE XL
ACCOUNTING, ETC.

11.01 Fiscal Year and Accounting Method. The fiscal year of the Partnership
shall be the calendar year.

7



11.02 Bank Accounts. All funds of the Partnership not otherwise invested shall
be deposited in one or more accounts maintained in such banking institutions as the
General Partners shall determine, and withdrawals shall be made only in the regular

-" course of Partnership business on such signature or signatures as the General Partner
may, from time to time, determine.

ARTICLE XII
CONSENTS, VOTING, ETC.

Any Consent required by this Agreement may be given a written Consent of the
consenting Partner and received by the General Partner. Except as otherwise
expressly provided in this Agreement, whenever the Consent of the Limited Partners is
required, the votes of the majority of the Percentage Interests of the Limited Partners
shall control.

ARTICLE Xi/
GENERAL PROVISIONS

13.01 Burden and Benefit. The covenants and agreements contained herein
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns of the respective parties hereto,

13.02 Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State,

13.03 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed to be an original copy and all of which together shall
constitute one agreement binding on all of the parties hereto, notwithstanding that all of
the parties shall not have signed the same counterpart.

13.04 Separability of Provisions. Each provision of this Agreement shall be
considered separable and, if for any reason any provision which is not essentiai to the
effectuation of the basic purposes of this Agreement is determined to be invalid and
contrary to any existing or future law, such invalidity shall not impair the operation of or
effect those provisions of this Agreement which are valid.

13.05 Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth all (and is intended by all
parties to be an integration of all) of the representations, promises, agreements and
understandings among the parties hereto with respect to the Partnership, the
Partnership business and the property of the Partnership, and there are no
representations, promises, agreements or understandings, oral or written, express or
implied, among them other than as set forth or incorporated herein.
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13.06 DCA Requirements. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
the terms of the Certificate of Limited Partnership and the New Jersey Long-Term Tax
Exemption Law (N.J.S_A. 40A:20-1 et seq.) are incorporated herein by reference and
shall govern the Partnership in the event of any conflct.-

13.07 NJHMFA Provision. The Partnership acknowledges that any review of the
provisions of this Agreement by the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
("NJHMFA") is performed in accordance with its responsibility as Lender and is intended
only to assure that the Partnership is validly formed according to law, with the legal
authority to borrow the funds which wil constitute the NJHMFA Mortgage Loan and
operate the Property securing the NJHMFA Mortgage Loan. Notwithstanding any other
provisions herein, the Partnership acknowledges and agrees that as a condition of
obtaining the NJHMFA Mortgage Loan, that the NJHMFA statutes, rules and regulations
and all the financing documents in connection with the NJHMFA Mortgage Loan, are
applicable to the Partnership and the Property securing the NJHMFA Mortgage Loan.
The Partnership further acknowledges that, except as contained in this Section, the
NJHMFA makes no representations express or implied, as to this Agreement; and the
Partnership and the Partners shall not rely upon the NJHMFA review ofthís Agreement.

13.08 Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified or amended by an
agreement in writing signed by all of the Partners.

rSIGNATURES TO APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWiNG PAGE)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have affxed their signatures and seals to
thís Agreement as of the date first written above.

ATIEST: GENERAL PARTNER:
GLENNVIEW I/-MICH ELS, L C

~~ By:
Pdnt Name: Míchae
Title: Sole Member

ATIEST: LIMITED PARTNERS:

MICHAEL J, LE

~~ ANDREWJ.~



EXHIBiT A

Glennview II-Michaels, LLC

Michael J. Levitt

Andrew J. Bocchino

Required Capital
Contributions

10.00

980.00

10.00

1,000.00

Percentage
Interests

0.00%

98.00%

1.00%

100.00%



AMENDED and RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT

for

GLENNVIEW II-MICHAELS, LLC

THIS AMENDED and RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT is made and entered
into as of June 1, 2010byand between GLENNIEWII-MICHALS,LLC, aNew Jersey limited
liabilty company (the l1Company"), and MICHAEL J. LEVITT, as the sole member of the
Company ("Member").

WIT N E SSE T H:

WHEREAS, Lafayette Family V-Michaels, LLC (the "Company") was fonned under the
laws of the State of New Jersey (the "State") by filing a Certificate of Formation (the "Certificate")
with the State Treasurer of New Jersey on April 23, 2008 and pursuant to that certain Operating
Agreement dated as of May 15, 2008 (collectively the "Original Agreement") .

WHEREAS, the parties changed the name of the Company to Glenview II-Michaels, LLC.

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement to provide for, among
other things, (i) the payment of capital contributions by the Members, (ii) the allocation of profits,
losses and distributions of cash flow and other proceeds of the limited liability company to the
Members, (iii) the respective rights and obligations of the parties hereto to each other and to the
limited liability company, (iv) the respective interests of the paries hereto and (v) certain other
matters.

WHEREAS, the sole Member intends to operate the Business and provide for operation of
the Company,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises below, and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency ofwhich are hereby acknowledged, it is agreed as
follows:

A. ORGANIZATION.

1. Continuation. The undersigned hereby agree to continue the Company under
the New Jersey Limited Liability Act (the "Act").

2. Name. The name of the Company shall be "Glennview II-Michaels, LLC."



3. Duration. The Company shall have perpetual existence,

41.

this Agreement.
Restatement. The Original Agreement is hereby replaced in its entirety by

5. Registered Office and Resident Agent. The Registered Office and

Resident Agent of the Company shall be as designated in the initial Articles. The Registered Offce
and/or Resident Agent may be changed from time to tie_ Any such change shall be made in

accordance with the Act.

6. Purpose. The Company was formed for the purpose of serving as the
general parter of Glemwiew Townhouses II Urban Renewal Associates, LP (the "Project
Partnership"). The Project Parnership was formed for the purose of developing, financing,
rehabilitating, maintaining, operating, sellng, and otherwse disposing of, an affordable housing
complex (the "Project").

7. Tax Status for Company. The Company shall be taxed as a sole
proprietorship for tax purposes unless and until at least one addítional Member is added in which
event the Company shall thereafter be treated as a partership for tax purposes.

B. CAPIT AlL CONTRiBUTIONS.

The initial Member hereby made a Capital Contribution of One Hundred Dollars
($100.00) for the capital interests ofthe Company. Future Capital Contributions may be made in the
sole discretion of the Member.

C. ALLOCATIONS and DISTRIBUTIONS.

Except as may be required by the Code as amended, net profits, net losses, and other
items of income, gain, loss, deduction and credit of the Company shall be reported by the Member on
the Member's income tax return. The Member may make distributions from time to time after the
Member determines that the Company has sufficient funds available.

D. GENERAL POWERS of SOLE MEMBER.

The Member has authority to:

1. conduct the business and affairs of the Company;

2.
the Company;

do all things necessary or convenient to carr out the business and affairs of
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property;
3. purchase, lease or otherwse acquire any real, personal, tangible or intangible

4. sell, convey, mortgage, grant a security interest in, pledge, lease, license,

exchange or otherwise dispose of or encumber any real, personal, tangible or intangible propert;

5. open one or more depository accounts and make deposits into and checks and

withdrawals against such accounts and to designate and authorize any additional signatory on such
accounts;

6. borrow money, incur liabilities and other obligations, establish lines of credits,
mortgages, and other credit and financing facilities relating to the business of the Company;

property;
7. obtain insurance covering the business and affairs of the Company and its

8. commence prosecute or defend any proceeding in the Company's name or
relating to the business of the Company;

9. enter into any arrangements or agreements, and execute any contracts,

documents and instruents relating to the business of the Company;

10. engage consultants and agents, define their respective duties and establish
their compensation or remuneration, This right shall include the right to designate a person to operate
the Company and conduct the business of the Company in the event of the illness, disability or
demise of the sole Member. If such person is appointed, such person shall be referred to as the
"Manager" and shall have any rights, powers and obligations granted or created herein to the sole
Member excepts as the sole Member shall otherwise restrict or limit in a document appointing said
Manager; and

1 L take all actions required of the Project Partnership with respect to the Project.

E. EXCULPATION of LIABILITY: INDEMNIFICATION.

Unless otherwise provided by law or expressly assumed, the sole Member shall not be
liable for the acts, debts or liabilities of the Company,
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F. OTHER ACTIVITIES.

The Member may engage in other business ventures of every nature, including,
without limitation by specification, the ownership of another business similar to that operated by the
Company. The Company shall not have any right or interest in any such independent ventures or to
the income and profits derived therefrom.

G. DEATH, DISABiLITY, DISSOLUTION.

1. Death o/the Member. Upon the death ofthe Member, iftheMember has

not theretofore appointed a Manager who is then willng to act, then the personal representative of
the estate of the Member may act as Manager hereunder or appoint a person to so serve until the
Member's Interests and Capital Account of the deceased Member have been transferred or
distributed.

2. Disabilty of the Member. Upon the disability of the Member, if the
Member has not theretofore appointed a Manager who is then willng to act, then the guardian,
committee, or conservator of the disabled Member may act as Manager hereunder or appoint a
person to so serve until the Member's Interests and Capítal Account of the disabled Member have
been transferred or distrbuted.

3. Dissolution. The Company shall dissolve and its affairs shall be wound up
by the written consent of the Member. However, no third part dealing with the LLC shall be
adversely affected by such action unless it receives notice, or should have reasonably been aware of

,such action.

H. BOOKS, RECORDS and ACCOUNTING.

1. Books and Records. The Company shall maintain complete and accurate
books and records of the Company's business and affairs as required by the Act.

2. Fiscal Year; Accounting. The Company1s fiscal year shall be the calendar
year_

3. Member's Capital Accounts. A Capital Account for the Member shall be
maintained by the Cornpany. The Member's Capital Account shall reflect the Member's capital
contrbutions and increases for any net income or gain of the Company. The Member's Capital
Account shall also reflect decreases for distributions made to the Member and the Member's share of
any losses and deductions of the Company.
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i. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

1. Terms. Nouns and pronouns wil be deemed to refer to the masculine,
feminine, neuter, singular and plural, as the identity of the person or persons, firm or corporatíon
may in the context require. The term "Codell shall refer to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended_

2. Article Headings. The Arcle headings and numbers contained in this

Operating Agreement have been inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no
way shall be constred to define, limit or descrbe the scope or intent of any provision of this
Operating Agreement.

3. Entire Agreement. This Operating Agreement constitutes the entire
agreement among the sole Member and the Company and contains all ofthe agreements among said
paries with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Operating Agreement supersedes any and all
other agreements, either oral or written, between said parties with respect to the subject matter
hereof

4. Severabilty. The invalidity or unenforceability of any paricular provision

of this Operating Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and this Operating
Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provisions were
omitted,

5. Amendment. This Operating Agreement may be amended or revoked at any
time by a written document executed by the sole Member.

6. Binding Effect. Subject to the provisions of this Operatíng Agreement

relating to transferability, this Operating Agreement wil be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties, and their respective distributees, heirs, successors and assigns.

7. Governing Law. This Operating Agreement is being executed and delivered
in the State of New Jersey and shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Jersey.

8. NJHMF A Provision. The Company acknowledges that any review of the
provisions of this Operating Agreement by the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
C'NJHMF A") is performed in accordance with its responsibility as Lender and is intended only to
assure that the Company is validly fonned according to law, with the legal authority to borrow the
funds which wil constitute the NJHMF A Mortgage Loan and to operate the Property securing the
NJHMFA Mortgage Loan, Notwithstanding any other provisions herein, the Company
acknowledges and agrees that as a condition of obtaining the NJHMFA Mortgage Loan, that the
NJHMF A statutes, rules and regulations and all the financing documents in connection with the
NJHMF A Mortgage Loan, are applicable to the Company and the Property securing the NJHMF A
Mortgage Loan. The Company fuher acknowledges that, except as contained in this Section, the
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NJHMF A makes no representations express or implied) as to this Operating Agreement; and the
Company and the Members shall not rely upon the NJHMF A review of this Operating Agreement.

(SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOWl
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IN WINESS WHREOF, the paries hereto make and execute this Operating Agreement
to be effective on the date first above written.

MEMBER: COMPAN:

MICHAELJ.

GLENNVlEW D-MIC

By:

AMENDED AND RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT
SIGNATURE PAGE
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COOPERATION AGREEMENT

The following public housing developments are included in the Cooperation Agreement:

PROJECT NAMEINUMBER TOTAL UNITS

MARlON GARDENS
N.J. 9-2 234

BOOKER T. W ASHlNGTON N.J, 9-3 314

HUDSON GARDENS N,J. 9-4 222

HOLLAND GARDENS N.J. 9-5 192

MONTGOMER Y GARDENS
N.J. 9-6 462

CURRIES WOODS N,J. 9-8 91

BERRY GARDENS
N.J. 9-9 368

DWlGHT STREET HOMES N.J.9-10 34

LAF A YETTE SENIOR LIVING CENTER N.J. 9-13 83

THOMAS J. STEWART APTS. N.J. 9-14 48

OCEAN POINTE EAST N.J. 9-20 29

TOTAL 2,077
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EXISTING FINANCIAL AGREEMENTS

All parties of the applicant who have an interest in any other financial agreements in
force and effect in the City of Jersey City include:

1) The Jersey City Housing Authority has a current tax enhancement agreement
in place with the City of Jersey City for the 36 residential units at the premises
located at 254 Bergen Avenue.

2) The Jersey City Housing Authority has a current tax enhancement agreement
in place with the City of Jersey City for the 90 residential units at Arlington

Gardens located at 315 Randolph Avenue.

3) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Community Limited
Partnership have a current tax enhancement agreement in place (under the
NJHMFA Statute) with the City of Jersey City for the 124 residential units at
the mixed-income HOPE Vi Lafayette Village located at 579 Grand Street.

4) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family Urban Renewal
Associates, L.P, have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the
City of Jersey City for the 70 residential units at the mixed-income HOPE Vi
Woodward Terrace located at 511 Grand Street.

5) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family" Urban Renewal
Associates, L. P, have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the
City of Jersey City for the 72 residential units at the mixed-income HOPE Vi
Pacific Court Townhouses located at 320 Bramhall Avenue,

6) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family Phase III Urban
Renewal Associates, L.P, have a current tax enhancement agreement in
place with the City of Jersey City for the 67 residential units plus community
center at the mixed-income HOPE Vi Barbara Place Terrace located at Ash
Street, Carbon Street and Pacific Avenue,

7) The Jersey City Housing Authority and A. Harry Moor'e Phase I Associates,
L.P, have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the City of
Jersey City for the 66 residential units at the mixed-income HOPE Vi Gloria
Robinson Court Homes I located at 332-336 Duncan Avenue,

8) The Jersey City Housing Authority and A. Harry Moore Phase" Associates,
L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the City of
Jersey City for the 78 residential units and community center at the mixed-
income HOPE Vi Gloria Robinson Court Homes rllocated at 340-344 Duncan
Avenue,

9) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family Phase IV Urban

Renewal Associates, L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in
place with the City of Jersey City for the 63 residential units under



construction at the mixed-income HOPE Vi Glennvìew Townhouses I located
at Grande Street, Barbara Place, and Halladay Street.

10) The Jersey City Housing Authority and AHM Housing Urban Renewal
Associates, LLC have a current tax enhance agreement in place with the City
of Jersey City for the 60 residential units under construction at the mixed-
income HOPE Vi A. Harry Moore Phase III Development located at 324
Duncan Avenue.
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G(ennvíew Townhouses
II - Tast

Tax Abatement Application to the
City of Jersey City

Submitted to:
Jersey City Tax Abatement Committee

30 Montgomery Street
Jersey City, NJ 07302

Attn: Mr. AI Cameron, Dpty. Director

of HE DC

By:

GlennviewTownhouses II Urban
Renewal Associates, LP
c/o Jersey City Housing Authority
400 US Highway 1

Jersey City, NJ 07306
Attn: Ms. Joan Pollock, Development
Director
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CERTIFIED APPLICATION TO THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY

FOR LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION

OF

GLENNVIEW TOWNHOUSES II . EAST

In compliance with Executive Order #S-02-003 of the Mayor of the City of Jersey City, the Applicant herewith

submits the following information in support of its application for a Long Term Tax Exemption pursuant to the

Urban Renewal Corporation and Association Law, N.J.S.A 40A:20-1 et seq.

Applicant: Glennview Townhouses II Urban Renewal Associates, LP

C/o Jersey City Housing Authority

400 US Highway NO.1 (Marion Gardens)

Jersey City, New Jersey 07306

Property: Block 2088.1, Lots and 11.03

344 Woodward Street and 511 Grand Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07304

Development: Glennview Townhouses II - East, an affordable family

rental housing development

Located at 344 Woodward Street and 511 Grand Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07304

Applicant's Architect: Nando Micale

Nando Micale Architecture

1700 Market Street, 28th Floor

Philadelphia, PA 19103

Applicant's Attorney: Nancy A. Skidmore, Esq.

Connell Foley, LLP

Harborside Financial Center

2510 Plaza Five

Jersey City, NJ 07311-4029

(201) 521-1000
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LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit

A.

B.

C.

D-1.

D-2.

E.

F-1.

F-2.

G.

H.

i.

J.

Description of Property

Preliminary Site Plans & Architectural Renderings

Description of Leases

Total Annual Gross Revenue Computation - Year 1

Total Annual Gross Revenue Computation - Year 16

Estimated Total Development Cost

Projected Statement of Property Operations - Year 1

Projected Statement of Property Operations - Year 16

Proposed Financial Agreement

Certific"ate of Formation and Disclosure Statement

Cooperation Agreements in Place

Financial Agreements in Force
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APPLICATION

1. Identification of the Property:

The development is located at 344 Woodward Street and 511 Grand Street, known as Block 2088.1, Lots 9 and

11.03 on the Tax Map of the City of Jersey City. The Property consists of 84,141 square feet (or.: 1.45 acres) of

vacant land. The metes and bounds description of the land where the Development is located is attached hereto as

Exhibit A. Further, for context, the preliminary site plans and architectural renderings have been provided as Exhibit B.

2. Type of Development:

The Property was formerly a portion of the Lafayette Gardens public housing development once operated by

the Jersey City Housing Authority ("JCHA"). Upon the award of a HUD HOPE Vi Implementation Grant in 2001, JCHA

began incrementally revitalizing the Lafayette Gardens neighborhood. With the completion of the forty (40) units at the

Development and at its sister project, Glennview Townhouses II-West - which together make up the seventh and final

rental phase of the Lafayette Gardens Revitalization Plan - JCHA and the Michaels Development Company ("Michaels")

will have transformed four hundred ninety-five (495) formerly severely distressed public housing units into a vibrant new

mixed-income residential community. The Lafayette Gardens revitalization consists of: one hundred forty-eight (148)

senior rental units, three hundred thirty-three (333) family town home rentals, and six (6) for-sale townhomes, developed

both on-site and in nearby neighborhoods, At the Development, as well as each of the other family developments at

Lafayette Gardens, the Development will be truly mixed income with a combination of public housing units, affordable

units, and market rate units.

The Property will be owned by JCHA and site control will be provided to the Applicant via a Long Term Ground

Lease with JCHA. The Property will be improved upon with forty (40) newly constructed, energy efficient apartments

(the "Development"), As is shown in the provided site plan found in Exhibit B, the Development will consist of four
buildings, all of which are three story stacked townhomes.

In total, the Development contains just over 47,800 square feet of leasable residential space. The unit

breakdown is as follows:
. ..... .. . '.-.TQtarse,pet

Unit Type ,.
............. ..ignitCoiint.... 'AvriSI5 . -Týp,'..

1 BR 9 860 7,740
2 BR 17 1,150 19,550
3 BR 12 1,397 16,764
4 BR 2 1,889 3,778

40 47,832
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As is the case at the balance of the Lafayette Gardens family developments, the Development will have a

series of leasing tiers and include a mix of: public housing units (herein referred to as "ACC"), in which the households

will pay 30% of their income for rent; project based voucher units reserved for non-elderly disabled households (the

Applicant has secured six vouchers for these units) that will come from JCHA's waiting list; low income tax credit units

(leased to households earning at or below 60% of Area Median Income); non-L1HTC ACC units (hol)seholds earning
between 60 and 80% AMI); and non-restricted 'market' units.

The anticipated number, size, and rent for the affordable apartments will be as follows:

Unit No. of Square
Net Tenant Portion of

Leasing Tier Monthly
Type Units Footage*

Rent**
Rent

ACC 1 BR 6 860 $ 466 $ 285

2 BR 8 1,150 $ 466 $ 340

3 BR 3 1,397 $ 466 $ 405

4 BR 2 1,889 $ 466 $ 440

ACC Only 1 BR 1 860 $ 466 $ 466

2 BR 1 1,150 $ 466 $ 466

3 BR 1 1,397 $ 466 $ 466

PBV- NEDS 2 BR 2 1,150 $ 1,206 $ 340

3 BR 3 1,397 $ 1,460 $ 405

Tax Credit 2 BR 2 1,889 $ 688 $ 688

3 BR 7 1,150 $ 787 $ 787

Market 2 BR 2 1,397 $ 1,500 $ 1,500

3 BR 2 1,889 $ 1,850 $ 1,850

40

· The exact square footage and rent could vary. The numbers above represent the average square footage and rent for each type of

apartment.

.. The balance of the rents will be paid by HUD pursuant to either a Public Housing Operating Subsidy ("ACC" Subsidy) or a Housing

Assistance Payments Contract (project based vouchers).

As noted above, the affordable housing units will be available only to those who qualify under the relevant

federal and state guidelines which are as follows: households which earn at or below 60% of the Area Median Income

for all of the L1HTC funded units and under 80% AMI for the non-L1HTC ACC units of which there are three (3). Each
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ACC and PBV household will be expected to pay 30% of their adjusted annual income towards rent. HUD's current

published unit rent limits per bedroom type and household type for 60% of AMI is as follows:

NUMBER OF BEDROOMS

0 1 2 3 4 5

NO. PERSONS 1 1.5 3 4.5 6 7.5

$ 752 $ 804 $ 966 $1,116 $1,244 $ 1,373

Lastly, the market rate units, of which there are four (4) in the Development, will carry no income limitations.

Interstate Realty Management Company, (herein referred to as "IRM"), who is an affliate of the Developer and

corporate guarantor, the Michaels Development Company I, LP, will serve as the property manager and will qualify

potential residents of the affordable units in accordance with federal and state guidelines. IRM currently operates over

35,000 units that Michaels has developed since its creation in 1973, including all of the phases at the Lafayette

Gardens HOPE Vi development, which include two senior projects that are similar in scope to what is proposed to the

Development.

In addition to the many unit amenities, including modern, energy star appliances and ample living spaces and

storage areas, the residents will have access to the amenities of the nearly Barbara Place Community Center. Located

just across the street, Barbara Place Terrace's newly constructed 5,000 square foot multi-purpose building will provide

the residents of the Development immediate access to property management and the many free social services as well

as use of the buildings wellness center and multi-purpose room.

3. Type of Abatement Requested:

In light of the above, and as JCHA and Michaels have done at Lafayette Gardens, the Applicant seeks a Long

Term Tax Exemption based on a formula pursuant to the Urban Renewal Corporation and Association Law, N.J.S.A

40A:20-1 et seq.(the "Urban Renewal Law"). The P.lL.O.T requested is 8% of the Adjusted Annual Gross Revenue

(gross project revenue less utilities or "net shelter rents") for the income restricted units which translates to $19,168
annually or $532 per affordable unit per year. The formula for this conclusion is provided below,
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ACC 1 BR 6 $ 466 $ 2,796 $ 33,553

2 BR 8 $ 466 $ 3,728 $ 44,736

3 BR 3 $ 466 $ 1,398 $ 16,776
4BR 2 $ 466 $ 932 $ 11,184

ACC Onl 1 BR 1 $ 466 $ 466 $ 5,592

2 BR 1 $ 466 $ 466 $ 5,592

3 BR 1 $ 466 $ 466 $ 5,592

PBV- NEDS 2 BR 2 $ 1,206 $ 2,412 $ 28,944

3 BR 3 $ 1,460 $ 4,380 $ 52,560

Tax Credit 2 BR 2 $ 688 $ 1,376 $ 16,512

3 BR 7 $ 787 $ 5,509 $ 66,108
36 $ 23,929 $ 287,149

Less vacancy (5%) $ (14,358)
Less utilties $ (33,188)

Subtotal $ 239,603

Times 8% $ 19,168

For the non-restricted, or 'market' units, the Applicant requests that it be able to pay an annual fee based on

15% of the income for these four (4) units. This translates to a total annual payment of $11,216 or $2,804 per market

unit. The calculation for this assumption is provided below,

Non-Restricted Units

Market 2 BR 2 1500 $ 3,000 $ 36,000

3 BR 2 1850 $ 3,700 $ 44,398

4 $ 6,700 $ 80,398

Less vacancy

(7%) $ (5,628)

Subtotal $ 74,770

Times 15% $ 11,216

In summation, for the first year of operations the Applicant would pay the City an annual fee of $30,384.

In accordance with the Long Term Exemption Statute and the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance

Agency's (UNJHMFA") Low Income Housing Tax Credit (herein referred to as ULlHTC") Qualified Allocation Plan, this
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P.lL.O.T, percentage would be fixed for the first 15 years of the exemption period. This is comparable to the terms of

the financial agreements between the City of Jersey City and the ownership entities for the Housing Authority's HOPE

Vi project phases at Lafayette Gardens. As discussed on page 10 of the provided Draft FinancialAgreement, appended

hereto as Exhibit GJ after the first fixed 15 years (Stage One), the Applicant will pay the City an Annual Service Charge

which will be adjusted in stages over the term of the tax exemption in accordance with N,J.SA 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

i. Stage Two: Beginning on the 1 st day of the 16th year following Substantial Completion until the

last day of the 21 st year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge or 20% of

the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and Improvements;

IIi. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1 st day of the 22nd year following the Substantial Completion until

the last day of the 27th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge or 40%

of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and Improvements;

IV. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 28th year following Substantial Completion until the

last day of the 29th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge or 60% of

the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and Improvements.

The complete calculations for the estimated P.lL.O,T, have provided in the Total Annual Gross Revenue

Computation set forth in Exhibit 0 and the Proposed Statement of Stabilized Property Operations set forth in Exhibit F.

4. Term of Abatement:

The term of the tax exemption being requested by the Applicant is 30 years from the date of substantial

completion of the Development or for period not to exceed the period of time by which the Development is encumbered

by funding provided to the Applicant by the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Agency pursuant to the NJMHFA Law

commencing from the date of substantial completion of the Development (i.e. L1HTC compliance period, amortization

period for permanent debt - if applicable),

5. Description of the Development:
- "

~.~-~._~--i_ .~.'-
----"'----. I
. _ .~ _l..l

.-- .~. ._--..'._.~.._-,_.~--~.. ,

The Property consists of approximately 84,141 square feet (or:t 1.45 ..(

acres) of land located at 344 Woodward Street and 511 Grand Street.

Although the Property is currently vacant, the site was once part of the former

Lafayette Gardens public housing development. The Property, as set forth in

the provided site plan in Exhibit B and as shown to the right, is formerly
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known as Block 2088,1, Lots 9 and 11.03. It is bounded by Woodward Street to the North, Grand Street to the East,

Van Horne Street to the South, and a previous Lafayette Gardens family phase to the West, Glennview Townhouses i,

which is currently under construction.

The site is currently zoned R-3. JCHA completed the demoliion of the three story residential buildings on this

site prior to the Applicant's involvement.

Upon completion, Glennview Townhouses 11- East will consist of a total offorty (40) mixed income rental units,

arranged in four buildings. With the exception of one multi-family "crab"-shaped building (#3 shown above), all of the

remaining buildings are stacked row-homes. The crab building will contain stacked one bedroom flats and the other

three will contain several different types of units built in three and four story stacked row-home fashion, similar to those

constructed at the previous Lafayette Gardens communities, The units are programmed in various configurations with

one unit either above or below the other. Each of these buildings will appear as conventional "row-homes" with each

apartment having a front door (and no shared entrances).

The construction type will be wood frame, using a combination of brick, ground-face masonry units and

horizontal siding and shingles as exterior finish. The overall architectural design is one of traditional urban "row houses"

with architectural elements found within the larger Lafayette neighborhood incorporated in the building facades. A

mixture of gable and hip roof forms and a variety of roof pitches will be used. The roofs will be asphalt shingles,

consistent with the existing materials found in the neighborhood. Window and door openings wil be accented with cast

stone details where appropriate. End units are designed to "turn the corner" with entries on both faces, side bays and in

the line with the roof. All units will have covered entries from the street and outdoor storage is being provided for the

two and three bedroom units. Generous use of landscaping elements including street and ornamental trees, shrubbery

and ground covers will reinforce the existing streets, define the private spaces and enhance the project design. Along

with street extensions, new architecturally compatible street lighting will be provided. Exhibit B contains preliminary site

plan and architectural renderings and floor plans of the structures.

6. Estimated Total Cost of Deve~opment:

The total development cost. as set forth in Exhibit E is estimated to be $ 11,384,716. The construction costs
have been estimated based upon information compiled by the Applicant and its consultants. The Total Development
Cost is subject to approval by the NJHMFA.

7. Financing Structure:

Major financing for the Development will be provided by the following sources:
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1. NJHMFA - in the form of: 1) a permanent 30-yr mortgage; 2) a Special Needs Trust Fund direct

subsidy; 3) and an a 9% Low Income Housing Tax Credit (lLlHTC") allocation from the Federal Low

Income Housing Tax Credit Program

2. Construction and/or Permanent Financing from JCHA

3. A direct subsidy from the Federal Home Loan Bank's Affordable Housing Program

4. A City CDBG allocation

8, Annual Gross Revenue and Expenses: -

A Schedule of Annual Gross Revenue for the Development is attached hereto as Exhibit D. A Projected

Statement of Operations is attached hereto as Exhibit E. As is the case with the Development Costs, the Annual Gross

Revenue and Projected Statement of Operations are subject to approval by the NJHMFA.

9. Construction Schedule:

If the Applicant is successful in securing L1HTC's in the August 2011 Competitive Funding Round, the

construction of the Development is scheduled to commence in May 2012 and will be completed within approximately

fourteen (14) months. This construction schedule is subject to modification based upon the time required to obtain the

necessary funding and governmental approvals and permits from those local, state and federal governmental agencies

involved in the Development.

10. Fair Market Value:

The Current (2011) Land Assessment for the Property, Block 2088.1, Lots 9 and 11.03 is $ 1,530,700. The

Real Estate Tax Assessment attributable to Lots 9 and 11,03 is subject to review and determination by the Tax

Assessor,

11. Current Real Estate Tax Status:

For 2010, no taxes were levied on the property as it is exempt being owned by the JCHA pursuant to a

Cooperation Agreement between the City and the JCHA. Enclosed as Exhibit I is a listing of the public housing

developments that are included in the JCHA's Cooperation Agreements with the City. The subject site is included within

this list.

Provided as Exhibit J, is a listing of other financial agreements in place within Jersey City between the City and

the JCHA, the Lafayette Gardens HOPE Vi ownership entities and/or Michaels Development Company and its
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subsidiaries.

12. Developer Certification as to Commencement of the Development.

With the submission and signing of this application, the Applicant certifies that it will not commence construction

of the Development prior to the receipt of final approval of the tax abatement and the execution of a Financial

Agreement between the City and the Applicant.

13. Estimated Jobs to be created:

Based on the Developer's past experience in the City and the projected scope of work at the Development, it is

anticipated that the Development will generate approximately seventy-one (71) full time equivalent construction jobs

during the term of construction. In addition, it is projected that the Development will generate two direct full time and

one part time permanent employment opportunities upon the commencement of operations of the Development. This

Development will not cause any loss or displacement of current employments opportunities. All of the aforementioned

employment opportunities will be immediately created, The Applicant agrees to execute a Development Employment

Agreement simultaneously with the execution of a financial agreement. The Applicant will also adhere to the Housing

Authority's Section 3 Employment and Contracting Opportunity Requirements.

The Development is exempt from the requirements of City Ordinance #07-123, which may otherwise require the

execution of a Development Labor Agreement. This Application is for tax exemption pursuant to the NJHMFA Law and,

therefore, not a "Tax Abated Development" as defined under Ordinance #07-123.

14. Compliance with State and Local Redevelopment Laws.

With the submission and signing of this application, the Applicant certifies that the Development is located in

the R-3 Zoning District and the Urban Enterprise Zone Area.

The Development wil be constructed in accordance with the terms and conditions of any preliminary site plan

approval granted by the Jersey City Planning Board and in compliance with any state permits or approvals required for

the renovation or new construction. The application for preliminary site plan approval was heard by the Jersey City

Planning Board and approved on May 10, 2011.

15, Compliance with State and Local Law:

With the submission and signing of this application, the Applicant certifies that the Development meets the
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16. Form of Financial Agreement:

Attached hereto as Exhibit G is a proposed form of Financial Agreement between the City of Jersey City and

the Applicant which is modeled after the Glennview Townhomes I agreement that was also sponsored by JCHA and

applied for by an affiliate of the Developer that was executed on August 26, 2008 and approved by Jersey City

Ordinance 08-106.

17. Certificate of Formation:

The Applicant is an Urban Renewal Entity and Limited Partnership formed pursuant to the laws of the State of

New Jersey and is qualified to do business in New Jersey.

Attached hereto as part of Exhibit H is a copy of the Certificate of Formation as an Urban Renewal Entity dated

February 24, 2011. A Disclosure Statement listing the names and address of the members of the Applicant is attached

hereto as part the above noted attachment.

18. Affordable Housing Contribution:

No affordable housing contribution is required pursuant to Section 304-28 of the Code of the City of Jersey

City. This Application is for tax exemption pursuant to the Urban Renewal Law, and this Development contains

affordable housing units that are in excess of 15% of the overall number of units. Therefore, the Development is

entitled to exemption on two separate bases under Section 304-28.

19. Fee:

Since this Application concerns a Development which provides housing for families of low or moderate income,

no application fee is required.

Respectively submitted:

Glennview Townhouses II Urban Renewal Associates, LP

By its Gen ral Partner, Glennview II-Michaels, LLC
,



Gic .J/iew T01vnnouses II - 'East
( ivíew Townnouses II Vrvan 'Rnewa( :Asocíates, L'P

~~:~~~s~_~_ ~í_~~__~::í~~_~:~~=í~~_ ... ._1...----____ ---.-------------- ---- ---------.

EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Address: Property is commonly known 344 Woodward Street and 511 Grand Street, Jersey

City, NJ 07304

Block 2088.1, Lots 9 and 11.03

A metes and bounds description is attached hereto.
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678 Mountain Boulevard Extension
P.O. Box 4039

Warren. NJ 07059
TeI732,560,9700
ww_psands_com

REVISED EXISTING LOT 9, BLOCK 2088.1

CITY OF JERSEY CITY, HUSON COUNTY

NEW JERSEY

Beginnng at the intersection of the southerly line of Woodward Street, 60.00 feet in width, and
the division line between Lots i 1.03 and 9 in Block 2088.1 all as laid down on a certain map
entitled "Amended Preliminar & Final Major Subdivision of Block 2088.1, Lots 2,9, 11, 13, 14
& 15, City of Jersey City, Hudson County, New Jersey" dated 1/05/2010 and last revised
2/16/2010, prepared by Paulus, Sokolowski and Saror, LLC, 67B Mountain Boulevard
Extension, Waren, New Jersey and running from the beginning point herein described; thence,

t.
!.
i.

1) South 30 degrees 59 minutes 58 seconds East, along the said division line, for a
distance of 204.00 feet to a point lying in the norterly right of way line of a forty

seven foot wide right of way; thence,

2) South 59 degrees 00 minutes 03 seconds West, along the said norterly right of way

line of a forty seven foot wide right of way, for a distance of 109.31 feet to the
division line between Lots 8 and 9 in Block 2088.1; thence,

3) North 30 degrees 59 minutes 50 seconds West, along the said division line, for a
distance of 204.00 feet to a point lying in the aforementioned southerly right of way
line of Woodward Street; thence,

4) North 59 degrees 00 minutes 03 East, along the same, for a distance of 109.30 feet to

the point and place of beginning.

Containing a calculated area of 22,298 square feet or 0.512 acres. The above descrption also
being known and designated as Lot 9 in Block 2088.1 on the abovementioned final subdivision
map.

Francis C. Wecht, Jr.
Professional Land Sureyor
NJ License No. 27190
January 5,2010
Revised March 24, 2010
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PS&S
Integrating design & englnee-rlng

67B Mountain Boulevard Extension
P,Q. Box 4039

Warren, NJ 07059
Tel 732.560.9700
www.psands.com

PROPOSED NEW LOT 11.03, BLOCK 2088.1

CITY OF JERSEY CITY, HUDSON COUNTY

NEW JERSEY

Beginning at the intersection of the southerly line of Woodward Street, 60.00 feet in
width, and the southwesterly right of way line of Grand Avenue, 80.00 feet in width, all as laid
down on a certain map entitled "Amended Preliminar & Final Major Subdivision of Block
2088.1, Lots 2, 9, 11, 13, 14 & 15, City of Jersey City, Hudson County, New Jersey" dated
1/0512010 and last revised 2/1612010, prepared by Paulus, Sokolowski and Saror, LLC, 67B
Mountain Boulevard Extension, Waren, New Jersey and running from the beginning point
herein described; thence,

1) South 69 degrees 36 minutes 18 seconds East, along the said southwesterly line of

Grand Street, for a distance of 92.12 feet to the division line between Lots 11.02 and
11.03 in Block 2088.1; thence,

2) South 03 degrees 02 minutes 16 seconds East, along the said division line, for a
distance of 224.51 feet to a point lying a curve in the easterly line of a variable width
right of way; thence,

3) Nortwesterly, along the said easterly right of way line of a varable width right of
way, on a curve bearing to the left having a radius of 70.00 feet with a central angle
of 86 degrees 57 minutes 39 seconds, with a chord bearng of North 77 degrees 31
minutes 07 seconds West and chord distance of 96.34 feet, for a distance along an arc
of 106.24 feet to a point of tangency in the northerly right of way line of a forty seven
foot wide right of way; thence

4) South 59 degrees 00 minutes 03 seconds West, along the said norterly right of way

line of a forty seven foot wide right of way, for a distance of 153.56 feet to the

division line between Lotsl1.03 and 9 in Block 2088.1; thence,

5) North 30 degrees 59 minutes 58 seconds West, along the said division line, for a
distance of 204.00 feet to a point lying in the aforementioned southerly right of way
line of Woodward Street; thence,

6) Nort 59 degrees 00 minutes 03 East, along the same, for a distance of 270.87 feet to

the point and place of beginning.

P:\02488\007\V\Descriptions\RVISED DESCRIPTIONS 03-24-10\NewLotll-03-Blk2088-
lRE.doc
5/212011
Page 1 of2



Containing a calculated area of 62,500 square feet or 1.435 acres. The above description also
being known and designated as Proposed Lot 11.03 in Block 2088.1 on the abovementioned final
subdivision map.

Francis C. Wecht, Jr.
Professional Land Surveyor
NJ License No. 27190
Januar 5,2010

Revised March 24,2010
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EXHIBIT B:

PRELIMINARY SITE PLANS & ARCHITECTURAL RENDERINGS
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EXHIBIT C

DESCRIPTION OF RESIDENTIAL LEASES

GOOD FAITH ESTIMATE OF INITIAL RENTS

1. Name of Tenant: Various - 40 in total

2. Term of Lease: Initial term of lease not less than 1 year.

3. Number of Apartments: 40

Affordable Apartments: 36

Market Rate Apartments:4

Leasing
Unit Type No. of Units Square Footage* Net Monthly Rent**

TenantPortion of
Tier Rent

ACC 1 BR 6 860 $ 466 $ 285

2 BR 8 1,150 $ 466 $ 340

3 BR 3 1,397 $ 466 $ 405

4 BR 2 1,889 $ 466 $ 440

ACC Only 1 BR 1 860 $ 466 $ 466

2 BR 1 1,150 $ 466 $ 466

3 BR 1 1,397 $ 466 $ 466

PBV- NEDS 2 BR 2 1,150 $ 1,206 $ 340

3 BR 3 1,397 $ 1,460 $ 405

Tax Credit 2 BR 2 1,889 $ 688 $ 688

3 BR 7 1,150 $ 787 $ 787

Market 2 BR 2 1,397 $ 1,500 $ 1,500

3 BR 2 1,889 $ 1,850 $ 1,850

40

* The balance of the rents will be paid by HUD pursuant to either a Public Housing Operating Subsidy ("ACC" Subsidy) or

a Housing Assistance Payments Contract (project based vouchers).

**The actual percentage of tenant rent to net rent could vary as HUD regulations restrict housing costs at 30% of annual
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household income, These numbers are currently underwritten at 21 % AMI. The numbers above represent the projected

average rent for each type of apartment.

4, Premium paid directly by Tenant Annually:

a. Fire & other insurance

b. Real Estate Taxes of Assessments

c. Operating and maintenance expenses*

NONE

NONE

UNIT UTILITIES - ELECTRIC, AC, GAS

5. Special Features in the Development

Community facilities: Access to social services, community spaces, wellness center, and tot lots

at the new nearby Barbara and Glennview communities

Immediate Proximity to public transportation, on-site parking, and storage

'Energy Effcient Design (Energy Star) which greatly reduce utility expenses for units
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EXHIBIT D.1

TOTAL ANNUAL GROSS REVENUE COMPUTATION

Year 1

L~asing
Tier

Unit Type UnitCo,ùnt NetRentPUPMTotalRentPerMonth Tota/Annual
Rent

Affordable Units

ACC 1 BR 6 $ 466 $ 2,796 $ 33,553

2 BR 8 $ 466 $ 3,728 $ 44,736

3 BR 3 $ 466 $ 1,398 $ 16,776

4 BR 2 $ 466 $ 932 $ 11,184

ACC Only 1 BR 1 $ 466 $ 466 $ 5,592

2 BR 1 $ 466 $ 466 $ 5,592

3 BR 1 $ 466 $ 466 $ 5,592

PBV- NEDS 2 BR 2 $ 1,206 $ 2,412 $ 28,944

3 BR 3 $ 1,460 $ 4,380 $ 52,560

Tax Credit 2 BR 2 $ 688 $ 1,376 $ 16,512

3 BR 7 $ 787 $ 5,509 $ 66,108

36 $ 23,929 $ 287,149

Less vacancy (5%) $ (14,358)

Less utilties $ (33,188)
Subtotal $ 239,603

Times 8% $ 19,168
Non-Restricted Units

Market 2 BR

3 BR

2

2

1500 $ 3,000 $
1850 $ 3,700 $

$ 6,700

Less vacancy (7%)

Subtotal $

Times 15% $

forii. YR1P,for$

4

36,000

44,398

$ 80,398

$ (5,628)

74,770

11,216

30;:lS4
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EXHIBIT D.2

TOTAL ANNUAL GROSS REVENUE COMPUTATION

Year 16

. 
Leasing
Tier

Unit Type Unit Count NefRentPUPM Tota/Rent Per Month
Total Annual

Rent

Affordable Units

ACC 1 BR 6 $ 627 $ 3,763 $ 45,161

2 BR 8 $ 627 $ 5,018 $ 60,215

3 BR 3 $ 627 $ 1,882 $ 22,581

4 BR 2 $ 627 $ 1,254 $ 15,054

ACC Only 1 BR 1 $ 627 $ 627 $ 7,527
2 BR 1 $ 627 $ 627 $ 7,527

3 BR 1 $ 627 $ 627 $ 7,527

PBV- NEDS 2 BR 2 $ 1,708 $ 3,417 $ 41,002
3 BR 3 $ 1,708 $ 5,125 $ 61,503

Tax Credit 2 BR 2 $ 926 $ 1,852 $ 22,224

3 BR 7 $ 1,059 $ 7,413 $ 88,955

36 $ 31,606 $ 386,432

Less vacancy (5%) $ (19,323)
Less utiities $ (51,705)

Subtotal $ 315,404

Times 8% $ 25,232

4,037 48,447

4,979 59,752

9,017 108,199

Less vacancy (7%) $ (7,574)
Subtotal $ 100,625

Times 15% $ 15,~94
. TOTALYR:16'PILOT $ ...40i~26

*The actual rent in Year 16 will be based upon the HUD published rate for that year and will likely vary from this projection. The

assumed 3% inflation factor above is a projection determined by NJHMFA underwriting assumptions (as shown in the 15 year

Operating Income Projection Schedule found on the following page),
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EXHIBIT E

ESTIMATED TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST

Cost of land acquisition and any buildings thereon
$ -

1

2 Cost of site preparation, demolition and development (inc!. utiity fees) $ 125,000

3 Architects, engineers, surveyors, consultants, experts and attorney's fees (paid or
$ 552,248

payable) in connection with the planning, execution and financing of the Development

4
Cost of necessary studies, surveys, plans, and permits (inc!. geo-tech, market study,
appraisal) $ 29,063

5 Insurance, interest, financing, tax, assessment, and other operating and carrying costs $ 537,756

durinQ construction (inc!. accountinQ/cost audit, title, soft continQency)

6
Cost of construction, reconstruction, fixtures, and equipment related to the real
propert $ 8,481,446

(inc!. interior demo and remediation, contingency)

7 Cost of land improvements $ -

8
Necessary expenses in connection with initial occupancy of Development (FF&E,
marketinQ) $ 55,575

9 A reasonable profit or fee to the developer $ 1,420,058

10
An allowance established by the NJHMFA for working capital and contingency
reserves, $ 183,571

and reserves for any operating deficits

11
Costs of guarantees, insurance or other additional financial security for the $ -

Development

12
Cost of such other items, including tenant relocation, as the NJHMFA shall determine $ -

to be
reasonable and necessary for the development of the Development, less any and all
net
rents and other revenues received from the operation of the real and personal property
on

the Development site during construction, improvement or rehabilitation

TOTAL $ 11,384,716
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EXHIBIT F.1

PROJECTED STATEMENT OF STABILIZED PROPERTY OPERATION

Year 1

ANNUAL INCOME*

Apartments (Tenant Rent & Operating Subsidy)

Affordable Units

less vacancy 5%
Non-Restricted Units

less vacancy 7%

$

$

$

$

$

$

287,149

(14,358)
80,398

(5,628)
Other Income

Total Development Income 347,561

OPERATING EXPENSES:

i.
ADMINISTRATION $ 19,500

II. SALARIES $ 40,625
III. MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS $ 21,350
IV. MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS $ 3,750

V. INSURANCE $ 22,000

Sub Total $ 107,225

Vi. OPERATING $ 37,680
VII. MANAGEMENT FEE $ 28,627
VIII. REAL ESTATE TAXES $ 30,384

IX. RESERVES $ 16,000

VI. SOCIAL SERVICES $ 7,813

ViI. OTHER: Employee Benefis $ 14,101

Sub Total $ 134,604

I Total Operating Expenses: $ 241,829

NET OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEBT SERVICE: $ 105,731
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DEBT SERVICE:

1. Principal and Interest

2. Debt Service on Other Mortgage Loans
$

$

91,942

I Total Debt Service $ 91,942

NET OPERATING INCOME AFTER DEBT SERVICE: $ 13,789

*for detail see Ex.D
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EXHIBIT F.2

PROJECTED STATEMENT OF STABILIZED PROPERTY OPERATION

Year 16

ANNUAL INCOME*

Apartments (Tenant Rent & Operating Subsidy)

Affordable Units

less vacancy 5%
Non-Restricted Units

less vacancy 7%

$

$

$

$

$

$

386,432

(19,323)
108,199

(7,574)
Other Income

Total Development Income 467,734

OPERATING EXPENSES:

i. ADMINISTRATION
II. SALARIES
III. MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS
IV. MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS
V. INSURANCE

Sub Total

$ 30,372

$ 63,282

$ 33,252

$ 5,834

$ 34,268

$ 167,008

$ 58,696

$ 44,591

$ 40,326

$ 24,920

$ 12,161

$ 21,960

$ 202,654

$ 369,662

$ 98,072

VI.

VII.

VIII.

IX.

VI.

VII.

OPERATING

MANAGEMENT FEE

REAL EST A TE TAXES

RESERVES

SOCIAL SERVICES

OTHER: Employee Benefits
Sub Total

I Total Operating Expenses:

NET OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEBT SERVICE:

DEBT SERVICE:

1. Principal and Interest

2. Debt Service on Other Mortgage Loans
$

$

91,942



~nnvíew Townnouses II - 'East
;f£nnvíew Townnouses II Vrvan Renewa( :Asocíates, L'P
c/o jersey Cíty Jfousíng .Jutnoíty 1;- u ..__ ...

I Total Debt Service $ 91,942

NET OPERATING INCOME AFTER DEBT SERVICE: $ 6,130

*The actual NOI in Year 16 will be based upon the adjusted project income (based on the HUD published rate for that year - which wil

likely vary from this projection). Further, the assumed 3% expenses inftation factor above is a projection determined by NJHMFA

underwriting assumptions (as shown in the 15 year Net Operating Income Projection Schedule found on the following page),
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FINANCIAL AGREEMENT

This Financial Agreement (this "Agreement") is made and entered into as of this
day of , 2011, by and between GLENNVIEW

TOWNHOUSES II URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, LP (herein referred to as the
"Redeveloper"), an urban renewal entity formed and qualified to do business in New Jersey
under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of,J 992, as amended and
supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., having its principal ofQçéil~!6'Jersey City Housing
Authority, 400 US Highway #1, Jersey City, New Jersey 0739:§~~reinafter referred to as the
"Redeveloper", and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Mun~,glß~1 CÕ'ì2ration of the County of
Hudson and State of New Jersey, having its principal ~(tl~d\lat 280 âl~¥i(,Street, Jersey City,
NJ 07302 (hereinafter referred to as the "City"). .j:úic/'\" "::;';)';:0!;:,

.":;;:rJ~!~i¥:..'.(.

w:::::~t~;\:~?:
.~~,'

WHEREAS, of the forty (40) units, nine (9) wil be one bedroom aparments,
seventeen (17) wil be two bedroom apartments, twelve (12) wil be three bedroom apartments,
and two (2) wil be four bedroom apartments ("Development").
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WHEREAS, on , 201 1, in accordance with the Act, the Entity fied
a written application to the City for approval of a tax exemption for the Development; and

WHEREAS, the City made the following findings:

A. Relative Benefits of the Development when compared to the costs:

1. the curent real estate tax would generate ,".. , if the property

were subject to conventional taxes, whereas, the Anliai Service charge as
estimated, and wil generate revenue to the Citx~\6l;~¡ìirpximately $30,380;

.~~~l~~r ~~!'::;~f~~~~t-~

2. prior to the redevelopment, this prope,~~~~%a. public': :", ::"Lng development

which under the cooperation agreemeijø'generated no real eStà)'te,\tax revenue;

.(i ".~,': \,'tlr¡¡~~~~~",:,:/,
3. it is expected that the Developmê :§'mll crea~tg.pproximatelys;eY~Í1ty-one

'.'~'~:-~;':)è;;',., . _,8k::),~~':;c:,::"... . ',~?l
(71) jobs during construction and two nè,w:\~¥:;time'and one par::time

"~:~ ~-: ::;:.:.~,:);'-permanent jobs;-"'"

. :.:"~:., .:~...

._ii~,~tne relativer~tability and predictability of the annual service charges wil
rrHil$i~,'~!pe D))5éiopment more attractive to investors and lenders needed to

finar6:e~ll~iÐevelopment ; and
".:;:t;;K;
:~r'~'

-/ .....

2. the rêlative stability and predictability of the service charges wil allow the
owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance to
the building over the life of the Development, which wil insure the likelihood
of the success of the Development and insure that it wil have a positive impact
on the surrounding area; and
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WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance adopted on
201 i, the Municipal Council approved the above findings and the tax exemption application
and authorized the execution of this agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe mutual covenants herein contained, and
for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

~,4i~~?'"

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVIS:fÒI;$\:
z;..,,:;~. L":-%; ':~'~ ';;'5~,\!at';;ii;~,:;,

Section 1.1 Governing Law;,ç;:i¡;,\',.""""

Ths Agreement shall be governed by the~!1~;;ions orthe Long T:l~ ~Kemption
Law, as amended and supplemented, NJ.S.A. 40A:;2~#l:ßt seq";~EìCecutive Ord~~¡~~1he Mayor,

02-003, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance ,'~¡'~:h'Ji~th~iized the execUtion of this
"'~:::::t;~~:~",

Agreement. It being expressly understogd and agreed that'îl~tÇity expressly relies upon the
facts, data, and representations contain~âfrtn~;ti.r,~PPlication;'~~1~l:ed hereto as Exhibit 3, in

granting this tax exemption. ':;;";~~:,::d!:!kJiVk~(,'
\~( . ''-~:~V:::r;;''.'' :,,:-.. . ;:~'.(

.,,'~;:"... .

§Jtfi~)t.~):.;~.,,_ .

Section 1.2 General Definitions
:ó;"+l

-t:~it~;:';';;:::;:"

Unless specifisaíft:;;~%¥4~g otherwise¿tJhe contextotherwise requires, when used in
this Agreement, thefoil;qWing ten¥~ shall have thêfoilowing meanings:tv:., ~~ ~:i.' ~ ~

i.

II.

III. AllowablcProfit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at
by adding 1.25% to the anual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity's initial

permanent mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or
guaranteed by a governental agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar
charge, if payable on a per anum basis, shall be considered as interest for this

purose. If there is no permanent mortgage financing, or if the financing is internal
or undertaken by a related pary, the Allowable Profit Rate shall be the greater of
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iv.

V.

12% or the percentage per anum arived at by adding 1.25% per anum to the
interest rate per anum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate
on mortgage financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The
provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.

Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the
Development of whatever kind or amount, whether receiveg,as rent from any
tenants or income or fees from third paries, including Qtltffibl'limited to fees or
income paid or received for parking, laundry,healtll;eí~1?,cuser fees or other services

(such as lease premiums for views, fireplaces, etG.~É;'N~â~~M£tions wil be allowed

for operating or maintenance costs, including~;~huti;hpt limit~1~l~Lgas, electric, water

and sewer, other utilities, garbage remova.L.;~âiiris~ance cha~'g~¡t~~hether paid for

by the landlord, tenant or a third pary,:e~.ept for ç:ustomary ope;a :" . "expenses of

commercial tenants such as utilities,'iri;~ ..".., Q~ andl~es (including P"t,: W~nts in

lieu of taxes) which shall be deducted from~';~øs_s.iítêvehue based on'1lie actual
';~r:~~::;;.:;,;;:r

amount of such costs incured.é'fi)~;':h
. . '(tl;t1Qt;:tJ;;;"" ."\;Kf~~t~~t;;,:. ... .... .

Annual Service Charge - ThèfaiøWt'ineEntity has'agr~ed to pay the City for
municipal services supplied to tÎI~.D~~êi~pll~nt, whiQir~um is in Lieu of any taxes
on the Improvenierits, pursuant t~:;!N.J,$Â.4ÔX~i2øfi;2-.

~.'~?(.;.:?;;-:'.~" - ,', . ;;\~-;-~:~':~'" ;::::::
..~','" .

ViI. Certifcate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in par, pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 52:27D-133.

ViII. Debt Service - The amount required to make anual payments of principal and
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interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent
mortgage or other financing including returns on institutional equity financing and
market rate related party debt for the Development for a period equal to the term of
this agreement.

ix. Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation
imposed upon by the terms of this Agreement, or under tlledLaw, beyond any

applicable grace or cure periods. ,:::,;S:i'.'.';'

Entity - The term Entity with this Agreement sir;~~~view Townouses
II Urban Renewal Associates, L.P., which En,ttl¥ ís'formed åttttSlpalified pursuant

:"'.:'''~''''-'Y '::' , '_'~.:~',~:-_"~'

to NlS.A. 40A:20-5. It shall also include,a:Y sul)'sequent purcíi&~~):s or successors
,-;:J: ,.;;::~t;;,.~:,,~

in interest of the Development, proviqenitliey are (prmed and opeÌ'ài~~:winer theLaw.":\IA'è ";'X',:r
. ':~';;:';~::_';'~ . :::;::.,'.:'. ;:. '. //..';;'::.(:.'.:. c

';'7:".. ,"~'- ....~

; ~..;.. ,:,:;.

X.

XI. Improvements or Devel0pllJmt - Any buildin:g;Ic~mictue or fixture permanently
affixed to the land and to be '¿~~~nR£ted and tax e*je~Rt~d tider this Agreement.

'¡:::,:'.t;:(lrt';:~~i;;igj:'i ..... ... ."'n.;¡~t'/'

In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax,:loreçl,šlj:t~:r4 snrary proceeding by which

the City may enfQ,,çe.,a lien for t~~s.aliêand~\\ti~by tax sale, under NJ.S.A.
:=,t~'l'.:~.~W;:?t:~~i.;..t~',- ":):f~,~';;' _J::":'-

54:5-1 to 51~;ý':129'tQL~A:5-129 et sêCl. .:,:".:\- - - "('~,:;::' ".,

Land T~~~~1~.ar¡ltoftaes ass~id on the value ofland, if any, on which
theJ::x¥J~,i()pmeitt~~¡:~;¿å~8ätrijg~):tf~p~iicable, taxes on any pre-existing

.:t.;::/.: ;~:\: ?;/;;¿;:;(":., \~:::::.. :"_ ~,\ .;::~;:::::-:.:, , '.-, ",-:::.:,~;;::~::v.:-

impróvl~h;~nt~.Lard;3.~es may bè.exempt; however, if Land Taxes are levied,
i; Entity shaïi~f~g~i:ye aCf~~~t;,tigainst the Anual Service Charge.

':.- ":~'~~~~".'" - - -. ..:. /!~~~~~~ò ..;;"/;'::~,~~~" ..~:
R!"~~a;~ Tax payjfi'ts - p~t:Uents made on the quarterly due dates, including

ai¥i~&ed grace pétfods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor
and th~¡'~~CcO~:lybior.

XII.

XIII.

XiV.

XV. Law - La"Y:shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and
supplemented, NJ.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor 02-003,
relating to long term tax exemption, as it may be amended and supplemented;
Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance 08-106, which authorized the execution of this
Agreement; and Ordinance , as may be amended or supplemented
from time to time, which requires the execution of a Development Labor
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Agreement, and all other relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances,
resolutions, rules and regulations.

XVI. Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall
be the greater of:

(a) The amount ofthe total taxes levied against allrç,al property in the area
,,"-08'.'..'."'..

covered by the Development in the last ful!'i:~ yeahn which the area
was subject to taxation, or in the case of .. ... . mpt property, the
Development ed tax levy based upon,..' asse ,".., value for the year in

which the application is fied, wI¥~ih,. o,unt the' -,~!¡:~s agree would be$ ; or A(~"\,'¡îl,,,.,,
(b) The sum of $30, 384 per year~~~WlP.ch siiii~wil be proratedL0hly in the

years in which Substantial Comì5í~~g#í:g~c~is and this Ai~eement

terminates. ,-;~:~i¡ltli;;i
:: '~(!~i~;~~t\.,.,., "',~ ::';~:'~;-"S'.

iyt';;i(:... . .. ;\~ri:;". .'. .....
The Minimum AnÙ"ar~lèÎiì~~\Çharge shal1;p-e'paid in each year in
which the Annual S~t¥ice c~~gøi;.te,lç~lateâpursuant to NlS.A.
40A:Å.Q;:J~ o~ this Agr¿~l1eÌír w~~lti\~~~:i~ss than the Minimum Annual

S,efV~i~~tØl~ge..:,:;; .. .,::" :':::.:~ -, '-..

XVII. Net pr~~~;d:j~~~;;;o-ros,~:leyenues ofth~îEiitity less all operating and non-operating
. -:\n('(\ .""'~:;~:'\¿':':;/::"~~;":'~'. ',_ _ ,_ :-,;', .

exp~lw,esof the Etttl:W, âll'de;tei;ptlsHn accordance with generally accepted

z ;;å~:êdiîïti~~llf~0;:~pié~~W~:~~~ ;' .."..;'
.,. :di(::.';);,;, (1) Th~¡lalJall b~:t~~i~ded in expenses: (a) all Annual Service charges paid

i:~i~;.:;_ pursJ~t to N.l.s.A. 40A:20-12; (b) all payments to the City of excess

:':(tc.,x; profit~'~lirsuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:20-15 or NJ.S.A. 40A:20-16; (c) an
;\,,)?;;:,aru,a~V¡~mount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the straight line method-

:;;th~;gi~rarual amounts) the Total Development Cost and all capital costs
då~termined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

of any other entity whose revenue is included in the computation of
excess profits over the term of this agreement; (d) all reasonable annual
operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is
included in the compùtation of excess profits including the cost of all
management fees, brokerage commissions, insurance premiums, all
taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting, or other professional
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service fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office
supplies and payments into repair or maintenance reserve accounts; (e)
all payments of rent including but not limited to ground rent by the
Entity; (f) all debt service, if applicable; and
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ARTICLE II - APPROVAL

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be
constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditlrf,i''JQf this Agreement and

the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be construct::::16n c~itain property known

on the Official Tax Assessor's Map of the City as: Block 208&~~t'9 and 11.03, more
,1'.~;~~:7 ~%t~':t~.~

commonly known by the street address of 344 Woodward S~~et and':~.~,prand Street, and
described by metes and bounds in Exhibit i attached heX~t-e;;. .'~"'."§~(i*\,

,__('r.... . -'. "":':L'~~?~~~'_

.' )~(~~~~;.. ~:::;~fr~~:~~~ :'r
Section 2.2 Approval of Entity,.:,:::;, i;~;:~1i'rg;

Approval is granted to the Entity whose CertiR~Ate,:,qp:P~;rration is attach~d hereto as
Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Cert~ficate contains aÙ)~~;requisite provisions ofthe Law;
has been reviewed and approved by the:~e;~issioner of th~'\~eRtiment of Community
Affairs; and has been filed with, as approPtråt~~~:,pffce ofth¿¡:~,ateTreasurer or Office of
the Hudson County Clerk, all in accordanc6';¥,ithN~~;t~~h:4:9A:20~5;~

. .:.

Section 2.3 ImprovemeIJJ~~fQ::~:~:;Constructed\;'

, ~I '- "\;'':' ~.:~':,,'
..":.;::;::.

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the property upon which the Development
is to be constructed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements wil be
managed and controlled as follows:
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The Entity represents that it is the owner of the Land upon which the Development is to
be constructed and wil manage and control the Development. The City acknowledges that the
Entity may enter into a management agreement for the Development and wil pay a
management fee in accordance with BID regulations as provided in the Entity's agreement with
HUD, which fee was disclosed in its tax exemption application. The City acknowledges that
the Entity may enter into futue management agreements so long as such agreements are not
used to reduce the City's economic benefits under this Agreement ançl¡,tle management fees to
be paid are comparable to those disclosed in the application..:l';fii;"....,

Section 2.6 Financial Plan
. :;;~:~'.~1~~\:\.

-,;:~:,-.~:,:- -'~'; ,~ " -.', -".
..~:.:~ .

\ .:~;;:: ~

The Entity represents that the Improvements sntr\Ii13è,~rianced~~'~~a~~Fdance with the

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plar;)~~~ts forth estimated Tài~;R,eveiopment

Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Developrt~~t~~çost, th&;~9UrCe offunds:~~~;tiîiterest

rates to be paid on construction financing, the sourc~;'~~;:aQ'ilt:'of paid-in capitäi, and the
terms of any mortgage amortiztion. \\')Î,,," 'ti\'i~,,

Section 2.7 Statement of Rental SChednieŠSjndLe~Se Termst':",;:,."....

The Entity represents that its good fai~t~:~:~ì~f'ik~ in;:if~:nta schediles and lease
terms are set forth in Exhibit.7.. ",.. .' ..; t;.\::';:C

;~;':'-.::.:-,;' . " -.-,
., . - .'\:J~ '::~\~~:.:;t

':.:~.',:.::~ .:-:.

AiTICLÊ;;ÌlI - DURA TÎON OF AGREEMENT
. . -. :.--:..;:::~~:t~;:-~..~..

.'; ;~.':
',:'.;"..- : ;::':_::~-;~~;:

ARTICLE iv - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE

Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following payments to
the City:
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(i) City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Anual

Service Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 8.0% of the Anual Gross
Revenue for the low and moderate income units. The Anual Service Charge for the
unrestricted units will be equal to 15.0% of the Anual Gross Income. The Annual

Service Charge shall be biled initially based upon the Entity's estimates of Anual
Gross Revenue which shall not be less than the its estimate of Gross Revenue as set
forth in its Financial Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit 6.Thereafer, the Anual Service
Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with this Agreemellt~l/;.:

~':;.~;:'

,,-'- '.~?~:~~':?~~~.~

A Minimum Anual Service Charge shall be,.,,:v: 'bègi~pg on the effective date
",;.g \;/",r-.

of this Agreement. The Annual Service Charge sli~ll ö'(~ due on.first day of the
i.;.;Jg~::::~~~., ~~. r4'~~~:~l.~

month following the Substantial Completion 9#;tñ¿'Development .'1îllle event the
Entity fails to timely pay the Minimum AitlID Service Charge or th6':... "llal,Service
Charge, the unpaid amount shall bear theiM:gÛ~Si rate ~~'ipterest permittè~~Hrthe case of

unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until paid.::j;ù:;,. .,.', .,
;' ".:,~/-\~~:-;~::

(ii) County Service Charge:ar:wn?unt equal toi~:~~'nfthe Annual Service Charge

upon receipt of that charge, for re~ÍtanetJo the Count1;~¥2:tlJeCity.
~"-::" ",' (:':'~':.~:~:"/';;~';:;~'" ",...'.::.:", ".-" i

Section 4.2 Staged Adjnstment. ...... .u'1Jlj¡¡\fGî~1;s., ,.

The Annual se~fg~'têi'Re shall be a~ltt;ed, in Sti'~s over the term of the tax
exemption in accor.~~~~,~ith NJ~~:.A. 40A:20-re(b) as follows:

'.'~¡~i;t!:~::. A~t!;.,. . "~i~¡ri!;l'"

i. ~One:..'F~lm:j~tfieifit~:~:.' . '¡Q;f,~~ëmonth following Substantial Completion

.':;,:eJ~st daY.~l.~l\the fiftëe1t1t'year, the Anual Service Charge shall be 8.0%
and 1.5':~~¡tW th~1~~(iand.moderate income units and market rate units,

respecti v~î~~~"¡.:':,;; ... . .
"(,:.,

:'i,Stage Two: :a~ginni~g on the 1st day of 
the 16th year following Substantial

'd~ffletion ~iil the last day of the 21st year, an amount equal to the greater of
the 'A!Ya.i,Service Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on
the vaf~;if the land and Improvements;

III. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1 st day of the 22nd year following the

Substantial Completion until the last day of the 27th year, an amount equal to
the greater of the Annual Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes
otherwise due on the value of the land and Improvements;
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iv. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 28th year following Substantial
Completion until the last day of the 29th year, an amount equal to the greater of
the Anual Service Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on
the value of the land and Improvements.

iv. Final Stage: Beginning on the 1st day of the 30th year following Substantial
Completion through the date the tax exemption expire~f,::~ amount equal to the

greater of the Anual Service Charge or 80% ofth~,!,#f8ùntofthe taxes
otherwise due on the value of the land and Impr.. ."~,, ts.

.';~lt~~' . .

.d~¡i¡:ti\, "'. .'~.¿J1~;~h.

Section 4.3 Credits ßb~f,:"'", ''''\~~;?'

The Entity is required to pay both the Annuài;'S~:rice Gliarge and the Lantr~Tax

Payments. The Entity is obligated to make timely Land;~~¡:P£ym~nts, including any tax on the
pre-existing improvements, in order to qeentitled to a Laråit~a¥credit against the Annual
Service Charge for the subsequent year. ;~~~),$ntity shall be ~ritftieg to predit for the amount,

without interest, of the Land Tax Paymentg;:Pf~à~¡\~9l;~ last four,i;~'(téding quarerly
"'"'- '-,':' ~'--?':"',-"::' .: _:'.~.,

installments against the Annual Service ChaEge. InapYKèÌY;aiËrti:ai the Entity fails to make any

Land Tax Payments wheniq';~¿;~d owing, suC~9c~Jf~qu~ri¿,~~iiäîi render the Entity ineligible
for any Land Tax PaYnieiit!èièattg:;against the Amual Servi¿e Charge for that quarer. No

credit wil be applie(jij~alnst the~ual Serviceti.harge for parial payments of Land Taxes.
In addition, the City shiltli'ollaye, ai~l1g this remedýi:ahd other remedies, the right to proceed

"'-;;~'~':';:';"_:, . .,,;f~.,~;:. ;~~':;;.~;:,:':: ::_~r:'-': _' , ;',"~

against the PWl?egx:Iursuarlt;%~¡the''Iii:'R:e.nræ~foreclosure Act, NlS.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or

declare a:~efa\ílt:áítl;t~r~inate7~~~:Agree~~~t.

SectJ6it:~t~:~Quarteriy i~'~i,~Mmentg\.'//.

Th:'~~tl1YeXpreSSiy~~~ees that the Anual Service Charge shall be made in quarerly

installments oIÌ't~~s~dates wl1en real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to

adjustment for ov;ilif~":Æl;e.f6ayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar
year. In the event that', tf'Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount
shall bear the highest tate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on the
land until paid.

Section 4.5 Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an anual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the
Anual Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two
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(2%) percent of each prior year's Anual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on
or before December 31st of each year, and collected in the same maner as the Annual Service
Charge. In the event that the Entity fails to timely pay the Administrative Fee, the amount
unpaid shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens
on the land until paid.

Section 4.6 Material Conditions
,,;~!f!l::~~;t\. .

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely pai:ß%i~!s of Land Taxes,
'::"~'r. \;,.~~~: .;,~

Minimum Annual Service Charges, Anual Service Charges"J;lùdlkgadjustments thereto,
Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions,widj:~y int~f~~t'ltliereon, are Material
Conditions of this Agreement. ",:":8:': .......';Vi;.,f'~::¿::' ::,'~:.::~;

ARTICLE V - DEVELOPMENT EMRøi~MEN1\AND CONT~~T:IN'G
AGREEMÈNi,. 0 ,;t' :~::..

'J'~ilUt:: ~.

Section 5.1 Development Employment,and Contracting\¡~~:g,eement
\~~jgb~';;:,....,.. ."'!J~~¡k::~,.

In order to provide City residents ãt,âtb'.. 'esses with ce~~ëÍÌployment and other
economic related opportunities, the Entity i§L~ubjeÊ¥!~~itl~.tenIls aHd conditions of the

Development Employment a.g Contracting Agreeïh~~t,.âW~n~á hereto as Exhibit 8.
?;:'~-;":;';:~r::::~\ ':::::~.. ' . ':, ':,"::-' _~t~:è'~- ".:/:~:

ART;'~;~~~~;:~ CERTIFI~ATE OF 6CCUPANCY

Section 6.1 Certific::::d~~¡~ç.~uP~~çYi.
~,'~'.'--'.", . '~'.".'-'/' ,'. ;';':".:.:._. ...-.-.:'
'~,:\,;-.;,::~)' , . -.....; ;-.:.,.:;

It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax
Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy. Failure of the Entity
to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the preceding paragraph, shall not
militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City, including, if appropriate retroactive
biling with interest for any charges determined to be due, in the absence of such fiing by the
Entity.
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ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1 Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established
and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

:~\~-,?: .':;::..:....

-. :: ~:::~:'

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports ',;, Î.\'::b'.

~.;;.;¡\):-~~.:\
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conduct the audit, including reasonable attorneys' fees if appropriate, shall be biled to the
Entity and paid to the City as par of the Entity's Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments
shall accrue interest at the same rate as for a delinquent service charge.

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES
~:,:/11~\.~;:.::.-

Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves iii;:

Durg the period of ta exemption as provided herel~~~' shall he snbject to a
limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions ofN!f~~l;g..'~aPA:20- ... ..,~ ,h~ Entity shall have

the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpartï"rentåls, and reascììraJ¡i~tcontingenciesJ"~~~~ "'~f~~?::~;;:.
in an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the GIR:~~~Revenue:,gfthe Entity fot:;tN~):L~st full

fiscal year preceding the year and may retain stith p~~:Pfthe((1lcess Net Profits ifs'is necessary
to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided i~':t~ji~tS\:~\Â. 40A:20-15. Th~ reserve is to

be non-cumulative, it being intended thatno fuher credit~;tiereto shall be permitted after the
reserve shall have attained the allowabl;0;t~. ... f.five (5%) pdFC,~:Qt oftl1e preceding year's

Gross Revenue. Pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A~':,. -' ere is expr~'.,,'y:~xcluded from the
calculation of Gross Revenue and Net Profiflin th,. "::".' tionliExcess Profit, any gain

realized by the Entity on tnf,:'§We of any concÌ~OOtlifu uni ether or not taxable under
.:: -:;-.:..'~:..~~i?';'::;'~r":;1.r,. ::'~~~_:'~

federal or state law.'''''';:Lth;;¡.'...:-i:";::" ..::~:t:.!:~: ::'
,/JJír~;;t':'. ';~W¡) .,t.

Section 8.2 Annual Pâynrept of E'lcess Net Profit";,,
:. .. ,;........ . . \\:;Wfßf~;;:'if:¡£;:~rrí01~:f:'i'~.ë:i;;::.:;',;r': '.'

In the-;eMeÎ~~n~'!'et Pr~~iis"of the Ehii:tY; in any fiscal year, shall exceed the Allowable
Net Pro~:ttf~r such.'1lê~~~,..theri:"lr\E~tity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the

end qf:§:~~tifiscal year, ~htt~jpay sJÕ~;;eX'êess Net Profits to the City as an additional service

charge; '~t~Ñ.\i4ed, howeve;:;;î~t the E6iity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to

aforementiòri~lm~agraph S::lr,1iThe calculation of the entity's excess net profits shall include
those developiTêi~~'§psts diri~tly attributable to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any

'.l'::~-":'.',)_, f.b,
other costs exclud~TI1~tliet!àefinition of Total Development Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) ofthis
agreement even thoug'y~ß~se costs may have been deducted from the Development costs for

puroses of calculating the anual service charge.

Section 8.3 Payment of ReservelExcess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the
fiscal year of the Entity. Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City

14



the amount of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the excess Net
Profit, if any.

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1 Approval

Any sale or transfer of the Development shall be void uness,,§'ßpl;Qved in advance by
:;~~,:- -c':-:,.

Ordinance of the Municipal CounciL. It is understood and agreed .. ., the Cìty, on written
application by the Entity, wil not uneasonably withhold its . a sale of the
Development and the transfer of ths Agreement provided: l',~e ne ';Jjty does not own any

other Development subject to long term tax exemption,at1the iiìne of traI~ter; 2) the new Entity
is formed and eligible to operate under the Law; 3)tng:'EntitÝis not then i¿:tdla~lt of this
Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations;iI~er this Æ~feement is fulÌýt~~~~ed by the
new Entity, 5) the Entity shall pay the City a transfef~tee:,equat¡fá:2,% of the thea~lirrent

. -'".:c::"~ .'$~._ _:':;" :'~,:.. .

Annual Service Charge as required by NJ .S.A. 40A:20':PQiK
'~:. ". r~~.fi~~~\:.
, :;.;;~(.,-:.

Section 9.2 Fee~'1l'l~~!1;:r'~"~!';':'1i:)" .'::'(~A;;;;~W.t):

Where the consent or approval of th~PtYts~~~b~l.ror appr¿val of a change in
ownership or sale or transf~r'9fthe Developrr~ntithe Êni1t£;s.lfäii be required to pay to the
City a new tax exempti9l1'f~p~i1gatipn fee for th~1~gal and ad~inistrative services of the City,

as it relates to the reyt~rY, prepa;~tipn and/or sub'rission of documents to the Municipal
Council for appropriat~;;itçt:9n on¥.l~ requested as'~l~ent. The fee shall be non-refudable.

.;:.y;;"):. ,-. .':a;'~;i~.~,'~.'...\.A ;..~"....'.'.'R:;,.:.'jT:'lI;:C:?::!'LfV;E;h($:)..:.....'"~.:,;.....:.'C'.".:.;:O::" .'.M" PLIANCE

"~i::Jr-ut~\:~::';-~-::\~::~~:~.:~L.);hi~~~(~:~" ' ~~f;::~' A "

SeCtiJil&~opera:;~~n~,4~t~\~,/

Dû~,,nie term of tit~tAgreëínent, the Development shall be maintained and operated
in accordance::wltthe provisi6ns of the Law. Operation of the Development under this
Agreement shaii.ii&~lærly ~:tä~rminable as provided byNJ.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq., as curently
amended and supplèfuent~'ti, but also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to
comply with the Law .Sh~ll constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among

its other remedies, have the right to terminate the tax exemption.

Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-
005, and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status.
The Entity's failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a
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Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to
terminate the tax exemption.

ARTICLEXl- DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the ter::;ó(this Agreement or
failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the LalMJirbeyo~d any applicable

notice, cure or grace period',:iFß\t~i~¡1.~.,..,~",,:~.,:.:,..,:...;.c_,:.'..:~..:.,.,:._,

';~~i ':"Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default ,.":6~:~~'!.:b\')if~;:1)~¡,,
,~:~~::.:":, '~:~~/~;'~;'/(

Should the Entity be in Default, the City s~ll'send wr~~en notice to iìl~sllrity of the
.;.st:';~:~;~~L, \'¡;_, "-'(t~:~~1r~:.;;~~'-

Default (herein referred to as "Default Notice").:.TI~j!~,e.fault N;ettice shall set forrli:fwith

paricularity the basis of the alleged Default. The Entii~¡~ñall?H~~~'sixty (60) daÝ~, from receipt
of the Default Notice, to cure any Defanlt which shall be"t¡¥1.~:81e and exclusive remedy

available to the Entity. However, if, in th.~~teasonable opiniori¡~litle City, the Default canot
be cured within sixty (60) days using reas'§ria:&fk¡'4Higence, the êit~;:WilI extend the time to

, -'-.;. :Y.'~:"'" '~;:i"-
.~,;-.. . .cure.
....':..-;;;./d::/;.,~,:..

_/_._, ,J;,)'.tK::t:;/:::.
Subsequent to SUGli-;'siS&1y!(60) days, orå(:y approveq"êxtension, the City shall have the

right to terminate this~greem~m.:~, accordanc~¡~ith Section 12.1.
-~. '", -;~'r,,:'., "-'''-'~''-' ; '., -,
,.,--,....;¡...::.:;'.:i,::

Should the Entitl~~il1 det~wtdJte to afailttt~ to pay any charges defined as Material
Conditions.iiiSer:ti,~IJ~.8, th~;lE~tit~'¿Ìiàii:hÖtrbe"subject to the default procedural remedies as

providecl,Jjeï~i~'bût;~h~l;i.!'~llow:tij~:"Çity to pro~eed immediately to terminate the Agreement as

provüt~4Jn Aricle Xllhet~~p.. . ~,.,L..
,'.; '. .,..:/.':::~.: ": :;~'\/~~~ '. .

Section iill¡iftf;medies U p~jl:Defaùl~..

The C~;#;~~l, amon,ilts other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property
pursuant to the In :R~-' .:.;;"\fPoreclosure Act, NlS.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or may declare a
Default and terminate)iBl's Agreement. Any default arising out of the Entity's failure to pay
Land Taxes, the Minimum Anual Service Charge, Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing
Contribution, or the Anual Service Charges shall not be subject to the default procedural
remedies as provided in Aricle XI herein, but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to
terminate the Agreement as provided in Article XII. All of the remedies provided in this
Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be
cumulative and concurent. No termination of any provision of this Agreement shall deprive
the City of any of its remedies or actions against the Entity because of its failure to pay Land
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Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, Affordable Housing
Contribution or Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due and
owing at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if there
had been no termination. Furher, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum
Anual Service Charge, the Annual Service Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution,
Administrative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein
provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a ~~i;iYer of the rights to

terminate the tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax FOf(;'!:9ig.~~;~"action or any other. -,j~specified remedy. .",,:n~.i&\,
In the event of a Default on the par of the EntitY,l!,;(~:~',set fort in Arcle

iv, the City among its other remedies, reserves the riEliý~f6~~r02eed agai~Št;!~:,Entityls land

and property, in the maner provided by the In R~mrForeclos4fe Act, and aly,::" ,,.

supplementary or amendatory thereof. WhenevettW~SW9rd ta~~$:"appear, or is apàf~ii: directly
'-/::,;.,~~;.~ " :,~~~¿;-::' "- .~:~.:'

or impliedly to mean taxes or municipal liens on land,"'§ijglis-tátutory provisions shall be read,
as far as is pertinent to this Agreement, as if the charges ~¿lie;i¡ixes or municipal liens on land.

ARTICL~~:iERNA~"l~"f"

Seetioni:::e ::::i::t:g¡i~:f::: :~~¿::~~tit :thin the time period

provided in Section,;ll;j~;;:the CitÝ;-llay terminat~;thisfigreement upon thirty (30) days written
notice to the Entity.(herbi~tpeferr~~Ltoas the "NoÚtkofTermination").

"'1.( '::'~-'-'\

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of
the Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement,
the Entity shall provide a final. accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to
the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any excess Net Profits. For puroses of
rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the end of
the fiscal year for the Entity.
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Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the
Development shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be
assessed and conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt
taxable property in the City.

Section 12.5 Termination Payment
;."

"::;''fií::~~J:::.;~.~.:..,,,..:.'N
r.+::;';;'

'-.\~;:~:;:'

ARTICLE XLV - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or
relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right
to terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided
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herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit any right of recovery of any amount which the
City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall b~Jl~ed as par defendant
in any action alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of~' . '1'ìJfovisions of this

Agreement and/or the provisions ofNJ.S.A. 40A:20-1 et~, t1lef(':,shall indemnify and hold

the City harless against any and all liability, loss, cost, eXt"êr~e (i~dî~&.iJ1g reasonable

attorneys' fees and costs, through trial and all stages o(aff:¡,'ap~eal, incltidi¡~:,the cost of

enforcing this indemnity) arising out of Agreement.Jif;dditi~n, the EntityêUjtessly waives all
statutory or common law defenses or legal princü~~fs~Which wqnld defeat the~~:Q~éS of this
indemnification. The Entity also agrees to defend th¿~~Ûit,at itmb~ expense, coJH~~l to beSi;~t~::J~..::._ ¿¿~~r- "," 0;.
selected by the City, subject to the reasonable consent of;íJ:e1t:pntity. However, the City

maintains the right to intervene as a part,,t ereto, to which(iiijtøprention the Entity consents;

the expense thereof to be borne by the d':~~_i~(;:,;::;:(, "~S~;~'~~£i'r:''''

ARTIC¿Ê,.xvi~~ÖTiCE

Section 16.1 Certified MlÌil;;~~.:,:'i,
,,::..~.;. -;:."::-:'

:_' .:.....,

:~.ù/~- .'

..\::: . . . ,"',-. ::":;"

;..',-:

Any notice rêa~~~dherei~er to be senthy¡-either pary to the other shall be sent by
certified or registered m~H~~~etpnlte~,etPtxeguested.

. '-"~-'_';."".::: '-.", . - ", ,;.:-:.,.-" '.C-; ""'-;~e:.i:':-;'::;:-:'.-."i:,: -,:.

Section ..1.....6.,...t~':~~;~~;;~~;:~.'.;;...,:.'I,'..~tu.',.,,.. ..,....... .,S~::;" ....'.':,:,". 'J "_"'::~;~'" '..;; "). .'i.
J':':'~ep sent by th~:ditY,to th~;~b¥lty the notice shall be addressed to:

.. . ' -~ ,¡ - - .
'. '-;..:,

"",i.(lennview To~ouses II Urban Renewal Associates, LP

Th~~:ßast Stbw Road, PO Box 994
MarWötr;N:é\: Jersey 08053

....: \.,',.-.,

Attn: Joel Silver, Vice President

and

Jersey City Housing Authority
400 U.S. Highway #1
Jersey City, New Jersey 07306
Att: Maria T. Maio, Executive Director
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unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this
Agreement, of the name and address of Entity's Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such
Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity

City of Jersey City, Office ofthe City Clerk
City Hall
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 ';")'::-;'.

.: , ~

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the B:i~~b,*dh¡:i;trator, and theTax Collector
unless prior to the giving of notice, the Çity shall have notifie~,:the Entity otherwise. The notice
to the City shall identify the Developmerlt¡tg;)¥liich it relates,'ti:;:~i'.,t~eUrban Renewal Entity

and the Property's Block and Lot number)':'.\.'~\¥.;::;;':"::","ii~,,~:/;

ARTICLE X~Îi~SE~:9~ííßlìÎY
.i~~;~~::';F~J%lJfl~f:,~;-.". .\:~~~? '.:;". ;'.."

Section 17.1 Several)iíi~ .,.:rr~?. ';

If any term, c:~;~or c~¡'~OfthiS J~ement or the Application, except a
Material Conglpi:9tl~1~Ål~li b~'j~~gi~Üy'd~¿iàr~n-io' be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder

of this AgrêeñientÕf'ia~i~PplicåiinJlof such t~rm, covenant or condition to persons or
cirCll$~ces other th;i)iOOQse astd~~l1çh it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be
affet~~d~ì~~r'rbY, and each;tt¡~, cov~iíbt or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be
enforced t~~í~~!~llest extent~~l~rmitted by law.

If a M~~~tt~ïI:J;;;pnditl~ì; shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and

provided the Entity T§il~t':;th Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each

other to take the actio.;~::~easonably required to restore the Agreement in a maner

contemplated by the paries and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the
authorization and re-execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the
original intent of the parties and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the
Agreement if it would modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or
any other term ofthis Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the
City.
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ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring
construction against the pary drawing or causing this Agreement to be. drawn since counsel for
both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and appr,ø~~kOf same.

.:.A~~W"- ',~

.~ ",- ".-

Section 18.4 EntireD~;tument
~';:::~::,;::::: -,

ThisiL~r~~in.ent add~i1te:6ridiiiÓtlSiint1e,Ordinance of the Municipal Council
approving"thiš':Agtêêm~nt areitÏçprporated in'.this Agreement and made a par hereof.

..:~~.;' '."..:'~..-.~;:s.\'\:.:::_i. '. ' .:. ,,' ".'i" ..'-.1 .' ':~:.):, ~.:;.

Secti6~~i:8.5 Good Faith;;.Ç,A.; ....!~/)/"i:~:;l¡~i¡?x::if~¡~;;t./

In tlìèì~~~~lings witH~lch other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the
City. ..'f;~~~~rJ~!~j;;/;Jß.1j;:Y

Section 18.6 Pending;~itìgation

The Entity fully and freely holds the City harless and assumes any risk that may
affect the present or future validity of the within financial agreement, arising from any other
litigation.

ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits
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The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at
length herein:

1. Metes and Bounds description of the Development;
2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;
3. The Application with Exhibits;

~: ~:::~~:: ~~~~:~;~~:;scheduie;.~\)!~S;~.\,
6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking ofthe3~l~eJopment ;
7. Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rental Sche~ble cidI~f~se Terms;
8. Development Employment and ContEfl~lin'~;Agree~;ê~r£'i

9. Architect's Certification of ActualJ;1Ó~st;U'cion Costs.".Y):;\;~\

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the paries have câ~i~e pr:i1iis to be exe:~':¡: day and
year first above written.(:;;~t¿C

\:::.,; :::; ~;:-;;~(~J. :':'.

ATTEST:

.:i:;;E:i~¡,;'~'~,."..

,.:;'i,d:',E¡¡'~ \;\
.n"~*~tKiff.;".:~_,,:;.:.:..~.,:,.,.~.~..,......:.........".'...:,....,_....:........ '.'d;!~r:.;.

.": _. . ," ;:,:~d.~;¡:ii¡f0,\:ùiA.*.:t;.;';t,~..s.:t.';.~l~.:r.:;F;':;'

~~:-~...~.-'i:~~\¡::r',;. "",:,,"" _ _ __
.y.. "\';,:;;;"T:¡:l'!"',\;::~~~,:j:;t; Joel Si'l.v.'.'e'..r, Vi'ce Presi'dent

": ~~\::;'~) -,' .- ", .',
-~~i'~~;- :,;_~';:: :":~:;~:);':-:,;,.

?~):' :'.' . .'.~ ~:~:..";..~:."
.;.",",.:L'

_::~'"~:':'):: "

:::t~:f~!:

~':;

,-,", 'CITY OF JERSEY CITY
t~~.

, :.: ..-~~:; . ).i:~ "
.: ,,'-, ~~'.. .,':-~

. '.:.~.: :~?::J: '. ~

. ::~:;:~;:~.'t

Brian O'Reily,
Business Administrator
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EXHIBIT 1:

Metes and Bounds description of the Development
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EXHIBIT 2:

Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement
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EXHIBIT 3:

The Application with Exhibits
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EXHIBIT 4:

Certifcate of the Entity
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CHRIS CHRISTIE
Governor

~tate of. jIew 31 erstp
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

101 SOUTH BROAD STREET

PO Box 805 .
TRENTON, NJ 08625-0805 LORI GRTFA

CommissionerKIM GUADAGNO
Lt. Governor

iT r"l~".~~~f~.'~"~

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
MAR 02 Z011

STATE A.$URER
TO: State Treasurer
RE: GlENNVIEW TOWNHOUSES" URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, LP

(formerly Lafayette Family Phase V Urban Renewal Associates, LP, an Urban Renewal
Entity)
File # 900
An Urban Renewal Entity

This is to certify that the attached AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP OF AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY has been examined and approved by the
Department of Community Affairs, pursuant to the power vested in it under the "Long Term Tax
Exemption Law," P.L 1991, c.431 .

Done this 24th day of h:brw 2011 at Trenton, New Jersey.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

BY~~
Edward M. Srith, Director
Division of Codes and Standards

101
iÀ¡'vÃi~¡ New Jersey is an Equal Opportunity Employer. Prinled on Recycled paper and Recyclable



.New Jersey Department of Treasury

Division of Revenue

~:.l"':.":r\'.... ,,"''''.~ -.;.,:,: ._;...... ..~l: ,',:~'::~'r~

. t¡;;~~ ::(;1ì1 fjG b ~ ~r.li ~t$",r l~
~

MAR 0. 2 ZO i 'I

Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Cert .

1. Name of Limited Partnership: Lafayette Family Phase V Urban Renewal
Associates, LP, an Urban Renewal Entity

2. Jdenttfication' Number: 0600331280

3. Date of Filing of Original Certifcate: August 21, 2008

4. Address of Principal Offce: Three East Stow Road, Suite 100
Marlton, New Jersey 08053

5. New Name of Limited Partnership Glennview Townhouses II Urban Renewal

Associates, LP

6. Registered Agent: Paul T. Chan, Esq.

Registered Offce: 3030 Atlantic Avenue
Atlantic City, New Jersey 08401

7. Character of its Business:

(a) The purpose for which the partnership is formed shall be to develop,
own and operate real estate under the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, P.L.1991,
c.431 (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.) and to initiate and conduct projects for the
redevelopment of a redevelopment area pursuant. to a redevelopment plan, or
projects necessary, useful, or convenient for the relocation of residents displaced or
to be displaced by the redevelopment of all or part of one or more redevelopment

. areas, or low and nfoderate income housing projects, and, when authorized by
financial agreement with the municipality, to acquire, plan, develop, construct,
alter, maintain or operate housing, senior citizen housing, business, industrial,
commercial administrative, community, health, recreational, educational or welfare
projects, or any combination of two or more of these types of improvement in a
single project, under such conditions as to use, ownership, management and control
as regulated pursuant to P.L.1991, c.431 (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.). The partership may
develop a housing project (the "Project") in the City of Jersey City, State of New
Jersey as a limited dividend, urban renewal entity.

(b) So long as the partnership is obligated under financial agreement with
a municipality made pursuant to P.L.1991, c.431. (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.), it shall
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engage in no business other than the ownership, operation and management of the
Project.

(c) The partnership has been organized to serve a public purpose, and its
operations shall be directed toward:

(I) the redevelopment of redevelopment areas, the faciltation of
the relocation of residents displaced or to be displaced by

redevelopment, or the conduct of low and moderate income
housing projects;

(2) the acquisition, management and operation of a project,
redevelopment relocation housing project, or low and
moderate income housing project under P.L.1991, c.431 (C.
40A:20-1 et seq.);

(3) that it shall be subject to regulation by the municipality in
which its Project is situated, and to a limitation or prohibition,
as appropriate, on profits or dividends for so long as it remains
the owner of a project subject to P.L.1991, c.431 (C. 40A:20-1

et seq.).

(d) The partnership shall not voluntarily transfer more than 10% of the
ownership of tlie Project or any portion thereof undertaken by it under P.L.1991,
c.431 (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.), unti it has first removed both itself and the Project from
all restrictions of P.L.1991, c.431 (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.) in the manner required by
P.L.1991, c.431 (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.) and, if the Project includes housing units, has
obtained the consent of the Commissioner of Community Affairs to such transfer;
with the exception of transfer to another urban renewal entity, as approved by the
municipality in which the Project is situated, which other urban renewal entity
shall assume all contractual obligations of the transferor entity under the financial
agreement with the municipality. The partnership shall fie annually with the
municipal governing body a disclosure of the persons having an ownership interest
in the Project, and of the extent of the ownership interest of each. Nothing herein
shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the urban renewal entity

itself provided that the transfer, if greàter than 10 percent, is disclosed to the
municipal governing body in the annual disclosure statement or in correspondence
sent to the municipality in advance of the annual disclosure statement referred to
above.

(e) The partnership is subject to the. provisions of Section 18 of P.L. 1991,
c. 431 (C. 40A:20MI8) respecting the powers of the municipality to alleviate financial
difficulties of the urban renewal entity or to perform actions on behalf of the entity
upon a determination of financial emergency.
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(I) Any bousing units constructed or acquired by the entity shall be
managed subject to the supervision of, and rules adopted by, the Commissioner of
Community Affairs.

8. Termfor which the Partnership is to Exist: December 31,2100

9. Name/Address of Each General Partner: Glennview II-Michaels, LLC

Three East Stow Road
Marlton, New Jersey 08053

i O. Set forth the aggregate amount of cash and a description of the agreed value of other

property or services contributed by all partners; or agreed to be contributed in the

future:

The partners of the Partnership have agreed to contribute an

aggregate of $1,000.00 in capital to the Partnership.

i 1. Set forth the times at which or events on the happening of which any additional

contributions agreed to be made by any partner or partners eire to be made:

No partner is required to make additional contributions to the capital
of the Partnership.

12. Do the limited partners have the power to grant the right to become a limited partner to
an assignee of any part of the ir partnership?

No.

i 3. If agreed upon, list when or what must occur to enable a partner to terminate his

membership in the partnership. (Include the amount or the way of determining ihe

distribution of property to terminate a partner's interest),

The partners have not agreed upon when or what must occur to
enable a partner to terminate his membership in the Partnership, nOf
the amount, or method of determining the distributions to which such
partner may be entitled respecting his partnership interests, nor the
terms and conditions of such termination and distribution.

14. Does a partner have the right to receive distributions of property, including cash from
the limited partnership?

Yes.
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IN TESTIMONY WHREOF, the undersigned General Parers execute this Amended
and Restted Cerficate as of the 1st day of Januar, 201 i.

GENERA PARTNR:

By:
Micbael J. Levitt, Sole
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AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
GLENNVIEW TOWNHOUSES /I URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, LP

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
("Agreement"), is dated as of January 1, 2011, by and among GLENNVIEW 11-
MICHAELS, LLC, as general partner (the "General Partner") and each of MICHAEL J.
LEVin and ANDREW J. BOCCHINO, as limited partners (each a "Limited Partner" or
collectively the "Limited Partners"). The General Partner and the Limited Partners are
sometimes individually referred to as a "Partner" and collectively as the "Partners".

WIT N E SSE T H:

WHEREAS, the General Partner, Michael J. Levitt and Andrew J. Bocchino
formed the partnership as Lafayette Family Phase V Urban Renewal Associates, LP, An
Urban Renewal Entity, as a New Jersey limited partnership pursuant to a Certificate of
Limited Partnership dated as of May 15, 2008 and filed with the State Treasurer on
August 21,2008 and that certain Agreement of Limited Partnership dated as of May 15,
2008 (the "Original Agreement"; and

WHEREAS, the partners desire to change the name of the partnership; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to enter into an agreement among the
Partners to provide for, among other things, (i) the allocation of profits, losses and
distributions of cash flow and other proceeds of the Partnership among the Partners, (ii)
the respective right, obligations and interests of the parties hereto to each other and to
the Partnership and (ii) certain other matters.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, of the mutual promises of
the parties hereto and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
FORMATION

1.01 Continuation. The undersigned hereby continue the partnership (the
"Partnership") as a limited partnership under the New Jersey Limited Partnership Act,
N.J.S.A. 42:2A-1 et seq. and as an urban renewal entity under the Long Term Tax
Exemption Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., as same may be amended from time to time
during the term of the Partnership (hereinafter collectively the "Act").

1.02 Name. The name of the Partnership shall be "Glennview
Townhouses II Urban Renewal Associates, LP".

1.03 Term. The term of the Partnership shall continue until December 31,
2100 unless the Partnership is sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions of



this Agreement.

ARTICLE /I
DEFINED TERMS

In addition to the abbreviations and definitions set forth hereinabove and in the
recitals to this Agreement, the following defined terms used in this Agreement shall
have the meanings specified below:

"Capital Account" means the capital account of a Partner as described in Section
10.03 of this Agreement.

"Consent" means the prior written consent or approval of the General or Limited
Partners or any other Person, as the context may require, to do the act or thing for
which the consent is solicited.

"Interest" or "Partnership Interest" means the ownership interest of a Partner in
the Partnership at any particular time, including the right of such Partner to any and all
benefits to which such Partner may be entitled as provided in the Agreement and in the
act, together with the obligations of such Partner to comply with all of the terms and
provisions of this Agreement and of the Act.

"Net Cash Flow" means the gross cash proceeds from Partnership operations
(including sales and dispositions of property in the ordinary course of business) less the
portion thereof used to payor establish reserves for all Partnership expenses, debt
payments, capital improvements, replacements, and contingencies, all as determined
by the General Partner in its sale discretion. Net Cash Flow shall not be reduced by
depreciation, cost recovery deductions such as amortization or similar allowances.

"Project" means a multifamily apartment project for tenants located in Jersey
City, New Jersey.

"State" means the State of New Jersey.

ARTICLE 1/1
PURPOSE AND BUSINESS OF THE PARTNERSHIP

3.01 Purpose. The purpose of the Partnership is to develop, finance, lease,
own and operate the Project and to engage in all activities in connection therewith.

3.02 Authority of the Partnership. In order to carry out its purpose, the
Partnership is empowered and authorized to do any and all acts and things necessary,
appropriate, proper, advisable, incidental to or convenient for the furtherance and.
accomplishment of its purpose, and for the protection and benefit of the Partnership.

ARTICLE IV
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DUTIES AND OBLIGA TlONS OF GENERAL PARTNERS

The General Partner shall use its best efforts in connection with its performance
of the following duties and obligations with respect to the Partnership:

(a) take all action that may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the
purposes of the Partnership as described in this Agreement; and

(b) do all other things (subject to the restrictions contained herein) that
may be necessary or desirable in order to properly and efficiently administer and carry
on the affairs, assets and business of the Partnership.

ARTICLE V
PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS

AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTNERSHIP

5.01 Partners' Percentage Interests. The Partners' Percentage Interests in the
Partnership and required capital contributions are set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto.
The Partners acknowledge that each Partner has made their required capital
contribution.

5.02 Return of Capital Contribution. Except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, no Partner shall be entitled to demand or receive the return of his or its
capital contribution. No Partner shall have priority over any other Partner, either as to
return of such Partner's capital contribution or as to profits, losses or distributions unless
otherwise specifically provided herein, Moreover, no General Partner shall be
personally liable for the return of the capital contribution of any Limited Partner, or any
portion thereof, it being expressly understood that any such return shall be made solely
from assets of the Partnership, nor shall the General Partner be required to pay the
Partnership, or any Partner, any deficit in its or any other Partner's Capital Account
upon dissolution or otherwise, it being understood and agreed that any deficit in any
Capital Account shall not be treated as an asset of the Partnership. No Partner shall
have the right to demand or receive property other than cash for his or its Interest.
Each of the Partners hereby agree to, and does hereby waive, any right such Partner
may otherwise have to cause any asset of the Partnership to be petitioned or to file a
complaint or institute any proceeding at law or in equity seeking to have any such asset
partitioned.

5.03 Loans by the Partners. If the General Partner believes that additional
funds are necessary for the carrying on of the Partnership affairs, it shall have the right
to borrow in the Partnership's name the amount which it deems necessary, or it may
advance such sums or sums as may be required. Any money so advanced to the
Partnership by a partner shall bear interest at the rate of two percent (2%) over PNC
Bank prime. Any said advances shall be repaid prior to any distribution in respect of an
Interest in the Partnership.

3



ARTICLE VI
RIGHTS, OBLIGA TlONS AND

POWERS OF THE GENERAL PARTNER

6.01 Management of the Partnership. Except as otherwise set forth in this
Agreement, the General Partner, within the authority granted to it under this Agreement,
shall have full, complete and exclusive discretion to manage and control the business of
the Partnership for the purposes stated in Article III of this Agreement, shall make all
decisions affecting the business of the Partnership and shall manage and control the
affairs of the Partnership to the best of its abilty and use its best efforts to carr out the
purpose of the Partnership. The General Partner shall have the authority to execute
documents on behalf of the Partnership and to bind the Partnership thereby, and third
parties shall have the right to rely on the General Partner's signatures as being binding
on the Partnership.

6.02 Development and Syndication of the Project.

(a) Development. The Partners agree to acquire, develop, finance,
rehabilitate and syndicate a multifamily housing project as follows: The Managing
General Partner, wil select all professionals related to the development, financing,

construction and syndication of the Project including, but not limited to, the Project's
architect, general contractor, lenders, tax credit syndicators and legal and accounting
professionals.

(b) Syndication. Each Partner hereto agrees to take such action as
may be required for such acquisition, development, financing and syndication of the
Project, including executing any amendments to this Agreement and to the
Partnership's Certificate of Limited Partnership evidencing the admission and
withdrawal of partners, At the election of the General Partner, upon a syndication of the
Partnership or the Project, the Limited Partners agree to withdraw as partners to provide
for the syndication of partnership interests.

ARTICLE VII
TRANSFERS OF AND RESTRICTIONS ON

TRANSFERS OF, INTERESTS OF LIM/TED PARTNERS

. 7.01 Restrictions on Transfers of Limited Partners' Interests. Under no

circumstances will any offer, sale, transfer, assignment, hypothecation or pledge of the
Limited Partner's Interest be permitted unless the General Partner shall consent thereto,
which consent may not be unreasonably withheld.

7.02 Admission of Substitute Limited Partners. Subject to the other provisions
of this Agreement, including this Article VII, an assignee of the Interest of the Limited
Partner (which shall be understood to include any purchaser, transferee, donee or
other recipient of any disposition of such Interest) shall be admitted as a substitute
Limited Partner of the Partnership only upon the satisfactory completion of the following:
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(i) consent of the General Partner (which may be arbitrarily and unreasonably withheld
in its sole discretion) shall have been given; and (ii) the assignee shall accept and agree
to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement by executing a counterpart
hereof or an appropriate amendment hereto, and such other documents or instruments
as the General Partner may require in order to effect the admission of such person as a
Limited Partner. A person who acquires all or any portion of a Limited Partnets
Interest, but does not become a substitute Limited Partner in accordance with this
Section 7.02 shall not have any rights or privileges of a Limited Partner under this
Agreement and/or the Act, but shall have the right to receive its share of the profits,
losses and distributions of the Partnership to which his, her or its assignor would have
been entitled.

7.03 Rights of Assignee of Partnership Interest. Any person who is the
assignee of all or any portion of a Limited Partner's Interest, but does not become a
substitute Limited Partner and desires to make a further assignment of such Interest,
shall be subject to all the provisions of this Article VII to the same extent and in the
same manner as any Limited Partner desiring to make an assignment of his, her or its
Interest.

ARTICLE VII
RIGHTS AND OBLIGA TlONS OF LIMITED PARTNERS

8.01 Management of the Partnership. No Limited Partner shall take part in the
management or control of the business of the Partnership nor transact any business in
the name of the Partnership. No Limited Partner shall have the power or authority to
bind the Partnership or to sign any agreement or document in the name of the
Partnership.

8.02 Limitation on Liability of Limited Partners. The liability of each Limited
Partner shall be limited to his capital contributions. No Limited Partner shall have any
other liability to contribute money to, or in respect of the liabilities or obligations of the
Partnership, nor shall any Limited Partner be personally liable for any obligations of the
Partnership. No Limited Partner shall be obligated to make loans to the Partnership.

ARTICLE IX
PROFITS, LOSSES AND DISTRIBUTIONS

9.01 Allocation of Profits, Losses and Cash Distributions from Operations.

Profits and losses for any fiscal year shall be allocated to the Partners in accordance
with their Percentage Interests. Net Cash Flow for the fiscal year shall be distributed in
such amounts and at such times as the General Partner determines, in their sole
discretion. All distributions shall be made to the Partners in accordance with their
Percentage Interests.

9.02 Allocation of Gains, Losses and Distributions from Sale and Liquidation of
Partnership Property. (a) Gains and losses recognized by the Partnership upon the
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sale, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of the property owned by
the Partnership shall be allocated to the Partners in accordance with their Percentage
Interests.

(b) The proceeds resulting from the liquidation of the Partnership
assets pursuant to Section 10.02 hereof, and the net proceeds resulting from any sale
of the property of the Partnership or refinancing of any obligation of the Partnership, as
the case may be, shall be distributed and applied in the following order of priority:

(i) to the payment of all matured debts and liabilities of the
Partnership, excluding debts and liabilities of the Partnership to Partners or any
affiliates;

(ii) to the setting up of any reserves which the General Partners
deem reasonably necessary for contingent, unmatured or unforeseen liabilities or
obligations of the Partnership; provided, however, that the balance of any such reserve
remaining at such time as the General Partner reasonably determine such reserve is no
longer needed, shall be distributed in accordance with Sections 9.02(c)(iii) and
9.02(c)(iv) hereof;

(iii) to the repayment of any unrepaid debts and liabilities
(including unpaid fees) owed to the Partners or any affiliates by the Partnership for
Partnership obligations; and

(iv) the balance, to the Partners in accordance with their
Percentage Interests.

9.03 Capital Accounts. Throughout the full term of this Agreement, a separate
Capital Account shall be maintained and adjusted for each Partner in accordance with
the accounting rules of Section 1.704-1 (b )(2)(iv) of the Regulations.

9.04 Designation of Tax Matters Partner. The General Partner is hereby
designated as Tax Matters Partner of the Partnership.
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ARTICLE X
SALE, DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION

10.01 Dissolution of the Partnership. The Partnership shall be

dissolved upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

(a) the expiration of the term as provided in Paragraph
1.03 hereinabove;

(b) the death, retirement, disability, or adjudication of
bankruptcy of all the General Partners.

The Partnership may continue despite the death, retirement,
disabilty, or bankruptcy of a sole General Partner with the successor in interest as a
substitute General Partner, with the consent of all the limited partners. In the event that
at any time where there is more than one General Partner, then, in the event of the
death, retirement, disability or bankruptcy of a General Partner, the remaining General
Partner or partners may continue the business of the Partnership by unanimous consent
of all partners and the existence of the Partnership shall not be affected. In such case,
the estate of a General Partner may be admitted as a Limited Partner and the estate's
general partnership interest converted to a limited partnership interest.

10.02 Winding Up and Distribution. (a) Upon the dissolution of the Partnership
pursuant to Section 10.01 of this Agreement, the Partnership business shall be wound
up and it assets liquidated as provided in this Section 10.02 and the net proceeds of
such liquidation shall be distributed in accordance with Section 9.02 of this Agreement.

(b) It is the intent of the Partners that, upon liquidation of the
Partnership, any liquidation proceeds available for distribution to the Partners be
distributed in accordance with the Partners' respective positive Capital Account

balances and the Partners believe that distributions under Section 9.02(b) of this
Agreement will effectuate such intent. In the event that, upon liquidation, there is any
conflict between a distribution pursuant to the Partners' respective positive Capital

Account balances and the intent of the Partners with respect to distribution of proceeds
as provided in subsection 9.02(b) of this Agreement, the General Partner shall,
notwithstanding the provision of Sections 9.01 (a) and (b) 9.02(a) and (b) of this

Agreement, allocate the Partnership's gains and losses among the Partners in a manner
that will effectuate the distribution of liquidation proceeds to the Partners as provided in
Section 9.02 to be in accordance with the Partners' respective positive Capital Account
balances.

ARTICLE XI
ACCOUNTING, ETC.

11.01 Fiscal Year and Accounting Method. The fiscal year of the Partnership
shall be the calendar year.
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11.02 Bank Accounts. All funds of the Partnership not otherwise invested shall
be deposited in one or more accounts maintained in such banking institutions as the
General Partners shall determine, a~d withdrawals shall be made only in the regular

-_ course of Partnership business on such signature or signatures as the General Partner
may, from time to time, determine.

ARTICLE XII
CONSENTS, VOTING, ETC.

Any Consent required by this Agreement may be given a written Consent of the
consenting Partner and received by the General Partner. Except as otherwise
expressly provided in this Agreement, whenever the Consent of the Limited Partners is
required, the votes of the majority of the Percentage Interests of the Limited Partners
shall control.

ARTICLE XI/
GENERAL PROVISIONS

13.01 Burden and Benefit. The covenants and agreements contained herein
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns of the respective parties hereto.

13.02 Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State.

13.03 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed to be an original copy and all of which together shall
constitute one agreement binding on all of the parties hereto, notwithstanding that all of
the parties shall not have signed the same counterpart.

13.04 Separability of Provisions. Each provision of this Agreement shall be
considered separable and, if for any reason any provision which is not essential to the
effectuation of the basic purposes of this Agreement is determined to be invalid and
contrary to any existing or future law, such invalidity shall not impair the operation of or
effect those provisions of this Agreement which are valid.

13.05 Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth all (and is intended by all
parties to be an integration of all) of the representations, promises, agreements and
understandings among the parties hereto with respect to the Partnership, the
Partnership business and the property of the Partnership, and there are no
representations, promises, agreements or understandings, oral or written, express or
implied, among them other than as set forth or incorporated herein.
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13.06 DCA Requirements. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
the terms of the Certificate of Limited Partnership and the New Jersey Long-Term Tax
Exemption Law (N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq.) are incorporated herein by reference and
shall govern the Partnership in the event of any conflict.

13.07 NJHMFA Provision. The Partnership acknowledges that any review of the
provisions of this Agreement by the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
("NJHMFA") is performed in accordance with its responsibility as Lender and is intended
only to assure that the Partnership is validly formed according to law, with the legal
authority to borrow the funds which wil constitute the NJHMFA Mortgage Loan and
operate the Property securing the NJHMFA Mortgage Loan. Notwithstanding any other
provisions herein, the Partnership acknowledges and agrees that as a condition of
obtaining the NJHMFA Mortgage Loan, that the NJHMFA statutes, rules and regulations
and all the financing documents in connection with the NJHMFA Mortgage Loan, are
applicable to the Partnership and the Property securing the NJHMFA Mortgage Loan.
The Partnership further acknowledges that, except as contained in this Section, the
NJHMFA makes no representations express or implied, as to this Agreement; and the
Partnership and the Partners shall not rely upon the NJHMFA review of this Agreement.

13.08 Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified or amended by an
agreement in writing signed by all of the Partners.

"
'.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have affxed their signatures and seals to
this Agreement as of the date first written above.

ATTEST:

ATTEST:

By:
Print Name: Michae
Title: Sole Member

LIMITED PARTNERS:

MICHAEL J. LE

ANDREWJ.~ -



EXHIBIT A

Glennview II-Michaels, LLC

Michael J. Levitt

Andrew J. Bocchino

Required Capital
Contributions

10.00

980.00

10.00

1,000.00

Percentage
Interests

0.00%

98.00%

1.00%

100.00%



AMENDED and RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT

for

GLENNVIEW II-MICHAELS, LLC

THIS AMENDED and RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT is made and entered
into as of June 1, 2010 by and between GLENNVIEW TI-MICHAELS, LLC, a New Jersey limited
liabilty company (the "Company"), and MICHAEL J. LEVITT, as the sole member of the
Company ("Member").

WIT N E SSE T H:

WHEREAS, Lafayette Family V-Michaels, LLC (the "Company") was formed under the
laws of the State of New Jersey (the "State") by filing a Certificate of Formation (the "Certificate")
with the State Treasurer of New Jersey on April 23, 2008 and pursuant to that certain Operating
Agreement dated as of May 15, 2008 (collectively the "Original Agreement") .

WHEREAS, the parties changed the name of the Company to GlenviewII-Michaels, LLC.

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement to provide for, among
other things, (i) the payment of capital contributions by the Members, (ii) the allocation of profits,
losses and distributions of cash flow and other proceeds of the limited liability company to the
Members, (iii) the respective rights and obligations of the parties hereto to each other and to the
limited liability company, (iv) the respective interests of the paries hereto and (v) certain other
matters.

WHEREAS, the sole Member intends to operate the Business and provide for operation of
the Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises below, and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, it is agreed as
follows:

A. ORGANIZATION.

1. Continuation. TIie undersigned hereby agree to continue the Company under

the New Jersey Limited Liability Act (the "Act").

2. Name. The name of the Company shall be "Glennview II-Michaels, LLC."



3. Duration. The Company shall have perpetual existence.

4.
this Agreement.

Restatement. The Original Agreement is hereby replaced in its entirety by

5. Registered Office and Resident Agent. The Registered Office and

Resident Agent of the Company shall be as designated in the initial Articles. The Registered Offce
and/or Resident Agent may be changed from time to time. Any such change shall be made in
accordance with the Act.

6. Purpose. The Company was formed for the purpose of serving as the
general partner of Glennview Townhouses II Urban Renewal Associates, LP (the "Project
Partership"). The Project Parership was formed for the purpose of developing, financing,
rehabilitating, maintaining, operating, sellng, and otherwse disposing of, an affordable housing
complex (the "Project").

7. Tax Status for Company. The Company shall be taxed as a sole
proprietorship for tax purposes unless and until at least one additional Member is added in which
event the Company shall thereafter be treated as a partership for tax purposes.

B. CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS.

The initial Member hereby made a Capital Contribution of One Hundred Dollars
($ i 00. 00) for the capital interests of the Company. Future Capital Contributions may be made in the
sole discretion ofthe Member.

C. ALLOCATIONS and DISTRIBUTIONS.

Except as may be required by the Code as amended, net profits, net losses, and other
items of income, gain, loss, deduction and credit of the Company shall be reported by the Member on
the Member's income tax return. The Member may make distributions from time to time after the
Member determines that the Company has sufficient funds available.

D. GENERAL POWERS of SOLE MEMBER.

The Member has authority to:

1. conduct the business and affairs of the Company;

2.
the Company;

do all things necessary or convenient to carr out the business and affairs of
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3. purchase, lease or otherwise acquire any real, personal, tangible or intangible

propert;

4. sell, convey, mortgage, grant a securty interest in, pledge, lease, license,

exchange or otherwise dispose of or encumber any real, personal, tangible or intangible propert;

5. open one or more depository accounts and make deposits into and checks and

withdrawals against such accounts and to designate and authorize any additional signatory on such
accounts;

6. borrow money, incur liabilities and other obligations, establish lines of credits,
mortgages, and other credit and financing facilties relating to the business of the Company;

7. obtain insurance covering the business and affairs of the Company and its

property;

8. commence prosecute or defend any proceeding in the Company's name or
relating to the business of the Company;

9. enter into any arangements or agreements, and execute any contracts,

documents and instruents relating to the business of the Company;

10. engage consultants and agents, define their respective duties and establish
their compensation or remuneration. This right shall include the right to designate a person to operate
the Company and conduct the business of the Company in the event of the illness, disability or
demise of the sale Member. If such person is appointed, such person shall be referred to as the
"Manager" and shall have any rights, powers and obligations granted or created herein to the sole
Member excepts as the sale Member shall otherwise restrict or limit in a document appointing said
Manager; and

11. take all actions required of the Project Partnership with respect to the Project.

E. EXCULPATION of LIABILITY: INDEMNIFICATION.

Unless otherwise provided by law or expressly assumed, the sole Member shall not be
liable for the acts, debts or liabilities of the Company.
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F. OTHER ACTIVITIES.

The Member may engage in other business ventures of every nature, including,
without limitation by specification, the ownership of another business similar to that operated by the
Company. The Company shall not have any right or interest in any such independent ventures or to
the income and profits derived therefrom.

G. DEATH, DISABILITY, DISSOLUTION.

1. Death of the Member. Upon the death ofthe Member, if the Member has
not theretofore appointed a Manager who is then willing to act, then the personal representative of
the estate of the Member may act as Manager hereunder or appoint a person to so serve until the
Member's Interests and Capital Account of the deceased Member have been transferred or
distributed.

2. Disability of the Member. Upon the disability of the Member, if the
Member has not theretofore appointed a Manager who is then wiling to act, then the guardian,
committee, or conserator of the disabled Member may act as Manager hereunder or appoint a
person to so serve until the Member's Interests and Capital Account of the disabled Member have
been transferred or distrbuted.

3. Dissolution. The Company shall dissolve and its affairs shall be wound up
by the written consent of the Member. However, no third part dealing with the LLC shall be
adversely affected by such action unless it receives notice, or should have reasonably been aware of

. such action.

H. BOOKS, RECORDS and ACCOUNTING.

1. Books and Records. The Company shall maintain complete and accurate
books and records of the Company's business and affairs as required by the Act.

2. Fiscal Year; Accounting. The Company's fiscal year shall be the calendar
year.

3. Member's Capital Accounts. A Capital Account for the Member shall be
maintained by the Company. The Member's Capital Account shall reflect the Member's capital
contrbutions and increases for any net income or gain of the Company. The Member's Capital
Account shall also reflect decreases for distrbutions made to the Member and the Member's share of
any losses and deductions of the Company.

4



i. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

1. Terms. Nouns and pronouns wil be deemed to refer to the masculine,
feminine, neuter, singular and plural, as the identity of the person or persons, firm or corporation
may in the context require. The term "Code" shall refer to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended.

2. Article Headings. The Arcle headings and numbers contained in this

Operatig Agreement have been inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no
way shall be constred to define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this
Operating Agreement.

3. Entire Agreement. This Operating Agreement constitutes the entire
agreement among the sole Member and the Company and contains all of the agreements among said
pares with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Operating Agreement supersedes any and all
other agreements, either oral or written, between said parties with respect to the subject matter
hereof

4. Severabilty. The invalidity or unenforceability of any paricular provision
of this Operating Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and this Operating
Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provisions were
omitted.

5. Amendment. This Operating Agreement may be amended or revoked at any
time by a written docmnent executed by the sole Member.

6. Binding Effect. Subject to the provisions of this Operating Agreement

relating to transferability, this Operating Agreement wil be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties, and their respective distributees, heirs, successors and assigns.

7. Governing Law. This Operating Agreement is being executed and delivered
in the State of New Jersey and shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the
laws ofthe State of New Jersey.

8. NJHMF A Provision. The Company acknowledges that any review of the
provisions ofthis Operating Agreement by the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
("NJHMFATI) is performed in accordance with its responsibility as Lender and is intended only to
assure that the Company is validly fonned according to law, with the legal authority to borrow the
funds which wil constitute the NJHMF A Mortgage Loan and to operate the Property securing the
NJHMF A Mortgage Loan. Notwithstanding any other provisions herein, the Company
acknowledges and agrees that as a condition of obtaining the NJHMF A Mortgage Loan, that the
NJHMF A statutes, rules and regulations and all the financing documents in connection with the
NJHMF A Mortgage Loan, are applicable to the Company and the Propert securing the NJHMF A
Mortgage Loan. The Company further acknowledges that, except as contained in this Section, the

5



NJHMF A makes no representations express or implied, as to this Operating Agreement; and the
Company and the Members shall not rely upon the NJHMF A review ofthis Operating Agreement.

(SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW)

S:IBROWNVlTcluveILAYETIE V\A&R Opiing Agi Glennview LLC 01 191 I.doc

6



IN WINESS WHREOF, the paries hereto make and execute this Operating Agreement
to be effective on the date first above written.

MEMBER: COMPAN:

MICHAELJ.

GLENNEW ll-MIC

By:

AMENDED AND RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT
SIGNATURE PAGE
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EXHIBIT I:

COOPERATION AGREEMENTS IN PLACE

(PLEASE SEE ATTACHED)



The folIowing pnblic housing developments are included in the Cooperation Agreement:

COOPERATION AGREEMENT

PROJECT NAMEINUMBER

TOTAL UNITS
MARION GARDENS

N.1. 9-2
234BOOKER T. WASHINGTON

N.J. 9-3 314HUDSON GARDENS

N.1. 9-4
222HOLLAND GARDENS

N.1. 9-5
192MONTGOMER Y GARDENS

N.1. 9-6
462CURRIES WOODS

N.1. 9-8
91BERR Y GARDENS

N.J 9-9
368DWIGHT STREET HOMES

N.1. 9-10
34LAP A YETTE SENIOR LIVING CENTER

N.1. 9-13
83THOMAS 1. STEWART APTS.

N.1. 9-14
48OCEAN POINTE EAST

N.1. 9-20
29

TOTAL
2,077
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EXHIBIT J:

FINANCIAL AGREEMENTS IN FORCE

(PLEASE SEE ATTACHED)



EXISTING FINANCIAL AGREEMENTS

All parties of the applicant who have an interest in any other financial agreements in
force and effect in the City of Jersey City include:

1) The Jersey City Housing Authority has a current tax enhancement agreement
in place with the City of Jersey City for the 36 residential units at the premises
located at 254 Bergen Avenue.

2) The Jersey City Housing Authority has a current tax enhancement agreement
in place with the City of Jersey City for the 90 residential units at Arlington

Gardens located at 315 Randolph Avenue.

3) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Community Limited
Partnership have a current tax enhancement agreement in place (under the
NJHMFA Statute) with the City of Jersey City for the 124 residential units at
the mixed-income HOPE Vi Lafayette Village located at 579 Grand Street.

4) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family Urban Renewal
Associates, L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the
City of Jersey City for the 70 residential units at the mixed-income HOPE Vi
Woodward Terrace located at 511 Grand Street.

5) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family" Urban Renewal
Associates, L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the
City of Jersey City for the 72 residential units at the mixed-income HOPE Vi
Pacific Court Townhouses located at 320 Bramhall Avenue.

6) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family Phase III Urban
Renewal Associates, L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in
place with the City of Jersey City for the 67 residential units plus community
center at the mixed-income HOPE Vi Barbara Place Terrace located at Ash
Street, Carbon Street and Pacific Avenue,

7) The Jersey City Housing Authority and A. Harry Moore Phase i Associates,
L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the City of
Jersey City for the 66 residential units at the mixed-income HOPE Vi Gloria
Robinson Court Homes i located at 332-336 Duncan Avenue.

8) The Jersey City Housing Authority and A. Harry Moore Phase" Associates,
L. P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the City of
Jersey City for the 78 residential units and community center at the mixed-
income HOPE Vi Gloria Robinson Court Homes II located at 340-344 Duncan
Avenue.

9) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family Phase IV Urban

Renewal Associates, L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in
place with the City of Jersey City for the 63 residential units under



construction at the mixed-income HOPE Vi Glennview Townhouses I located
at Grande Street, Barbara Place, and Halladay Street.

10) The Jersey City Housing Authority and AHM Housing Urban Renewal
Associates, LLC have a current tax enhance agreement in place with the City
of Jersey City for the 60 residential units under construction at the mixed-
income HOPE Vi A. Harry Moore Phase III Development located at 324
Duncan Avenue,



Montgomery Seníor
Tax Aoatement Application to the

City of Jersey City

. :-:;"Y'i
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....JerseyCJ1tTaxAbat~JlentcOn'niittee
~Ø+~1qntg~merystrèet . . .' ..
JerseyCity,NJ O~730i

Attn: Mr. AI Cameron, Dpty. Di rector
of HE DC

By:

Montgomery Senior Living Urban
Renewal Associates, LP

c/o Jersey City Housing Authority
400 US Highway 1

Jersey City, NJ 07306
Attn: Ms. Joan Pollock, Development

Director

May 2011
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CERTIFIED APPLICATION TO THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY

FOR LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION

OF

MONTGOMERY SENIOR CENTER

In compliance with Executive Order #S-02-003 of the Mayor of the City of Jersey City, the Applicant herewith

submits the following information in support of its application for a Long Term Tax Exemption pursuant to the

Urban Renewal Corporation and Association Law, N.J.S.A 40A:20-1 et seq.

Applicant: Montgomery Senior Living Center Urban Renewal

Associates, LP

C/o Jersey City Housing Authority

400 US Highway NO.1 (Marion Gardens)

Jersey City, New Jersey 07306

Property: Block 2116, to be known as Lot P1

(Formerly part of Lot P)
Part of 561 Montgomery Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

Development: Montgomery Senior Center, an affordable senior rental

housing development

Part of 561 Montgomery Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

Applicant's Architect: Nando Micale

Nando Micale Architecture

1700 Market Street, 28th Floor

Philadelphia, PA 19103

Applicant's Attorney: Nancy A. Skidmore, Esq.

Connell Foley, LLP

Harborside Financial Center

2510 Plaza Five

Jersey City, NJ 07311-4029

(201) 521-1000
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LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit

A.

B.

C.

D-1.

D-2.

E.

F-1.

F-2.

G.

H.

i.

J.

Description of Property

Preliminary Site Plans & Architectural Renderings

Description of Leases

Total Annual Gross Revenue Computation - Year 1

Total Annual Gross Revenue Computation - Year 16

Estimated Total Development Cost

Projected Statement of Property Operations - Year 1

Projected Statement of Property Operations - Year 16

Proposed Financial Agreement

Certificate of Formation and Disclosure Statement

Cooperation Agreements in Place

Financial Agreements in Force
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APPLICATION

1 . Identification of the Property:

The land upon which the development is located is part of Block 2116, Lot P (pursuant to a recent

subdivision) that is known as Lot P1 on the Tax Map of the City of Jersey City, and is commonly known as

part of 561 Montgomery Street; Jersey City, New Jersey (the "Property"). Upon perfection of the subdivision,

the Property will consist of approximately 26,071 square feet (or 2: /.599 acres). The metes and bounds

description of the land where the Development is located is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Further, for context,

the preliminary site plans and architectural renderings have been provided as Exhibit B.

2. Type of Development:

The Property is currently improved with a ten story apartment building that is part of an existing public

housing development, consisting of a total of six (6) buildings, that is known as Montgomery Gardens and that

is operated by the Jersey City Housing Authority ("JCHA"). As noted above, the Property has been subdivided

from the existing Montgomery Gardens parcel (Block 2116, Lot P). The Property will be owned by JCHA and

site control will be provided to the Applicant via a Long Term Ground Lease with JCHA.

The existing building (now known as Building 1) on the Property will be completely rehabilitated and

converted into an affordable senior housing development (herein referred to as the "Development").

Specifically, the Development will consist of a senior low/moderate income apartment complex (all tenants of

which are elderly and/or handicapped, with the exception of one superintendent unit, which is non-income

producing) having sixty-eight (68) units and approximately 2,500 square feet of community and management

space for use by the residents and staff of the building. One hundred percent (100%) of these apartments wil

be affordable to households earning at or below 60% of the Area Median Income, adjusted for household

size. The anticipated number, size, and rent for the affordable apartments will be as follows:

Unit Type
No. of Square Net Monthly Tenant Portion of

Units Footage* Rent** Rent

1 BR 58 650 $ 520 $ 293

2 BR 9 866 $ 570 $ 343

2 BR - Super 1 866 $ - $ -

68

'The exact square footage and rent could vary, The numbers above represent the average square footage and rent for
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each type of apartment.

** The balance of the rents will be paid by HUD pursuant to either a Public Housing Operating Subsidy ("ACC" Subsidy) or

a Section 202 Project Rental Assistance Contract.

The affordable housing units will be available only to those who qualify under the relevant federal and

state guidelines which are as follows: seniors must be at least 62 years old and have a combined income of

less than 60% of the Area Median Income (which according to HUD is currently $34,140 for a two bedroom

unit). Each household will be expected to pay 30% of their adjusted annual income towards rent. As the

income generating units in the Development are anticipated to consist solely of public housing units, the

balance of the net rent, which is needed to meet project expenses, will be paid by HUD in the form of an

operating subsidy or Housing Assistance Payments.

Interstate Realty Management Company, (herein referred to as "IRM"), who is an affiliate of the

Developer and corporate guarantor, the Michaels Development Company I, LP, will serve as the property

manager and will qualify potential residents of the affordable units in accordance with federal and state

guidelines. IRM currently operates the over 35,000 units Michaels has developed since its creation in 1973,

including all of the phases at the Lafayette Gardens HOPE Vi development, which include two senior projects

that are similar in scope to what is proposed to the Development.

In addition to the many unit amenities, the following "project amenities" will be available at no

additional charge to the residents of the building:

1. A large multi-purpose room with warming kitchen

2. A computer learning center

3. A "living room"/Iibrary/reading room (similar to those at the Lafayette Senior and Ocean

Pointe Developments)

4. A game room

5. On-site laundry facilities (located on every floor), and;

6. A large private outdoor patio space that is furnished and space-programmed

3. Type of Abatement Requested:

In light of the above, and as JCHA and Michaels have done at Lafayette Gardens, the Applicant

seeks a Long Term Tax Exemption based on a formula pursuant to the Urban Renewal Corporation and

Association Law, N.J.S.A 40A:20-1 et seq.(the "Urban Renewal Law"). The P.lL.O.T requested is 6.28% of

the Adjusted Annual Gross Revenue (gross project revenue less utilities or "net shelter rents") which

translates to $21,928 annually or $327 per income generating unit per year. The formula for this conclusion is

provided below.
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Type
Net Rent Annual Rent Unit Total Rent Per Total Annual
PUPM Per Unit Count Month Rent

1 BR $ 520 $ 6,240 58 $ 30,160 $ 361,920

2 BR $ 570 $ 6,840 9 $ 5,130 $ 61,560

2 BR - Super $ - $ - 1 $ - $ -

$ 35,290 $ 423,480

Plus other income $ 6,000
Less vacancy (3.5%) $ (12,704)

Less utilties $ (74,500)
Subtotal $ 342,276

Times 6.28% $ 21,495

In accordance with the Long Term Exemption Statute and the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage

Finance Agency's ("NJHMFAlJ) Low Income Housing Tax Credit (herein referred to as "L1HTClJ) Qualified

Allocation Plan, this P .1. L. O.T. percentage would be fixed for the first 15 years of the exemption period. This is

comparable to the terms of the financial agreements between the City of Jersey City and the ownership

entities for the Housing Authority's HOPE Vi project phases at Lafayette Gardens. As discussed on page 10

of the provided Draft Financial Agreement, appended hereto as Exhibit G, after the first fixed 15 years (Stage

One), the Applicant will pay the City an Annual Service Charge which will be adjusted in stages over the term

of the tax exemption in accordance with N.J.SA 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

i. Stage Two: Beginning on the 1 st day of the 16th year following Substantial Completion

until the last day of the 21 st year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service

Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and

Improvements;

ILL. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1 st day of the 22nd year following the Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 27th year, an amount equal to the greater of the

Annual Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the value of

the land and Improvements;

iV. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 28th year following Substantial Completion

until the last day of the 29th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service

Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and

Improvements.

The complete calculations for the estimated P.lL.O.T. have provided in the Total Annual Gross

Revenue Computation set forth in Exhibit 0 and the Proposed Statement of Stabilized Property Operations
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set forth in Exhibit F.

4. Term of Abatement:

The term of the tax exemption being requested by the Applicant is 30 years from the date of

substantial completion of the Development or for period not to exceed the period of time by which the

Development is encumbered by funding provided to the Applicant by the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage

Agency pursuant to the NJMHFA Law commencing from the date of substantial completion of the

Development (i.e. L1HTC compliance period, amortization period for permanent debt - if applicable).

5. Description of the Development:

The Property consists of approximately 26,071 square feet (or ~ /.599 acres) of land located at 561

Montgomery Street in Jersey City, New Jersey.

,~:

The Property is currently improved with a ten-story building containing 70 residential units and

community space. The improvements to be constructed will consist of the following:

1. A rehabilitation of the existing ten-story building unit which will consist of re-conversion from

seventy-six (70) obsolete mixed studio, one, two, three, and four bedroom units into sixty-

eight (68) modern one and two bedrooms in the configuration discussed above. The space

resulting from the reduction of units will result in larger residential living spaces and allow for

the addition of on-site laundry facilities on every floor.

2. The provision of new elevator cars and building egress

3. Repairs and improvements to the exterior building façade

4. The addition of a lobby, community, supportive service, and management space

The sixty-eight (68) residential rental units will consist of: fifty-eight (58) one bedroom units, which will

average approximately six hundred fifty (650) square feet in size, and ten (10) two bedroom units, which will

average approximately eight hundred sixty (860) square feet in size. Each residential unit will have living,

dining, and kitchen areas. The building will also contain community and management space which will be

approximately two thousand five hundred (2,500) square feet in size.

The Property consists of one newly subdivided tax lot. The Jersey City Housing Authority is the

owner of the property and will provide site control to the applicant via a Long Term Ground Lease. Upon

transfer of title to the Applicant, the Applicant will construct and maintain ownership interest in the
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Development.

6. Estimated Total Cost of Development:

The Total Development Cost, as set forth in Exhibit E is estimated to be $ 14,934,367. The
construction costs have been estimated based upon information compiled by the Applicant and its
consultants. The Total Development Cost is subject to approval by the NJHMFA.

7. Financing Structure:

Major financing for the Development will be provided by the following sources:

1. NJHMFA - in the form of a Low Income Housing Tax Credit ("L1HTCIJ) allocation from the

Federal Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program

2. Construction and/or Permanent Financing from NJHMFA

3. A direct subsidy from the Federal Home Loan Bank's Affordable Housing Program

4. A CDBG allocation from the City of Jersey City

5. Federal Section 202 Capital Advance Funds

8. Annual Gross Revenue and Expenses:

A Schedule of Annual Gross Revenue for the Development is attached hereto as Exhibit D. A

Projected Statement of Operations is attached hereto as Exhibit E. As is the case with the Development

Costs, the Annual Gross Revenue and Projected Statement of Operations are subject to approval by the

NJHMFA.

9. Construction Schedule:

If the Applicant is successful in securing L1HTC's in the August 2011 Competitive Funding Round, the

construction of the Development is scheduled to commence in May 2012 and will be completed within

approximately fourteen (14) months. This construction schedule is subject to modification based upon the

time required to obtain the necessary funding and governmental approvals and permits from those local, state

and federal governmental agencies involved in the Development.

10. Fair Market Value:

The Current (2011) Land Assessment for the entire un-subdivided Montgomery Gardens Site, Block

2116, Lot P, is $1,820,000. The proposed Development and Property, (newly subdivided Block 2116, Lot P1)
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constitutes 12% of the land value or $218,400. The Real Estate Tax Assessment attributable to Lot P1 is

subject to review and determination by the Tax Assessor upon perfection of the subdivision.

11. Current Real Estate Tax Status:

For 2010, no taxes were levied on the property as it is exempt being owned by the JCHA pursuant to

a Cooperation Agreement between the City and the JCHA. Enclosed as Exhibit I is a listing of the public

housing developments that are included in the JCHA's Cooperation Agreements with the City. The subject site

is included within this list.

Provided as Exhibit J, is a listing of other financial agreements in place within Jersey City between the

City and the JCHA, the Lafayette Gardens HOPE Vi ownership entities and/or Michaels Development

Company and its subsidiaries.

12. Developer Certification as to Commencement of the Development.

With the submission and signing of this application, the Applicant certifies that it will not commence

construction of the Development prior to the receipt of final approval of the tax abatement and the execution

of a Financial Agreement between the City and the Applicant.

13. Estimated Jobs to be created:

Based on the Developer's past experience in the City and the projected scope of work at the

Development, it is anticipated that the Development will generate approximately one hundred twenty-five

(125) full time equivalent construction jobs during the term of construction. In addition, it is projected that the

Development will generate two direct full time and one part time permanent employment opportunities upon

the commencement of operations of the Development. This Development will not cause any loss or

displacement of current employments opportunities. All of the aforementioned employment opportunities will

be immediately created. The Applicant agrees to execute a Development Employment Agreement

simultaneously with the execution of a financial agreement. The Applicant will also adhere to the Housing

Authority's Section 3 Employment and Contracting Opportunity Requirements.

The Development is exempt from the requirements of City Ordinance #07-123, which may otherwise

require the execution of a Development Labor Agreement. This Application is for tax exemption pursuant to

the NJHMFA Law and, therefore, not a "Tax Abated Development" as defined under Ordinance #07-123.
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14. -- Compliance with State and Local Redevelopment Laws.

With the submission and signing of this application, the Applicant certifies that the Development is

located in the R-4 Zoning District and the Urban Enterprise Zone Area.

The Development will be constructed in accordance with the terms and conditions of any preliminary

site plan approval granted by the Jersey City Planning Board and in compliance with any state permits or

approvals required for the renovation or new construction. It is anticipated that an application for preliminary

site plan approval will be heard by the Jersey City Planning Board on May 24,2011.

15. Compliance with State and Local Law:

With the submission and signing of this application, the Applicant certifies that the Development

meets the requirements of the laws of the State of New Jersey and the City of Jersey City to qualify for a tax

exemption.

16. Form of Financial Agreement:

Attached hereto as Exhibit G is a proposed form of Financial Agreement between the City of Jersey

City and the Applicant which is modeled after the Glennview Townhomes I agreement that was also

sponsored by JCHA and applied for by an affiliate of the Developer that was executed on August 26, 2008

and approved by Jersey City Ordinance 08-106.

17. Certificate of Formation:

The Applicant is an Urban Renewal Entity and Limited Partnership formed pursuant to the laws of the

State of New Jersey and is qualified to do business in New Jersey.

Attached hereto as part of Exhibit H is a copy of the Certificate of Formation as an Urban Renewal

Entity dated January 18, 2011. A Disclosure Statement listing the names and address of the members of the

Applicant is attached hereto as part the above noted attachment.

18. Affordable Housing Contribution:

No affordable housing contribution is required pursuant to Section 304-28 of the Code of the City of
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Jersey City. This Application is for tax exemption pursuant to the Urban Renewal Law, and this Development

contains affordable housing units that are in excess of 15% of the overall number of units. Therefore, the,

Development is entitled to exemption on two separate bases under Section 304-28.

19. Fee:

Since this Application concerns a Development which provides housing for seniors of low or moderate

income, no application fee is required:

Respectively submitted:

Montgomery Senior living Center Urban Renewal Associates, LP

By its General Partner, Montgomery Senior-Michaels, LLC

/ lli

(frj-lI/r
(Jo,/Sifver, Vice President

\"
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EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Address: Part of the property commonly known as 561 Montgomery Street, Jersey City, New

Jersey 07302

Block 2116, to be known as Lot P1.

A metes and bounds description is attached hereto.



PS&S
Inteyratlng doalgn & oiigíneering

67B Mountain Boulevard Extension
P.O, Box 4039
Warren, NJ 07059
Tel 732,560.9700
ww.psands.com

PROPOSED LOT P.1,BLOCK 2116

CITY OF JERSEY CITY, HUDSON COUNTY

NEW JERSEY

BEGINNING at the intersection formed by the westerly right-of-way line of Florence Street (60'
wide per tax map), with the southerly right-of-way line of Montgomery Street (80' wide per tax
map) and running thence.

1. Along the westerly right-of-way line of Florence Street, South 22 degrees 12 minutes 21
seconds West, a distance of 192.50 feet to a point, thence.

2. Leaving said right-of-way line and along the proposed subdivision line of existing Lot P, in
Block 21 16, South 67 degrees 47 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 13 5.25 feet to a point,
thence.

3. Along said subdivision line, Noi1h 21 degrees 58 minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 191.97
feet to a point in the southerly right-of-way line of Montgomery Street, thence.

4. Along said right-of-way line, South 68 degrees 01 minutes 09 seconds East, a distance of
136.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING

Containing an area of26,071 square feet or 0.599 acres, as calculated by Paulus, Sokolowski and
Sartor, LLC in May 2011.

Subject to any easements or restrictions of record if any, which an accurate title search may disclose.

~1/ /1

t~J,-L
/(- '~/, IJ, /
,:;7)

Francis C. Wecht, Jr. ( / "

Professional Land Sunty'r
NJLicense No. 27190

April 2, 2011.

1f I
/ JVv

P:\02860\023W\DcscriplIolis\Proposed fl,1 descriptiO!1\PROPOSED LOT fl,l. BL.OCK 21 16,c1oc

5/2/20 II
Page I of 1
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EXHIBIT 8:

PRELIMINARY SITE PLANS & ARCHITECTURAL RENDERINGS
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:Montgomery Seníor Lívíng Center 'Urban 'Rnewa( J'socíates, L'P
c/o Jersey City Jfousing .Juthoríty I r_ .........._.__

._...._--.-_.._.._-._............-...._-..._...............-.-....-...,.........-.._-...... ..........

EXHIBIT C

DESCRIPTION OF RESIDENTIAL LEASES

GOOD FAITH ESTIMATE OF INITIAL RENTS

1. Name of Tenant: Various - 68 in total

2. Term of Lease: Initial term of lease not less than 1 year.

3. Number of Apartments: 68

Affordable Apartments: 67

. "'i,i .,d
.....,'c

"".. .......:...,¡.

I ;,dSqii~r~.,..
'iNet:..'.......'...... Tenant. ....

.Nô."¿'Ùl1lts"
...,..... i,. .

:iVlôi"thlý ......'P'ortionofi 'Fboífigé' '"

',..L", ".' "':"d, ' .:-:'.:::~:-;.:, ::i.'::'"; :.'::::::::1. :"/':':',; :'::'::'\';: .::,-; ,'i .""""";*',.'
1.'Rent'.....'..'i' i.,. ... .' ...... ..' .',c

,Rent........,
1 BR 58 650 $ 520 $ 293
2 BR 9 866 $ 570 $ 343
2 BR - Super 1 866 $ - $ -

68

'The actual percentage of tenant rent to net rent could vary as HUD regulations restrict housing costs at 30% of annual

household income. These numbers are currently underwritten at 21 % AMI. The numbers above represent the projected

average rent for each type of apartment.

"The balance of the rents will be paid by HUD pursuant to either a Public Housing Operating Subsidy ("ACC" Subsidy) or

a Housing Assistance Payments Contract (project based vouchers).

4. Premium paid directly by Tenant Annually:

a. Fire & other insurance

b. Real Estate Taxes of Assessments

c. Operating and maintenance expenses'

NONE

NONE

UNIT UTILITIES - ELECTRIC, AC

5. Special Features in the Development:

Ample Community facilities: multi-purpose room, on-site social services and well 
ness programs,

large programmed patio area with furniture (private to the Development), media center and game

rooms, on-site laundry facilities, shuttle service, and a covered bus shelter.

'Energy Effcient Design (Energy Star) which greatly reduce utility expenses for units



:Montgomery Senior Lívínø Center 'Urban 'Rnewa( J'socíates, L'P
.__~~~_~~~~~_~_.~í_t~~~~.í~~.~~~~~r_i~~___ '_i' ._. ..u........_._. ..- .u.._.._.... ._. .u....-

.-..-........-.............-.....-.-.............-.-.....--.-.................-............-..................._._.

EXHIBIT D.1

TOTAL ANNUAL GROSS REVENUE COMPUTATION

Year 1

~ .':
. 

'Unit....."

i:,'rot~/RentP~r. '.'
Ii Total Annual"""Type' NefRent PUPM

:cdÎil1t Ii, ...... Rent::
" , .. .......... " '. .... 0",., ,Month' ........ .....

1 BR $ 520 58 $ 30,160 $ 361,920
2 BR $ 570 9 $ 5,130 $ 61,560

2 BR (Super) $ -
1 $ - $ -

$ 35,290 $ 423,480
Plus other income $ 6,000

Less vacancy (3.0%) $ (12,704)
TOTAL $ 416,776

'The numbers above represent the projected average rent for each type of apartment.



:Montgomery seníor Lívíng Center 'Urban 'Rnewa( J'sociates, L'P

__~::_~_~=~:~_~~~~__~::~~:~_~_:t~~~~~_____._________~_J------.------------.-..-----.---------.--.-----..--.---'--'.--._-. .-.--.-----------------...--------.---.-._--.-._-------...-------.-----..-..--.--..---.-_.-------__.__.___ ._..._...____.__._____.__.._.

EXHIBIT 0.2

TOTAL ANNUAL GROSS REVENUE COMPUTATION

Year 16

.: .....,:.. .' "
Unit ....TotaIRentPer i""" .' Tota/AnnualNet Rimt PUPMType "

Còunt I' . Rent ,....,.... .' .' . " ,.. .Month
1 BR $ 825 58 $ 47,833 $ 573,991
2 BR $ 794 9 $ 7,147 $ 85,769

2 BR (Super) $ -
1 $ -

$ 54,980 $ 659,760
Plus other income $ 8,069

Less vacancy
$ (20,035)

(3.0%)
TOTAL $ 647,794

'The actual rent in Year 16 will be based upon the HUD published rate for that year and will 
likely vary from this projection. The

assumed 3% infiation factor above is a projection determined by NJHMFA underwriting assumptions (as shown in the 15 year

Operating Income Projection Schedule found on the following page).



M
O

N
T

G
O

M
E

R
Y

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S SE
N

IO
R

 D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

 - 68 U
N

IT
S 9%

 PR
O

-FO
R

M
A

Projected A
nnual Incom

e Schedule

PE
R

 U
N

IT
A

N
N

U
A

L
Y

E
A

Y
E

A
R

Y
E

A
R

Y
E

A
R

Y
E

A
R

Y
E

A
R

Y
E

R
Y

E
A

R
Y

E
A

R
Y

E
A

R
Y

E
A

R
Y

E
A

R
Y

E
A

Y
E

A
R

Y
E

A
Y

E
A

or %
T

R
E

N
D

IN
G

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

IN
C

O
M

E
T

A
X

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IT

S
G

R
O

SS R
E

N
T

3.00%
1240.972

1248,201
1255,647

-1263,316
1271.215

1279,351
1287,731

1296,362
1305,252

1314,409
1323,841

1333,556
1343,562

1353,868
1364,484

1375,418
lA

U
N

D
R

Y
2.00%

16,000
16,120

16,242
16.366

16,493
16,622

16,754
16,889

17,026
17,166

17,309
17,455

17,604
17.756

17.911
18.069

PA
R

K
IN

G
1.00%

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
O

T
H

E
R

0.0%
1,00%

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

50
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

1246.972
1254,321

1261,889
1269,682

127.708
1285,973

1294,485
1303,251

1312,278
1321,575

1331,150
1341,011

1351.166
1361.624

1372.95
1383,487

V
A

C
A

N
C

Y
PH

Y
SIC

A
L

2.00%
-14.819

-55,086
-55.238

-55,394
-55.554

,15.719
-15,890

-S6,065
-16,246

-16,432
-16,623

-16,820
-57,023

-17,232
-17.448

-17,670
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

1%
-52,410

-12,543
-12,619

,12,697
-12.77

-12,860
-12,945

-13,033
-53,123

-53.6
-13,312

-53,410
-13,512

-13,616
-13,724

-53,835
N

E
T

1239.743
$246.692

$214,032
1261,591

1269,37
5277,394

1285.650
1294,153

530~909
5311.927

5321,215
1330.781

1340,631
1350,776

131,223
1371,982

SU
B

SID
IE

S
SE

C
T

IO
N

 8 
SE

C
T

IO
N

 9
5182,508

1187,983
1193,623

1199,431
1205,414

1211,577
1217,924

$24,462
1231.196

1238,132
1245,275

1252.634
1260,213

1268,019
1276,060

1284.342
O

T
H

E
R

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
1182,508

1187,983
1193.623

1199,431
1205,414

1211,577
1217,924

1224,462
1231,196

1238.132
1245,275

1252.634
1260,213

1268.019
1276.060

S284,342
V

A
C

A
N

C
Y

3.0%
-55,475

-S5,639
-15.809

-55,983
-16,162

-16,347
-16,538

-16,734
-16,936

-17,144
-17.58

-17,579
-S7,806

-S8,041
-$8,282

-18,530
N

E
T

$j77033
1182,344

5187,614
1193.448

$199.252
S205.230

1211.386
5217,728

1224,260
1230.966

$237,917
1245,055

1252,407
1259.976

5267,778
5215,812

N
O

N
 T

A
X

 C
R

E
O

IT
 U

N
IT

S
G

R
O

SS R
E

N
T

2.00%
$0

SO
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

$0
$0

lA
U

N
D

R
Y

1.00%
$0

10
$0

10
10

10
SO

SO
$0

SO
$0

10
$0

$0
$0

PA
R

K
IN

G
1.00%

10
10

10
10

10
10

SO
10

10
10

10
10

10
SO

10
O

T
H

E
R

1.0(1%
10

10
SO

10
SO

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
SO

10
10

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
10

$0
10

10
10

10
10

SO
10

10
10

SO
10

10
10

10
V

A
C

A
N

C
Y

PH
Y

SIC
A

L
10%

10
10

10
10

10
$0

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
IO

N
1%

10
10

10
10

$0
10

10
10

10
10

$0
10

10
10

10
10

N
E

T
10

10
$0

$0
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

$0
$0

10
10

10

E
FFE

C
T

IV
E

 IN
C

O
M

E
1416,77

1429.036
141.646

1455,039
1466,629

5482,624
1497,036

1511.861
$527,169

1142.915
1559,132

1575.836
5593,038

$610.754
1629.001

1647,794



:Montgomery seníor Lívíng Center 'Urban 'Rnewa( J'socíates, LP
c/o Jersey Cíty Jfousíng .Jut fiíty I r__ ____._0__ ___ _________ __ __..______, ______ ,__ ___.,' ________________ __ ________ __0__ ____0.___ ____ _________ __ ___0.___0______________0 ___________ __ ,__0, _____ ______ 0__ __0_____

EXHIBIT E

ESTIMATED TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST

$ -
1 Cost of land acquisition and any buildings thereon

2 Cost of site preparation, demolition and development (inci utility fees)
$ 200,000

3 Architects, engineers, surveyors, consultants, experts and attorney's fees (paid or
$ 845,003

payable) in connection with the planning, execution and financing of the Development

4 Cost of necessary studies, surveys, plans, and permits (incl geo-tech, market study, appraisal)
$ 128,555

5 Insurance, interest, financing, tax, assessment, and other operating and carrying costs
$ 1,105,316

durinq construction (inc!. accountinq/cost audit, title, soft continqencyl

6 Cost of construction, reconstruction, fixtures, and equipment related to the real propert
$ 10,524,448

(inc!. interior demo and remediation, contingency)

Cost of land improvements $ -7

8 Necessary expenses in connection with initial occupancy of Development (FF&E, marketing)
$ 333,760

9 A reasonable profi or fee to the developer
$ 1,048,967

10 An allowance established by the NJHMFA for working capital and contingency reserves,
$ 748,318

and reserves for any operating deficits

11 Costs of guarantees, insurance or other additional financial security for the Development $ -

12 Cost of such other items, including tenant relocation, as the NJHMFA shall determine to be $ -

reasonable and necessary for the development of the Development, less any and all net

rents and other revenues received from the operation of the real and personal property on

the Development site durinq construction, improvement or rehabilitation

TOTAL
$ 14,934,367
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EXHIBIT F.1

PROJECTED STATEMENT OF STABILIZED PROPERTY OPERA nON

Year 1

ANNUAL INCOME*

Apartments (Tenant Rent & Operating Subsidy)

Other Income

Less Vacancy Loss ~ 3%'
Total Development Income

68 $ 423,480

$ 6,000
$ (12,704)

$ 416,776

OPERATING EXPENSES:

i. ADMINISTRATION

II. SALARIES

IIi. MAINTENANCE

IV. MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS

V. INSURANCE

Sub Total

$ 39,200

$ 73,500

$ 32,600

$ 14,000

$ 37,400

$ 196,700

$ 82,856

$ 33,342

$ 21,495

$ 20,400

$ 14,000

$ 34,500

$ 206,593

$ 403,293 I

$ 13,483

Vi. OPERA riNG

VIi. MANAGEMENT FEE

VIIi. REAL ESTATE TAXES

IX. RESERVES

Vi. SOCIAL SERVICES

VII. OTHER: Employee Benefits

Sub Total

I Total Operating Expenses:

NET OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEBT SERVICE:

DEBT SERVICE:

1. Principal and Interest

2. Debt Service on Other Mortgage Loans
$

$

I Total Debt Service $ . ,
NET OPERATING INCOME AFTER DEBT SERVICE:

$ 13,483
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EXHIBIT F.2

PROJECTED STATEMENT OF STABILIZED PROPERTY OPERATION

Year 16

ANNUAL INCOME*

Apartments (Tenant Rent & Operating Subsidy) 68 $ 659,760
Other Income

$ 8,069
Less Vacancy Loss ~3%' $ (20,035)
Total Development Income

$ 647,794

OPERA TING EXPENSES:

i. ADMINISTRA TION
$ 70,586

II. SALARIES
$ 132,358

IIi. MAINTENANCE
$ 58,701

IV. MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS
$ 25,204

V. INSURANCE
$ 67,347

Sub Total $ 354,196
Vi. OPERATING

$ 149,210
VIi. MANAGEMENT FEE

$ 60,040
ViII. REAL ESTATE TAXES

$ 40,681
IX. RESERVES

$ 20,400
Vi. SOCIAL SERVICES

$ 25,204
VIi. OTHER: Employee Benefits $ 62,133

Sub Total $ 357,668

, Total Operating Expenses:
$ 711,864/

NET OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEBT SERVICE:
$ (64,070)

DEBT SERVICE:

1. Principal and Interest
$

2. Debt Service on Other Mortgage

Loans
$

I Total Debt Service $
. I

NET OPERATING INCOME AFTER DEBT SERVICE:
$ (64,070)
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LESS TOTAL DEBT SERVICE
$

NET INCOME:
$ (64,070)

WITHDRAWL FROM OPERATING RESERVE
$ 65,500

RESULTANT NET OPERATING INCOME:
$ 1,430

*for detail see Ex. 0

*The actual NOI in Year 16 will be based upon the adjusted project income (based on the HUD published rate for that year - which will

likely vary from this projection). Further, the assumed 4% expenses inflation factor above is a projection determined by NJHMFA

underwriting assumptions (as shown in the 15 year Net Operating Income Projection Schedule found on the following page).
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FINANCIAL AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, of the 68 units, fifty-eight (58) wil be one bedroom aparments, and nine

(9) wil be two bedroom apartments, and one (I) additional two bedroom aparment wil be
dedicated for an on-site superintendent ("Development").
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WHEREAS, on , 2011, in accordance with the Act, the Entity filed
a written application to the City for approval of a tax exemption for the Development; and

WHEREAS, the City made the following findings:

A. Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs:

'. -; ":':.;::j~~: . ,". .;
,',' : ::. :.'~

;s, Assessment &f*h.~tlmp()rtirceofthe Tax Exemption in obtaining development of
;ihe,,'project and inifÛ~~ping tlÌe(ilocational decisions of probable occupants:

, .,;::~tJlt\~~:;~~_ ~~;it~tt:~\./,'
~%~Wr:;:;the relative!t~tkbility and predictability of the annual service charges wil

".~,;:;';;~.(r,::, :~:'::',:;.:

nr"'" Jie Proj~'Ct more attractive to investors and lenders needed to finance the
..'."-:-P .'. ,;i.';f:rOJ' 'i,l

'\'~~~!~';?/

2. the relative stability and predictability of the service charges will allow the
owner to stabilze its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance to
the building over the life of the Project, which will insure the likelihood of the
success of the Project and insure that it wil have a positive impact on the
surrounding area; and
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WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance adopted on
2011, the Municipal Council approved the above findings and the tax exemption application
and authorized the execution of this agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and
for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanteçl;li~áiiagreed as follows:

.~i~~~r~'

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISlôÌls,i,

Section i. Governing L.W'f/f~C;:'" ~;il,k"
,j/ "'~~~;'tf-"

This Agreement shall be governed by the prQVisions of the Long Terr~f'~ E;xemption
,-',::':'X~':it/,:.. ~\'., '='~~~~~:¥~~1~;~~~~::L'-'

Law, as amended and supplemented, NJ.S.A. 40A:2:QÆ);.et seq.;¡¡Executive Ordeit,rihe Mayor,
02-003, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance , \%:liÇ:ni~Û'Th~i1zed the exectiIion of this
Agreement. It being expressly understû,Qd and agreed th~F;ì~~i;Çity expressly relies upon the
facts, data, and representations containeâi'Ìl:tb~ Application:"à~ç.lied hereto as Exhibit 3, in
granting this tax exemption. 'iti,;;~:ES~':4\';g;fd'i;:;'i(".."\t~i~~;F;:'

~;/'.:...-,:,.-.~;;,,::. ;,
\":;, ~'~'-~ ',-'.' \:'~~~;(~~;i ,':~':"h;.::)

;-( . "'.:.

Unless specific;~íìt';~;~~f~~.cl otherwise6t,the conte~~;otherwise requires, when used in

this Agreement, the4&fÏ~~ing teri¥ shall have thé,fpJlowing meanings:

I'é~~;~'C::~~!:!::~:,c;~~~~~:::~~~e~h::~:~e:;SS

;t~ gross incorne:t:tgJJre estãt,.lsh,ed by geographic region and household size using the
";¡'i!i~ì~æ.~ome guideil~f:,~pprov6W'¥b~ use by the New Jersey Council on Affordable

FJ9llsing or as it iro/ be amended pursuant to NJ.A.C. 5:92-12..' .:~ -,- - ~~
AIl~~~~l~:Net !!¡tfit- The amount arrived at by applying the Allowable Profit Rate
to Totaf'RfqJepfJCost pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:20-3(c).

Section 1.2 General Definitions

II.

III. Allowable'Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per anum arrived at

by adding 1.25% to the annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity's initial
permanent mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or
guaranteed by a governental agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar
charge, if payable on a per anum basis, shall be considered as interest for this
purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage financing, or if the financing is internal
or undertaken by a related party, the Allowable Profit Rate shall be the greater of
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12% or the percentage per anum arrived at by adding 1.25% per anum to the
interest rate per

annum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate on mortgage
financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of
NJ.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.

iv. Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or Keri~~fâted by the Project of
whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent fr~í:ifi\any tenants or income or

_,~t:;~_: ':~Y~J;~,'"

fees from third paries, including but not limitedl~:)fees\Ö:tiiwome paid or received

for parking, laundry, health club user fees or glJètt~ervices ._ as lease premiums
-,'.:"~"i1f~;... '~.~. - .:.,

for views, fireplaces, etc.). No deductions.~îtõé"'allowed for , ting or
maintenance costs, including, but not l' /"r.'- d to gas, electric, wate . v; . selVer, other3\ _ ...~~:-_ 'i~ . -~~~'f
utilities, garbage removal and insurañ' ,. es, w," her paid for b ',_, "'landlord,
tenant or a third party, except for customar \ ':¡¡,. g"êxpenses of cofumercial
tenants such as utilities, ins't~ce and taxes (1 _.~'~~)ng payments in lieu of taxes)
which shall be deducted froriitar:geaS Revenue bas'tfd!r~u the actual amount of such

costs incurred. "';',.,.,,' . .'.:\'.:~§,.'!. .'
-..~, : : .;:..'- :::':~::~' ~:.-;' ..", _; .: ,.::::i?'" -.

V. Annual Service.Ç~arge - The aria:Uilti~~~AtityYnåS a~reed to pay the City for
municipal sçrV:lf~g.'gnpplied to the Pr¿iject, whiclé~um is in Lieu of any taxes on the

Improvenietlts., purs~~t;Jo N.J. SA 4°4:20-12.
.,.2....'.... ,.:;:~ ;:;::_.:. :::'.%,.::;' ".,

VI. Audi~Rr's R:;~;,r"$i¡j.l~~cit:tatement outlining the finacial status of
,tl,è~p~&j:¡~tt(.fpr a í5iji.~;g, ofù~t~Š~Üidicated by context), which shall also include a

),,; certificatió~tâ~.iIotal.-P~Wj'l\Gt Cost and clear computation of Net Profit. The contents
':.~+,pfthe Audito~fã¡;R:e.port ~h~f;h~ve been prepared in conformity with generally

";':~~çrpted accourtl~g prin¿iples and shall contain at a minimum the following: a
bal~itet sheet, a stgtement of income, a statement of retained earings or changes in

":":~::':"~"-- -:.,/....
stocidgrqers' eql,lt), a statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies,
notes t~1'i~~çl~lstatements and appropriate schedules and explanatory material
results of qJ~;ations, cash flows and any other items required by Law.The
Auditor's Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such principles by a
certified public accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in the State of
New Jersey.

ViI. Certificate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in par, pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 52:27D-133.
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VIII.

ix.

X.

XL.

XiI.

XiII.

XiV.

Xv.

Debt Service - The amount required to make annual payments of principal and
interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent
mortgage or other financing including returns on institutional equity financing and
market rate related pary debt for the project for a period equal to the term of this
agreement.

~-_~~1rf~~~~L;~:~À

Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entitl(%tö perform any obligation
imposed upon the by the terms of this Agreement, Q~ilw~r the Law, beyond any
applicable grace or cure periods'/ft¡~l: '~""ii)fl:);BJ1!h',

Entity - The term Entity within this AgreeRÍ~*i:"~I1aiì mean M¿MfgQ.p1ery Senior

Living Urban Renewal Associates, L.g,;¡:thich Entity is formed ~â.;~i:ltill;fed
pursuant to NlS.A. 40A:20-5. It shat(~iš~i:mclude)~p;ysubsequent p~Bß~sers or

successors in interest of the Project, providè'~~p'e;ýd\à~ef6rmed and op~rate under theLaW"~~i". Wiiil~~, ...
Improvements or Project - ÄÎl1. i'ri~ing;, structure ôr;ilkture permanently affxed
to the land and to be constructed\ard 't~~~lteml?t~d und~t this Agreement.

\0\. /,~:,,;?~'~' "."~';'~!)~;:tf;rrrl~~:~;)tr

In Rem Ta;riF6:l~f ,re or Tax i~~eclosure ./A summar proceeding by which

the City ma~,tnforc~-' ",en for taxes dVe and owing by tax sale, under N.lS.A.
54:~-::~ 54?$~t~;:íí~~~~~;~:;::~:'

,JJäìiái1?:~~s,,;:; Thè~(:" 'lit of ta~ès;àssessed on the value of land, if any, on which

_tV;- the projea~f§'lìlç¡ited 'f applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements.
::o~;-',Land Taxes ~ã.ý1;be exerr~tl?however, if Land Taxes are levied, Entity shall receive

"\~;~n~:.~:." \~:~;;~:~, _,;:;'~
i¡¡t;~BP;~dit against tfie?:Annual Service Charge.

\~;::~::?t;lr:' l!::i~r

LandtiÄk;;laymeøt~ - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including
approvedt~ttiçêi~eriods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor
and the TajY6~llector.

Law - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and
supplemented, N.lS.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor 02-003,
relating to long term tax exemption, as it may be amended and supplemented;
Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance 08-106, which authorized the execution ofthis
Agreement; and Ordinance , as may be amended or supplemented
from time to time, which requires the execution of a Project Labor Agreement, and
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all other relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and
regulations.

XVI. Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall
be the greater of:

(a) The amount of the total taxes levied against aqA¡~,fl1 property in the area

covered by the Project in the last full tax yç;attiîî-~Iìích the area was

subject to taxation, or in the case oftax ,. .'io~', property, the projected
tax levy based upon the assessed valu. , r th " in which the

application is filed, which amo~1ili~, p~áries ag '.,¡~~mld be $_
; or,#It~'~.',\¡, ,i¡~"ll'f'

(b) The sum of $21,928 per yéar;-'\'niçh suin)Mâll be prorated 9rìly in the
years in which Substantial ComßÍ~liQrë6~c~s and this Ag;eement

:::~::um j~t~~ç~::~!~,;~aid in each year in
which the Annual SefYJee êk,iige~:;~~lç~~atédpursuant to NJ.S.A.
40J\~39:)f or this Agriemefit, wo~ïiíift~q~ss than the Minimum Annual

s,etvl¿~'~#ê:ge. ;~/ ,':
.' .... ~ ~.

. .;.~'),..:\~;.-.,.., -','~:~',,:.'..','.:;;".,.:' '. '~'0,:::::f~ ",_' _. .:-~-:;:_.. .;..;\_ . _.-"
XVII. Net Profit -"DJ,~£Jros~;lt$~yenues ofth~'!EÌ1tity less all operating and non-operating

expeAs~~ ofthe-~tl'itltý::£ll:ttêtêìinep::'I~ accordance with generally accepted

f''¡2W~¡::~f~k~~:'' " ..'
". ::. (1) Thêf:~~sl1all b~'î~6îuded in expenses: (a) all Anual Service charges paid

';'"C pursJ~t to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12; (b) all payments to the City of excess,"i_,, profit~t~hrsuant to NlS.A. 40A:20- 15 or NJ.S.A. 40A:20- 1 6; (c) an

';':;"~th:,!innill~rbount suffcient to amortize (utilizing the straight line method-
";:':t~qtfár annual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital costs

,:d~termined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
of any other entity whose revenue is included in the computation of
excess profits over the term of this agreement; (d) all reasonable anual

operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is
included in the computation of excess profits including the cost of all
management fees, brokerage commissions, insurance premiums, all
taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting, or other professional
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service fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office
supplies and payments into repair or maintenance reserve accounts; (e)
all payments of rent including but not limited to ground rent by the
Entity; (f) all debt service, if applicable; and

There shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or
obsolescence, interest on debt, except interest WWph is par of debt
service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses 0r';6th~~"ê'ompensation paid,

directly or indirectly to directors, officer~,;ãi(t:;s;tockholders of the entity,
or offcers, partners or other persons ltglding~~~'kgprietary ownership

interest in the entity. ,,0'f:;;:'i2?i:~\ -":~ri:):~B~2t

Agi\- ";d)~tt;Kh.
XVIII. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the ni!.~~ne, femiine or neutrarg~~tf:/the

singular, as well as the plural, as cOiitèxt"1~~lti,~es'ir~~;;~'i\j'f.'"

XIX. Substantial Completion -1;llt determinati~:/¡~~&e, City that the Project, in whole
or in par, is ready for the us¿;~:,- ß~d, which ordfflll~ sh~ll mean the date on
which the Project receives, or r:; i~l~,tQieceive aiy~~eftificate of Occupancy for

any portion of the Project. 
"i': ;"i;it;~";:.(:,, .....,\"

-r'o"

(2)

":-':-':'~:)-::"-':i
. .~.,
.~;, -\')-~:.-"::;:'."
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ARTICLE II - APPROVAL

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be
constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and
the provisions ofthe Law which Improvements shall be constructed on, certain property known

,.:::s

on the Official Tax Assessor's Map of the City as: Block 2116, Lo~j~¥ttnqre commonly known
by the street address of 563 Montgomery Street, and described g::;~;:¡~" tes and bounds in Exhibit

1 attached hereto..~(~"\.,;,
Section :~::::ri:v:~:~:::e Entity whose ~C:::fEprmation::~¥ereto as

Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate c6~t~fft~t;all thei~'q\lisite provisio~~;g'fthe Law;
has been reviewed and approved by the Commissione;;:&i~~tDep~rtment of Co~unity
Affairs; and has been fied with, as apprepriate, the Officéô~l:l State Treasurer or Offce of
the Hudson County Clerk, all in accordåh~~:~th NJ.SA. 40Æ;~.ó~S.

~Y;:~,.' :::~';~~f::ßi~.~~,'.';;i" c. -\~j;rlK:~ :~:~/:' '. .
';!"~~';;"'',' ;",.~~/

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Construètlld '-:'d\:,; ..;
::,:,',:::" ";":_(::;-~';:'.""::":;L.:

Entity represent~Jliàtt1~'lNgt substantiai1y:r~habilitat~;:~ existing 1 O-story building and

construction a new t\YØf~tory actiittitm. The existtng fuctionally obsolete seventy-six (76) units
wil be converted td~r~t~:ejght (6Sjmodern units;':With sixty-seven (67) being affordable to
seniors of lowincome ~d\~~'e;Cli~~~qtlfFeyen~elln.it;'reserved for the building superintendent.

The project,wrlX'~Øn~ln firt~lt'(" t (5'8)6~j~€~~åi~om units and ten (10) two-bedroom units, all
of whiclii,~~':~~eciii~~i~¿&~.s:crib~~:d,_ e Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

secii~~\'1;,~nstrcti::\rn;:!i¡¡!!; ..

The EiHtty.¡;grees to arÏ1gently undertake to commence construction and complete the

Project in accordàh~'e~yvithW~ Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5.
~'~~~)~;~~:~:., . ;.~:~' (:.

'-"~~'3'.~.': - :.;f:

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the property upon which the Project is to be
constructed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements wil be managed
and controlled as follows:

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the Land upon which the project is to be
constructed and wil manage and control the Project. The City acknowledges that the Entity
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may enter into a management agreement for the Project and wil pay a management fee in
accordance with BID regulations as provided in the Entity's agreement with HUD, which fee
was disclosed in its tax exemption application. The City acknowledges that the Entity may
enter into future management agreements so long as such agreements are not used to reduce
the City's economic benefits under this Agreement and the management fees to be paid are
comparable to those disclosed in the application.

Section 2.6 Financial Plan ;...,::f::-~"~:'::'-',~",

_,"'~);~,

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall ber~ãrb;~li;:in accordance with the
..x~~,~;~~. ",,:::'~K;';;'

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets,foI'~ estimate:¡\~Iotal Project Cost,

the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the sOllê~~D,tJhds, the iSfi$l:~~t rates to be paid
c't-(:j" '-~':~"':';R::~.

on constrction financing, the source and amount a~i;ÍJàid-in capital, and the . of any
. . ..~~ti:f;?::, '''t.mortgage amortizatlOn.;:d"';:;;t41h Æi""

.....:1i~?m:t:",tt,l);;"':,.,

Section 2.7 Statement of Rental Schedules and Lease'~1r'" s,;., .
"':'~~'~f4: ~" . -.

The Entity represents that its good fàil\'fr9j.~ctions ofthe'(~;.:,iaJ.rental schedules and lease
terms are set forth in Exhibit 7 .~~~,,,:~':~;t~;h;;l¡)!)&;;;:,~~rtk;¡'\ '-';)\i,:.R':t?

. ..:: ~:.,., .
d);¡..; ; .~ - ;:"~' ::~.

Section 3.1 Term
;.~z~3:)~:~:~ :-: ~'::::,":~ :...";

So long as ~er;TI~J'Pl~"~J!theLa~'ihd this Agreement, it is understood and
agreed by th,Y;iR~i~s¡JJereto''iii~,thi~'A:gTl~éfi~Rtt~shaii remain in effect for the earlier of 33

-'/"::i?:k.1,;~:,::,'~':.~~~;~~~~'I:S:~~~'" '~-::~~:::~~,,~ - ,~\k,'
years fr9&i~'the datê"'õti~~f~doptí~:sr Ordinance on , 2011 which
apprQY9l:Jhe tax exem¡)tt(ïTfor 3Ò'Y:~~§;lrom the date of Substantial Completion of the,'~'-' ."' !;~:: '~';~;':.:..: . ~",..:~i'~'.ê.~, ,,~:=~;;:,:..-'"
ProjêcC~~?lax exemption'-':~JI only toe effective during the period of usefulness of the Project
and shall ~6riíiPlle in force ~ . ,~ whil~ the Project is owned by a corporation or association

formed and opgt~tfH-,g under i~ Law.
.' q~~;a.),~~c, -.ß:::"

";;imTICLE iv - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE

.' :~: ~:~~,

Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following payments to
the City:

(i) City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Annual

Service Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 6.28% of the Anual Gross
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Revenue for the low and moderate income units. The Annual Service Charge shall be
biled initially based upon the Entity's estimates of Anual Gross Revenue which shall
not be less than the its estimate of Gross Revenue as set forth in its Financial Plan,
attached hereto as Exhibit 6.Thereafter, the Anual Service Charge shall be adjusted in
accordance with this Agreement.

A Minimum Anual Service Charge shall be due begiIlng on the effective date
of this Agreement. The Annual Service Charge shall be due~,9ït1filè;Jìrst day of the

month following the Substantial Completion of the Proj.~~!Wkn the event the Entity fails

to timely pay the Minimum Anual Service Charge qr::4fíe 'V.. . i Service Charge, the
unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of inter~tpltpitted lh:;lhe, case of unpaid
taes or ta liens on land until Paid',ff.(l0""'i." ,,' "''lti,t""

(ii) County Service Charge: an amOl.t"-éi!í%,alto 5%\efthe Annual S'efYtce- Charge

upon receipt of that charge, for remittance to'tiì~~~9UltYb'y,the City.-:'

Section 4.2 Staged Adjustments Tt~l:~j";...,,., ':;~~~'t~k"i

The Annual Service Charge shall b~acljûar'eshi,~ Stages ov~l,/the term of the tax

exemption in accordance with N.J. S.A. 40Â,¡gO- 1 2áiJi:a$;;f.(lU9W~; ,"

:::i\i:;i':,.'t; /ßP' . "";:':t~rß\:';)

Stage O:ne:HFf6inj~ht first day of;lhe month f6Jiowing Substantial Completion
until,JlA',~r:' st day"ãile fifteenth ýe§lr, the Annual Service Charge shall be

6.28% fa :;~~iow~i~ moderate inÖ"~tre units;
;.'..,...' ,;. '. .'. ."'- ., ,::,~:W,:i;/ér~~~~\~¡:.j:e;~:'-,?,,,:.;;,::

II.t',';;:~S;tã.ge£:rwo:gliing orltMê;jJ~St day of the 16th year following Substantial
",',,;- . "'~-~~~):~:;~~7.:~(~;" , ,,?;~:..t~j:..

Com¡Ylèifq~),intiri1t~;tast day of the 21st year, an amount equal to the greater of
the Anu~P;'$ervice êRarge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on
the value o:ttl~iand ahd Improvements;

1.

d',.::..,

, ':'f~,:,'-.' ::;.:;:.~,::::::.
~x:;:~~

III.Sf,#ge Three: :ø~ginning on the 1st day of the 22nd year following the
...~¡(:,',_....:':. .;~~/?

Su15,."'Ji~llt1'6mpletion until the last day of the 27th year, an amount equal to
the grêat~t-;of the Annual Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes

otherw~e due on the value of the land and Improvements;

IV. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 28th year following Substantial
Completion until the last day of the 29th year, an amount equal to the greater of
the Anual Service Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on
the value of the land and Improvements.
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iv. Final Stage: Beginning on the 1st day of the 30th year following Substantial
Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the
greater of the Anual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes
otherwise due on the value of the land and Improvements.

Section 4.3 Credits

o../~~.:.

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Char i''''''th,tlie Land Tax
Payments. The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Pay:, . s, including any tax on the
pre-existing improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land. c Against the Anual
Service Charge for the subsequent year. The Entity shall ne ,)tled t ".:, qit for the amount,

.':'r,~. ..... '~'r-:':::-:r

without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in thi;øîâ§~(9li precediWgt~llarerly
installments against the Annual Service Charge. In","'1iquarter that the Entit~~alls to make any
Land Tax Payments when due and owing, suchq;êlti;,.. .....~ncy sÎi~,lrender the Eri~ißrieligible
for any Land Tax Payment credits against the Annu~PS~Gric,¥sldiãrge for that quà:her. No

credit wil be applied against the Annual Service Charg~~f~!ipflrtial payments of Land Taxes.
In addition, the City shall have, amongt~sJ._emedy and oth¿~fremedies, the right to proceed

":;-'~',':-~;'~.~ ":;--';;.' -: . '. . .....,.;,.,'.'/;_:~':

against the property pursuant to the In ReatfW~:iQreclosure ACir!~~o"SrA. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or

declare a Default and terminate this Agreerient:')ii(:::,dt;;t~1J::".~10V"
;~.~¡: :;,~:.~ ,_: "~.yV.

. ..,:_;;/~\: .'.... -'~i:', :~:;,,::.~~, '.
-(; .:.,.'r~:'

Section 4.4 Quarterly Ins:mllmei,ts'.:::i'

The Entity e~;i~:;~i~at the AnnJis,ervce Chage shall be made in quaerly

installments on tho'~e d~¡~~Jient.~~ßstate tax p~Ýihènts are due; subject, nevertheless, to

adjustment for,(~yr"pr.undêti~~¿rl\~i:tm;tlnt(30) days after the close of each calendar
year. In the;è~éht4ít~~tne,.Entit~itaiJs to p~y Ùî~ Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount

shall qeal'the highest ;át~jto~~5nte~~it;nien;itted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on theiand~'t~, 't'í'::"
Section 4.5 A:;"'tnistrative I¥ie""""', j~~¡'

The Entity '. al~ilpay an annual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the
.~ .::~17

Annual Service Char'./ end Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two

(2%) percent of each prior year's Anual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on
or before December 31st of each year, and collected in the same maner as the Annual Service
Charge. In the event that the Entity fails to timely pay the Administrative Fee, the amount
unpaid shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens
on the land until paid.
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Section 4.6 Material Conditions

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes,
Minimum Annual Service Charges, Anual Service Charges, including adjustments thereto,
Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest thereon, are Material
Conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRAGTÌN~G AGREEMENT
.-,::~;..,:

;.i;:-J;':~,
Section 5.1 Project Employment and Contracting Agreeme;lÍt'':+!'i

.j:';':;" "\';(;::';~:.-.

In order to provide City residents and businessea;~Mthaåertain ~ii~ltxment and other
economic related opportunities, the Entity is subjecqø;the-t~hns and condi¥~atiê: of the Project
Employment and Contracting Agreement, attache~?i~,reto as E#fhibit 8. "':'j~1~.tj;t,,::/

K' .~~~~~sg~:;).; ,:,:.A~fki~~~. \tj¡;9~ .

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE"8FtOECUPANCY
:--,
~~

Section 6.1 Certifcate of Occupancy "~;:~,~-? '~:'~l¡iî!~b.

It is understood and agreed that it ";iw¡;ii¡~.;m¡¡igatio:~¡:i~EntitY to obtai all
Certificates of Occupancy in a timely maner;;~o a~,;,t6cÕmP"!:~t7:,c()nstruction in accordance
with the proposed constrl1~tlRiiaçliedule attached'hereto as'!Rhibit 5, The failure to secure the
Certificates of Occupar~Y sh~ifg~gject the property to full taxation for the period between the
date of SubstantiaiCoinpl~tion anq!.the date the eertWcate of Occupancy is obtained.

Section 6.2 FUl;ag;nJCertiliç~~lf6f-O~8ijlnt:aÇYv
._;/':;~:';:;wm:'i~j¡,;3~;i':í.¡,~':;~ài'::"_f; . """cß'- .

,Jl/shall be the P~~l respqlisi,pility of 
the Entity to forthwith fie with both the Tax

Asses§tj~;:o? the Tax Co1f~~t9r a c~p~;:Ófeach Certificate of Occupancy. Failure of the Entity
';':"::""~'t ":~~"\r"~'_ ~__..,.

to fie suc1¥;~~~ned Certificat~l;nf Occûpancy as required by the preceding paragraph, shall not

militate agairi~t1:~y action o~,~on-action, taken by the City, including, if appropriate retroactive

biling with intet~st;î9.r any,øharges determined to be due, in the absence of such fiing by the
Entity.d;;:F:'J';;:

;',:~::;:-r

:';'"
.'.;....;,.-;......'"

,.
t";'.

ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1 Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established
and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. An Auditor's Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or
calendar year, depending on the Entity's accounting basis that the Agreement shall
continue in effect, the Entity_shall submit to the Mayor and Municipal Council and
the NJ Division of Local Governent Services in the Department of Community
Affairs, its Auditor's Report for the preceding fiscal or calençlaryear. The Auditor's
Report shall include, but not be limited to: condominillji\il~purchase price, and
the terms and interest rate on any mortgagees) associi(d'f \Vith the purchase or;:/t,,,'Y', (

constrction of the Project and such details as m~l?bl ,.. e financial affairs of

the Entity and to its operation and performan5'0~~péfe,"under; ..,. u,~t to the Law and

this Agreement. The Report shall clearlYi,g#fitiry"anèi calculatè:'~,¡~et Profit for the
Entity during the previous year. ::.;;rf~;;~it::._'-j,¡;i\; ':~'::~~:¡~~.~?;,.-

B. Disclosure Statement: On the aniversary a~ted?ftJ1ë'€xecution ofthiS'Agreement,

and each and every year thereafter while this:ãgt~ement is in effect, the Entity shall
-:~ù\~:/,

submit to the Municipal cotig.ll,)he Tax ColledÖr~~dthe City Clerk, who shall
advise those municipal offici~i~dfè~'9i-repto be advi~ê~¡;:a,:Pìsclosure Statement

listing the persons having an owner;iip-¡i~terest in the ~'¥bject, and the extent of the
ownership interest of each and sii6h adgiti6Käit:'mignn~tion as the City may request

from time to ,!lGÎø~f:~;;¡;:%(., \;H:;' \';:

Section 7.3 Inspe4dit ~';,,' ,
"~t~l~:~;.:k, ,~%::jZ:;?:'i.;:. .:.~¡"i";

The Entlty,.s.,lall pe~::tIë îrìšpêi1tj;atiqp;its property, equipment, buildings and other
'- -/:~:r~~r~:::~~!)'!;~ ~:;;, - ,.", "\:'::1,Ç',:;:,.,_ '- . '~.;:..¿ :'::~.' :1~.~: ~:~:::'

facilities ,,9.¥tlie"Prõ'J~e? 'ß, if d~~~td approprfate or necessary, any other related Entity by

represen,rátives duly au '..:;'ied by~'t~eÇity and the NJ Division of Local Governent Services
..:~~;.\:;t:)\, 'C::.:.~~~':~:~"_ ":';':;';;-h~:-; \

in thêD'éltllrtment of Corr~ity Af~ajrs. It shall also permit, npon request, examination and
audit of it~t;~~'Qks, contracts;'~t¡çords,'documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be

made duringtl~\t~~sonable ~Whrs of the business day, in the presence of an offcer or agent
designated by thé~ltity. All060sts incured by the City to conduct the audit, including
reasonable attomey~:¡\f~esfifappropriate, shall be biled to the Entity and paid to the City as

par of the Entity's Artial Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the
same rate as for a delinquent service charge.
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ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a
limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions ofN J .S.A. 40A:20-l5. The Entity shall have
the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals, and re,~sonable contingencies
in an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the Gross Revenue oftq~)trlìity for the last full
fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such part of the eX2~~§Net Profits as is necessary

to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in N.J .s~,t~~;4Ø,~;~?,9-l5. The reserve is to
.)'S:x,~." "-::'~~" _,'

be non-cumulative, it being intended that no fuher crediJ~ t~reto shit, ';~.permitted after the
reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five ($C~J~pe;C'ent of th i~k ßding year's
Gross Revenue. Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-l4(b)d;lt~e is expressly exclu' "', om the

calculation of Gross Revenue and Net Profit in thê'~~~rrinaÙ9~ of Excess Pro "',c' y gain..~~....~O;!,. ¡~;;':~/'" .~_:-:.'
realized by the Entity on the sale of any condominiuri~t, wlíêtñer or not taxable under

-'~~~'r~:~;.if~ ~:~:~~.federal or state law. 'i?Ul:\:,-,
"::'~~~n;¡;;:.

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Exces;t~~t.-:~;nrfit";;'::;l~?;,(,

In the event the Net Profits of the ;~;:~~JWAs\lLy"J~:~li exceed the Allowable
'-? ,,';.:(:., ",rJ"~"~t.'X'~"~"'~'''~~'::'¡;

Net Profits for such perioa,,;~~athe Entity, wi'twp/óne huîÔÌ~l:t and twenty (120) days after the
':~-_;~~'~'_;"':~::'~:"' ::;~1\";'::~, -..:~;,:._,,, '!:'~'"

end of such fiscal year,;i§lîáirpã'M~§H.ch excess Net Profits to the City as an additional service

charge; provided, h9§l~~~;W' that ~~'~ntity may riw.nt~in a reserve as determined pursuant to

aforementioned paragrißh1i~~Z~\t Tll~;~alculation oftté'~ntityls excess net profits shall include

those projectçpsts.Airectly:'ã,~l¡btãBli¡t6tsite.,r.~ri~diation and cleanup expenses and any other

costs exctJ,deâ~ifi¡iH~ii~"WRiti~trij~~;~otal p~~l~¿rCost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this agreement even
thoughtKbse costs m;§~h~xe bee~:~e4ngted from the project costs for puroses of calculating
the árÛ~istrvice charge."d;!,~;,\'r;'

"'(,:.:;"

Section 8.3P¡~h.ent of Re~~~elExcess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale,~::::.,'-: ,..:,", :. ¡":'-,

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1 Approval
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Any sale or transfer of the Project, shall be void unless approved in advance by
Ordinance of the Municipal CounciL. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written
application by the Entity, wil not uneasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and
the transfer of this Agreement provided: 1) the new Entity does not own any other Project
subject to long term tax exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and
eligible to operate under the Law; 3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the
Law; 4) the Entity's obligations under this Agreement is fully assum. ~:gy the new Entity,S)

,-t. :"~"":;~.~

the Entity shall pay the City a transfer fee equal to 2% of the then,~," enfAnnual Service
Charge as required by NJ .S.A. 40A:20-l0d."i'.:¥&&1,fr;;"

Section 9.2 Fee j!fèæ~:,i¡'~f¥:r¡¡¿

Where the consent or approval of the City i,s,¡$bught for approval of â::;qIÎAAge in:..::,,::';s,,:;'., .0", ':~'::;;;t:i):..,--, ,.:"
ownership or sale or transfer of the Project, the Efftl~i§hall be'r$quired to pay t&liø"City a new
tax exemption application fee for the legal and admirii'ŠÎ~tl\TS?;1$ê~ces of the Citf;as it relates

to the review, preparation and/or submission of documeriir'~?-:~he Municipal Council for

appropriate action on the requested assi~ent. The fee sha '\~)t;.non-refundable.
';iê~¥:ttlitrft§ '.", ,';~+1J;¡0r:\:',,;'

ARTICLÊ',X -,.;. - ,; ~ ;iLIANCE ';;;t'
,. .':~

C!.,;;" ,. '\:~~¿~ù~;:.~.:/
Section 10.1 Operation ,:;,Y),i,~;:,_.': '.':~;, d'~' .

During the t~~:Qf this Àg~~ement, the ~~qj ect shall be maintained and operated in
accordance with thè prg~ll9ns ofii~~eLaw. OperatJpri'of Project under this Agreement shall
not only be termll1able as'ß£~'mÀé'dK!i~i~~1;S;A",4,QA:20-l, et seq., as curently amended and

. ~?:\:~::~~i::::~-:~""':-.::' : . . "('/'=-_r~:'~"'" ~ ".:,'. - ~::' ~~:"J~.~~":;j:'-;:~'
supplemen't~'¿WbU1Jis~¡;p~ a :O~~~! under-lhîsJ'Àgreement. The Entity's failure to comply with

the La~(;fh~ll constihitê:tai~~efauri!;f~~trthis Agreement and the City shall, among its other

rem~dfês~~;:have the right tOtt~l;inateffe;.tax exemption.
, :.::~):~',; ....;:.;:.1Jt !.!;o;,;'

~-:.,¡ttr:~:f" ";r'.':~.:):~
Section 10.í\~i.s,riosure of E~~byist Representative

-.., ";)'~:'.:;. ::-,-::~I

,,,j':~(jIt~:/-;;:, _ ¿~(
During thè't~fi0tthls Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-

005, and Ordinance 02*015, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status.
The Entity's failure to'comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a
Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to
terminate the tax exemption. .

15



ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or
failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable
notice, cure or grace period.

16
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owing at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if there
had been no termination. Furher, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum
Anual Service Charge, the Annual Service Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution,
Administrative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein
provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to
terminate the tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any otherspecified remedy. ,¿y~~¡i,\

In the event of a Default on the par of the Entity to pay,ai~:'~~arges set forth in Article
IV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to . ':;"t~~Fi~WFst the Entity's land

and property, in the maner provided by the In Rem F ore,çJosure Act,'1I~!any act
.;i~~~t;~:~~~.:_;¡_. --;.~. ...~-K.*S~rk:,.

supplementar or amendatory thereof. Whenever the)tôtdtaxes appear, ófil$:;ca plied, directly
or impliedly to mean taxes or municipal liens on le.a~"such statutory provisiâ,".naii;be read,

as far as is pertinent to this Agreement, as if theêh1fg~s,were t~K~s or municip~F;~~fi~ on land.
.:;'~~'."-'.':' . .;~:;rï.-' C...':',:,. ,::~:;

;;::~i~wt~?;;:~;'5tP;:'

ARTICLE XII- TERMINÂWlON

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Defa;." ~.i;ntity "\~4,:,'.',...",.,.:.."....,_,.;;".........;.",..........
~.i:\ "- ", :;l:~~'r~?f':;.:;;;;;" ' "

In the event the Entity fails to cure ~~.;rem~4~;t~eiJflef~U,11~ithin the time period

provided in Section 11.2, tl¥~;i~Çj.ty may termirl'lì.tc;;;:tlIìs Ag;~~~è'ht upon thirty (30) days written

notice to the Entity (her,eiii'S~fé'n;k:dJo as the "NøJice of Terfination").
.:....~.':..:.~ :"";'r~'~:~: './i

_.:..:::~1:.;~~:i¡1\;,. ~~~f: ..,-;.;-\~-,
Section 12.2 voiuntary~i1iecrmina!~n by the Entity'

ThS,,!WIi~~~~~;t~l~;;;~~î'1()1'J¡~';ear from the Substatial Completion of the
Projectnptify the Cìtýitlfat:,as ofà\;Šei;ain date designated in the notice, it relinquishes its status
as ata~~~Kempt Project AsSnf the diitg;,~,o set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges

';. -"~~,-.~.:c.'~;.;. . .:-y;.;~ :-- '.:"~'_'. ,"-
and the pralh~d dividend~~,s~rictions' shall terminate.

'''t~~:'k '. ;(~~"
Section 12.3 FiIl~h~ccountm'g

'...;:_:tA:::~',_~ -,;)(~:.

Within nin~il~È?;lf&~ys after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of
the Entity or by virte)df the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement,
the Entity shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to
the provisions ofN.l.S.A. 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any excess Net Profits. For puroses of
rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the end of
the fiscal year for the Entity.
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Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project
shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and
conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable
property in the City.

Section 12.5 Termination Payment , ,;~:..~~..:~\~::

;;x/.-

...,.,.:"
,...;:....

'-,"\

ARTICLE XIV - WAIVER
',; .;.,;':)-\

Section 14.1 Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or
relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right
to terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided
herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit any right of recovery of any amount which the
City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.

18



ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as pary defendant
in any action alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this

Agreement and/or the provisions ofNJ.S.A. 40A:20-1 et-, the Entity shall indemnify and hold
the City harless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (ingÌti&aing reasonable
attorneys' fees and costs, though trial and all stages of any appeal;ìicludi~g the cost of

.: :N~f?~,;?

enforcing this indemnity) arising out of Agreement. In additi, ~ tfì&~tity expressly waives all
.ó; 'i:._~,~,~..,

statutory or common law defenses or legal principles whi h ;~, uld dèy~a¡ ,'- he purposes of this'V" 'r* ':r.
indemnification. The Entity also agrees to defend the S,W ts'òwn expè.. --'. ounsel to be

"';x"

selected by the City, subject to the reasonable con§~~'f"ofthe Sntity. Howeve,:.~Cio/
maintains the right to intervene as a party theret9Pf, .ich inte::iention the Ent! ,j~õÌisents;

the expense thereof to be borne by the City. ''':W;ç~:~jE~:E:;.¡i~:)P:' ß/

ARTlt?LE XVI- NOTiê~;\,
~~~x~:;:n,.+".' ..:;

. ':'::::.~,:, x;H¿.,~,-';'."_':'"

..".;.;\~:t'A~~;.;,. ;;...:. '::-:~:'-~:;~~'~;:;;,.,. .

:-:-:"-,.";"

'¡:~:?~~:.,'.;:;"-'

Section 16.1 Certifed Mail ':"":.' :-;::!
"J:':':::'

~ ,;. "

"~~:F

Jerseytity Housing Authority

400 U.S. Highway #1
Jersey City, New Jersey 07306
Attn: Maria T. Maio, Executive Director

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.
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In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this
Agreement, of the name and address of Entity's Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such
Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:
;;~~tt~:\h:~.'..

,,£;;./.,, ~"\'"

City of Jersey City, Offce oftlíe City Clerk
City Hall
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

"-'.

,f,f'Y .....'q¡~tJ~tJt,..
with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the_BaslIless Adirnistrator, and tn:'et;NEll"Collector

unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shaÎÎ h~~&':~9'1~fi~:gjithe;Entity other~i~~. The notice

to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates,(N~k~lt~e Urban Renewal Entity and the
Property's Block and Lot number).,""'st':1Jin~;:,,"~::;:0 i' ì "Ç:h~*:i'

. :(,f~~';"~""':"i .';::~0~~:i?"
ARTICLE ~n2S'EMERABILITY'!~;:',;/

';'.\;.
',' ~'.~~ ~Y'~.~:~:;(::+; x::':

Section 17.1 Severabilty..,.,_
,:'; .::;.-, ;:.: ~)::;,~ -.

..¿:../- ';'.::..,;~.):~;;.::'~,.,.' 't.. '", "',-'".:

If any term, cQ:gthant o;¿~,ñflition of thi'S~~Agreement or the Application, except a
:;,~.~;:', ~ ~.::!i:'r, " ~_" -";':$': -,;.;~

Material Condition;slÎíitH~.çjudicliíly declared toqe,invalid or unenforceable, the remainder
of this Agreem~nt or theifjpJlFatl6~;:a~:;s\lçhtel1,.¿ôvenant or condition to persons or
circumstances:other~than th~t(i¡ã'S,to ~hi¿Wii:'i~;held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be

affecteCl.,t:g~;b;:'''~â~~i~;l_:te~:?ês&-:ep.ant or c~ndition of this Agreement shall be valid and be
,.:tV -.~' .:..,t~:.~:r~;~. '--~~:;i~~('~::~~:, - '. ::;;

enforc.eq;;,tp the fullest ex'tent:permittetl/pylaw.
"'V:1¡;t1:,:i;:f~~f, ,)?

If a'N;â,te,rial ConditiQ~shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and
provided the Êhit~:;is not in "wtfault of this Agreement, the paries shall cooperate with each
other to take the àctr~ns reaßbnably required to restore the Agreement in a manner

contemplated by the'ß~~l~s and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the
authorization and re-execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the
original intent of the parties and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the
Agreement if it would modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or
any other term of this Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the
City.

"':;'~:'., :;;..~:~)-'

~.r~"
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ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be constred and enforced in accordance with the laws ofthe
State of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring
construction against the pary drawing or causing this Agreement to be, drawn since counsel for
both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and ap~is,~il)~;qr same.

Section 18.2 eon Diets ,~*'"4i~\li,
The paries agree that in the event of a conflct ~,~~eeh~the Appil~~tlpn and the

language contained in the Agreement, the AgreemeIlM%R~ii"g6vem and pr~~ijt\ln the event of

conflct between the Agreement and the Law, theE~W shall goyem and prev~lî~J;t¿*:~

Section 18.3 Ora Representations '''''~~¡t$i'*l;' 'i!(o/

There have been no oral represeittátions made by eiik '. J the paries hereto which are
not contained in this Agreement. This Ag£~~~Rti.,the Ordin~2ê~1ltbørizing the Agreement,
and the Application constitute the entire AgTeeci~htB:et"reen the pãRies and there shall be no
modifications thereto other than by a written:"ipstrwf:¡rir~ã'Ppr9y;ed and executed by both paries

and delivered to each parÝ.),;;ii;U,.t
.' , , "'. :':" ,:~.;.

.:.-,,: ":::::/.

Section 18.4 Entire.j)~èMnient:,'

ThisA¥fet~~nt ancFg,lhçcb~ditìb1i$an'theO~dinance of the Municipal Council
approving,~thrš;A:gtè~tnelJt are'ihçprporated iii this Agreement and made a part hereof...~~., 'o¿~:~:'.,,_, ",'" .,.:.;.....,.,

Sect¡¡~~,i,;._..,.-.:_..r.:.."i"...,;....,G..,. ood Fa~~~'i¡~$'~k"':'\J:"r;;./,

,; '\f.::~~~.
In thgi~4talings with'~åch other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the

City. "\"~~.Air

Section 18.6 Pending't'iìgation
'. :':~:

;'".';'-."

..~;.

The Entity fully and freely holds the City harless and assumes any risk that may
affect the present or future validity of the within financial agreement, arising from any other
litigation.
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ARTICLE xix - EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at
length herein:

1. Metes and Bounds description of the Project;!
2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the executionn¥tîüSAgreement;
3. The Application with Exhibits;

4. Certificate of the Entity; s~tl/ç:;a~~~~tstir\.

5. Estimated Construction Schedule; ,é, '"I, "~'-H

6. The Financial Plan for the undertakÎl~;i~f:th~ Project;'';:;i~~:::~~:ê_

7. Good Faith Estimate of Initial . '~'al Scheaule and Leas~'~~rms; ". c,'" \":;~, -'~',:~~;~:~?:;/
8. Project Employment and Con_.:' Agreement; \V;;;'

....;~;~~~~::'-:. .-t&t":~;:'::i:":, t~;::'-
9. Architect's Certification of Actual Cõ:ãstJêtíon''Costs.

'-.t~?~~~)f%~~~'

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parei~,~;ç~used thes;;'''\Îs to be executed the day and
year first above written. "::i12:';':::i;iJhv,; ';;;',:;.:;:;,

',:' .;.:r;z:.:.-;'....
:.';:, ,';\~~'::~::',:-;~:.::;;':~):.'..

ATTEST:

..~.'-' ,-.~;\t,i~'~

.,:,:.?~:Ç::\¡ii~&r6j~\~ MONT6~MERYS:ENIOR LIVING URBAN

..:.d~f.'i:.l,.:-.;,;;.;,.:,..."()19Jff: RENEW ÂLASSOCIATES, LP,,':;Jf:.~¡ tit).: ~.,,;;..;

'",t~:~!~~~~~;1åÎ!parer, Montgomery Senior-Michaels,

';-. ~ ~: :"
'; .-' :: ;.;.,.~:~ '.~'-:;;:.: . - :.,.:-

ATTEST:

"~\'::,::;;;:~:.;. -."

CITY OF JERSEY CITY

Brian O'Reily,
Business Administrator
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EXHIBIT 1:

Metes and Bounds description of the Project
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EXHIBIT 2:

Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement
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EXHIBIT 3:

The Application with Exhibits
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EXHIBIT 4:

Certifcate of the Entity
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EXHIBIT 5:

Estimated Construction Schedule
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EXHIBIT 6:

The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project
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EXHIBIT 7:

Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rental Schedule and Lease Terms
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EXHIBIT 8:

Project Employment and Contracting Agreement
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EXHIBIT 9:

Architect's Certifcation of Actual Construction Costs
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:Montgomery seníor Lívíng Center 'Urban 'Rnewa( J'socíates, L'P
/0 Jersey Cíty Jfousíng .Juthoríty I ¡________ ._.______....___.___.__...______.___...___.______..____________________._______.__.__._____________________________________________..

EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION OF FORMATION & DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

NAME OF ENTITY: MONTGOMERY SENIOR LIVING URBAN RENEWAL
ASSOCIATES, LP

NAME OF GENERAL PARTNER: MONTGOMERY SENIOR-MICHAELS, LLC

ADDRESS: THREE EAST STOW ROAD, PO BOX 994

MARLTON, NJ 08053

I certify that the following list represents the name of all members owning a 10% or greater interest in the

above entity,

NAME

MONTGOMERY SENIOR-

MICHAELS, LLC

ADDRESS PERCENT OWNED

3 E, STOW RD, MARLTON, NJ 100%

I further certify, as the above entity is, itself, an entity, that the following list represents the name of the sole

owner of the above noted entity.

NAME

MICHAEL J. LEVITT

ADDRESS

3 E. STOW RD, MARLTON, NJ
PERCENT OWNED

100%

Montgomery Senior Living Center Urban Renewal Associates, LP

By:

el' ¡Iver, Vice P~sident

o tgomery Senior-Michaels, LLC, GP



-_.._._-.,~~._~-----~--LEVINE STALLER aHorneys of low

levine, Stoller, Sklar, Chon, Brown & Donnelly, P.A.
r"--'1
I r.:l ~, ¡

f-~ì
¡ ':")t...,...,

~'~i ~~ ("t)~(\l
~ htf¡, ~'¡li\lii ij

ARTHUR M. BROWN
LL.M. ¡Taxation)

abrownelevi nesta/ler. com
Fax: 609-345-2473

April 11, 2011 Respond to Atlantic City

Via Overnight Mail
M. Burr Keim Company
2021 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-1491
Attn: Don Hart

Re: Montgomery Senior living Center Urban Renewal Assoc., LP,
a New Jersey limited partnershi..

Dear Don:

I enclose a copy of a Limited Partnership Certifcate for Montgomery Senior
Living Center Urban Renewal Associales, LP for filing. Please note that this entity Is an
urban renewal entity and is fied with a Certificate from the Department of Community
Affairs authorizing same (original).

As you are aWare from your conversation today with my secretary, Kathleen, we
sent these items directly to the State of New Jersey for filng months ago, with a
postage Paid, return envelope and have been contacling them periodicaiiy for a status.
They still show no record of receiving same, nor have we had our mail returned to us.

Please record these as Soon as Possible and return a filed COpy for our files.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call.

AMB/kmw
Encls.
c: Joel Silver (w/encl.) (via email)

Kristina Vagen (w/encl.) (via email)

ARTHUR M. BROWN

S'IBROWN~EvlmMoNTGOMERY SENiORlCORRESPONDENCEIM. Bw Kelm (me IP ""0 04 11 11 "'.doo

3030 Atlanfio Avenue, Atiantic Cify, N.J. 0840) -6380 . p (609) 348- i 300 . f (609) 347- 11 66 . f (609) 345-2473

616 Broadway, COpe May, N.J 08204 . p (609) 884-0700 . f (609) 884-0201

WW.levinestaller.com



FIL D

CHRIS CHRISTIE
Govt'rnor

~tate of Jlew .J ersep
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

101 SOUTH BROAD STREET

PO Box 805
TRENTON, Nl 08625-0805

APR 1 3 ZOll

STATE TREASURER

KIM GUADAGNO
Lt. Govenior

LORI GRIFA
Commissioner

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

TO: State Treasurer
RE: MONTGOMERY SENIOR LIVING CENTER URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, LP

File # 1036
An Urban Renewal Entity

This is to certify that the attached CERTIFICATE OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP OF AN URBAN
RENEWAL ENTITY has been examined and approved by the Department of Community Affairs, pursuant
to the power vested in it under the "Long Term Tax Exemption Law," P.L. 1991, c.431.

Done this /8#1 day of JarLt 20 i( at Trenton, New Jersey.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

~BY~
Division of Codes and Standards

1
r-tl
.\;"f~nI.Š :Vew Jersev is an £aual OOf)Orlunilv EmfJ/oi-er' Prinled on Recvc/C!d liaVel' and RC!cidab/e



FIL D

New Jersey Department of Treasury
Division of Revenue

Limited Partnership Certificate

APR 1 3 2011

STATE TREASURER

i. Name of Limited Partnership: Montgomery Senior Living Center Urban
Renewal Associates, LP

2. Address of Principal Offce: Three East Stow Road, Suite 100
Marlton, New Jersey 08053

3. Registered Agent: Arthur M. Brown, Esq.

4. Registered Offce: 3030 Atlantic Avenue
Atlantic City, New Jersey 08401

5. Character of its Business:

(a) The purpose for which the partnership is formed shall be to develop,
own and operate real estate under the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, P.L.1991,
c.431 (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.) and to initiate and conduct projects for the
redevelopment of a redevelopment area pursuant to a redevelopment plan, or

projects necesary, useful, or convenient for the relocation of residents displaced or
to be displaced by the redevelopment of all or part of one or more redevelopment
areas, or low and moderate income housing projects, and, when authoried by
financial agreement with the municipality, to acquire, plan, develop, construct,
alter, maintain or operate housing, senior citizen housing, business, industrial,
commercial administrative, community, health, recreational, educational or welfare
projects, or any combination of two or more of these types of improvement in a
single project, under such conditions as to use, ownership, management and control
as reglated pursuant to P.L.1991, c.431 (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.). The partnership may
develop a housing project (the "Projec") in the City of Jersey City, State of New

Jersey as a limited dividend, urban renewal entity.

(b) So long as the partership is obligated under financial agreement with
a municipality made pursuant to P.L.1991, c.431 (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.), it shall
engage in no business other than the ownership, operation and management of the
Project

(c) The partnership has ben organized to serve a public purpose, and its
operations shall be directed toward:
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(I) the redevelopment of redevelopment areas, the faciltation of
the relocation of residents displaced or to be displaced by

redevelopment, or the conduct of low and moderate income
housing projects;

(2) the acquisition, management and operation of a project,
redevelopment relocation housing project, or low and
moderate income housing project under P.L.1991, c.431 (C.

40A:20-1 et seq.);

(3) that it shall be subject to regulation by the municipality in
which its Project is situated, and to a limitation or prohibition,
as appropriate, on profits or dividends for so long as it remains
the owner of a project subject to P.L.1991, c.431 (C.40A:20-1
et seq.).

(d) The partership shall not voluntarily transfer more than 10% of the
ownership of the Project or any portion thereof undertaken by it under P.L1991,
c.431 (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.), until it has first removed both itself and the Project from
all restrictions of P.L.1991, c.431 (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.) in the manner required by
P.L1991, c.431 (C. 40A:20-1 et seq.) and, if the Project includes housing units has
obtained the consent of the Commissioner of Community Affairs to such transfer;
with the exception of transfer to another urban renewal entity, as approved by the
municipality in which the Project is situated, which other urban renewal entity
shall assume all contractual obligations of the transferor entity under the financial
agreement with the municipality. The partnership shall fie annually with the
municipal governing body a disclosure of the persons having an ownership interest
in the Project, and of the extent of the ownership interest of each. Nothing herein

shall prohibit any trnsfer of the ownership interest in tbe urban renewal entity

itself provided that tbe transfer, if greater tban 10 percent, is disclosed to the
municipal governing body in the annual disclosure statement or in correspondence
sent to the municipality in advance of the annual disclosure statement referre to
above.

(e) The partnership is subject to the provisions of Section 18 of P.L 1991,
c. 431 (C. 40A:20-18) respecting the powers of tbe municipality to alleviate financial
diffculties of the urban renewal entity or to perform actons on behalf of the entity
upon a determination of financial emergency.

(f) Any housing units constructed or acquired by the entity shall be
managed subject to the supervision of, and rules adopted by, the Commissioner of
Community Affairs.

6. Termfor which the Partnership is to Exist: December 31, 2100

7. Name/Address of Each General Partner: Montgomery Senior -Michaels, LLC
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Three East Stow Road
Marlton, New Jersey 08053

8. Set forth the aggregate amount of cash and a description of the agreed value of other

property or services contributed by all partners,. or agreed to be contributed in the
future:

The partners of the Partnership have agreed to contribute an aggregate of
$1,000.00 in capital to the Partnership.

9. Set forth the times at which or events on the happening of which any additonal

contributions agreed to be made by any partner or partners are to be made:

No parter is required to make additional contributions to the capital
of the Partnership.

10. Do the limited partners hae the power to grant the right to become a limited partner to
an assignee of an part of their partnership?

No.

1 1. If agred upon, list when or what must occur to enable a partner to terminate his

membership in the partership. (Include the amount or the way of determining the

distribution of property to terminate a partner's interest).

The parters have not agreed upon when or what must occur to

enable a partner to terminate his partnership in the Partnership, nor
the amount, or method of determining the distributions to which such
partner may be entitled respecting his partnership interests, nor the
terms and conditions of such termination and distribution.

12. Does a partner hae the right to receive distributions of property, including cash from
the limited partnership?

Yes.

13. Does a partner hae the right to receive, or does the general partner have the right to
make, distributions to a partner which include a return of all or any part of the partner's

contribution?

Yes.

14, When or upon what events occurring is this limited partnership to be dissolved and its
affairs wound up?
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The Partnership shall be dissolved and its affairs wound up upon the
earlier of the expiration of the term of the Partnership or upon the
death, retirement, disabilty or adjudication of bankruptcy of all of
the General Partners.

15. What are the rights of the remaining general partners to continue the business in the
event tha a general partner withdraws?

The Partnership may continue despite the death, retirement,
disabilty, or bankruptcy of a sole General Partner with the successor
in interest as a substitute General Partner, with the consent of all the
limited partners. In the event that at any time where there is more

tban one General Partner, then, in the event of the death, retirement,
disabilty or bankruptcy of a General Partner, the remaining General
Partner or partners may continue the business of the Partnersbip by
unanimous consent of all partners and tbe existence of tbe
Partnership shall not be affected.

16. List any other matters that the partnrs decide to include:

N/A

17. Effective date of amendent if subsequent to date of filing: (Must be within 30 days
followings date offiling):

Effective date is the date of fiing.

IN TESTIMONY WHREOF, the undersigned General Parer executes this
Certificate as of the i st day of December, 20 i o.

S,LLC

By:
Michael J. Levitt, Sol

S:IBROWNEVNTGOMEY SEORIOO DO em 120710,doc

Page 4 of4



:Montgomery seníor Lívíng Center 'Urban 'Rnewa( J'socíates, L'P

/0 Jersey Cíty Jfousíng 51uthoíty I ;_ __ ....d ..____
.....". .. ....."...... . "..._.._........A......._...._............._....

..__..._.,._-._.._----~_. ._-_............_...__..__.._.......,._-.._...__......-------_.._.._---_..........._...

EXHIBIT I:

COOPERA liON AGREEMENTS IN PLACE

(PLEASE SEE ATTACHED)



COOPERATION AGREEMENT

The following public housing developments are included in the Cooperation Agreement:

PROJECT NAMEINUMBER TOTAL UNITS

MARION GARDENS
N.J. 9-2 234

BOOKER T. WASHINGTON N.J. 9-3 314

HUDSON GARDENS
N.J. 9-4 222

HOLLAND GARDENS
N.J. 9-5 192

MONTGOMERY GARDENS
N.J. 9-6 462

CURRIES WOODS 
N.J. 9-8 91

BERRY GARDENS
N.J. 9-9 368

DWIGHT STREET HOMES
N.J. 9-10 34

LAFAYETTE SENIOR LIVING CENTER
N.J. 9-13 83

THOMAS J. STEWART APTS. N.J. 9-14 48

OCEAN POINTE EAST N.J. 9-20 29

TOTAL 2,077
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EXISTING FINANCIAL AGREEMENTS

All parties of the applicant who have an interest in any other financial agreements in
force and effect in the City of Jersey City include:

1) The Jersey City Housing Authority has a current tax enhancement agreement
in place with the City of Jersey City for the 36 residential units at the premises
located at 254 Bergen Avenue.

2) The Jersey City Housing Authority has a current tax enhancement agreement
in place with the City of Jersey City for the 90 residential units at Arlington

Gardens located at 315 Randolph Avenue.

3) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Community Limited
Partnership have a current tax enhancement agreement in place (under the
NJHMFA Statute) with the City of Jersey City for the 124 residential units at
the mixed-income HOPE Vi Lafayette Village located at 579 Grand Street.

4) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family Urban Renewal
Associates, L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the
City of Jersey City for the 70 residential units at the mixed-income HOPE Vi
Woodward Terrace located at 511 Grand Street.

5) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family II Urban Renewal
Associates, L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the
City of Jersey City for the 72 residential units at the mixed-income HOPE Vi
Pacific Court Townhouses located at 320 Bramhall Avenue.

6) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family Phase ILL Urban

Renewal Associates, L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in
place with the City of Jersey City for the 67 residential units plus community
center at the mixed-income HOPE Vi Barbara Place Terrace located at Ash
Street, Carbon Street and Pacific Avenue.

7) The Jersey City Housing Authority and A. Harry Moore Phase i Associates,
L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the City of
Jersey City for the 66 residential units at the mixed-income HOPE VI Gloria
Robinson Court Homes i located at 332-336 Duncan Avenue.

8) The Jersey City Housing Authority and A. Harry Moore Phase II Associates,
L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in place with the City of
Jersey City for the 78 residential units and community center at the mixed-
income HOPE Vi Gloria Robinson Court Homes Ii located at 340-344 Duncan
Avenue.

9) The Jersey City Housing Authority and Lafayette Family Phase IV Urban

Renewal Associates, L.P. have a current tax enhancement agreement in
place with the City of Jersey City for the 63 residential units under



construction at the mixed-income HOPE Vi Glennview Townhouses I located
at Grande Street, Barbara Place, and Halladay Street.

10) The Jersey City Housing Authority and AHM Housing Urban Renewal
Associates, LLC have a current tax enhance agreement in place with the City
of Jersey City for the 60 residential units under construction at the mixed-
income HOPE Vi A. Harry Moore Phase III Development located at 324
Duncan Avenue.



APPLICANT: ST. BRIDGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE
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APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT

St. Bridget's Senior Residence

1. Propert Identification: A portion of Block: 380 Lot(s): N1, A, and B as shown on the

Official Assessment map of the City of Jersey City and more commonly referred to as
372 Montgomery St; 193 & 195 Mercer St. Upon subdivision, such portion of Lots N 1, A,
and B shall be known as a new Lot to be determined by the Tax Assessor ("Property").
A legal description of the Property is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

2. Type of Exemption Requested: The Applicant, St. Bridget's Senior Residence Urban
Renewal, LLC ("Applicant"), seeks a Tax Abatement granted pursuant to the New Jersey
Long Term Tax Exemption Law, N.J.S.A 40A:20-1 et. seq. for a fort-six (46) unit,
multi-family low-income rental senior housing development (studio, one bedroom, and
two bedroom aparments) ("Project"). The Applicant seeks an abatement based on 8% of
the estimated anual gross revenues of the Project.

3. Project Statement: As par of its continuing mission to build affordable housing, the
Applicant is proposing the development of a forty-six (46) unit Senior Housing Complex,
100% of which wil be affordable to seniors earing 50% or less of the area median
income. Thus, these affordable units are expected to be available to persons/families
with incomes ranging from approximately $10,020 to $32,200 anually.

4. Tax Abatement: The term of the abatement requested by the Applicant is 30 years from
the date of substantial completion of the Project. Based upon the Anual Gross Revenue
computation and Statement of Operation set forth in Exhibits D & E, the Project will
generate an estimated Anual Service Charge of approximately $22,798.

5. Improvements to be Constructed: The overall site consists of approximately 43,012
square feet of land on 372 Montgomery Street, 193 & 195 Mercer Street, improved with a
rectory, convent and school (hereafter referred to as the Rectory, Convent, and the School
respectively), as well as St. Bridget's Church. Upon subdivision, the Propert (new Lot
to be determined) wil consist of 25,772:: square feet. The Project wil consist of the gut
renovation, rehabilitation, and adaptive reuse of the Rectory, Convent, and School to
include senior housing. The church will remain and, upon subdivision, wil be located on
a separate Lot. The Project wil contain forty-six (46) units, ground floor common area,
an outdoor "allocation garden," and four (4) parking spaces at grade leveL. The residential
units will be located in the Rectory, Convent, and School and distributed as follows:

~ Studios
li 1 Bedroom
~ 2 Bedroom

-2-
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Each residential unit will contain all new mechanical systems, fixtues and appliances
and wil seek to qualify for Historic Tax Credits. Specifically, in order to qualify for
Historic Tax Credits, the Applicant wil be providing for the substantial rehabilitation and
restoration of the exteriors and interiors of the Rectory, Convent and School buildings,
which wil be presented to the Jersey City Historic Preservation Commission for review
and approvaL.

The subject site is owned by the Church of the Resurrection, a/a St. Bridget's Church.
The Applicant wil execute a long-term lease of the Property from its curent owners.

The Applicant wil renovate the buildings, develop the Property, and upon completion
lease the residential units to low-income senior citizens. The standard form of lease will
require the tenants to pay the following estimated rents, in accordance with relevant

federal and state guidelines:

Studio (523 SF) =
1 BR (702 SF) =
2 BR (987 SF) =

$218.00
$627.00
$751.00

5 Units
33 Units
5 Units

43 Units

The remaining three (3) units wil be non-income producing, consisting of one (l) unit to
be occupied by a superintendent and two (2) units to be utilized by the existing church for
church purposes. A general description of the residential lease is attached as Exhibit B.

The Alperts Group, an affiiate of the Applicant, wil serve as the property manager and
wil qualify potential residents of the affordable housing units in accordance with federal
and state guidelines.

6. Estimated Total Project Cost: The total cost of the project is $9,410,032. The total
project cost has been calculated in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-
3(h). The breakdown of the total project cost is attached as Exhibit C.

7. Funding Structure: Major fuding for the Project wil be provided by the following:

NJHMF A Low Income Housing Tax Credits:

$6,568,000

Affordable Housing Trust Fund or Home Fund Subsidy from Jersey City:

$1,500,000

Historic Tax Credits:

$1,342,000

-3-
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8. Annual Gross Revenue and Expenses: A statement of the Anual Gross Revenue for
the Project is attached hereto as Exhibit D. A projected statement of operations (Income
& Expenses) is attached hereto as Exhibit E.

9. Construction Schedule: The construction of this Project is scheduled to commence at
the beginning of the 15t Quarer 2012 and will be completed and placed in-service by
December 2013. The aforementioned notwithstanding, constrction of the Project wil
not commence prior to final approval and execution of a financial agreement between the
City of Jersey City and the Applicant.

10. Compliance with State and Local Redevelopment Laws / Municipal Land Use
Approvals: The Applicant certifies that the Project is located in the Montgomery
Gateway Redevelopment Plan Area. The Project will be constructed in accordance with
the terms and conditions of any preliminar site plan approval granted by the Jersey City
Planing Board and in compliance with any state permits or approvals required for the
rehabilitation. It is anticipated that an application for Preliminar Site Plan Approval wil
be heard by the Jersey City Planing Board on June 28, 2011.

11. Real Estate Tax Assessments: The tax assessment information for the overall propert
(Block 380, Lots Nl, A, and B) upon which the Project is to be located is attached hereto
as Exhibit F. The tax assessment for the Property (to be designated as a new Lot) wil be
subject to review and determination by the Tax Assessor, upon subdivision.

12. Real Estate Taxes Levied: The overall site (Block 380, Lots Nl, A, and B) is exempt
from real estate taxation, as set forth in Exhibit G.

13. Status of Municipal Taxes and Other Charges: To the best of the Applicant's
knowledge and belief, all other assessments against Block 380, Lots Nl, A, and B have
been paid in full.

14. Disclosure Statement and Certificate of Formation: The Disclosure Statement is

attached hereto as Exhibit H. The Applicant is an urban renewal limited liability company
in formation being organized under the laws of the State of New Jersey, including the
Long Term Tax Exemption Statute. A copy of the Certificate of Formation is attached
hereto as par of Exhibit H.

15. Certifcation of Construction Commencement: The Certificate of Constrction
Commencement is attached hereto as Exhibit i.

16. Estimated Jobs Created: The Applicant estimates that the construction of the Project
wil generate approximately 73 jobs over the construction period. Upon commencement
of operations of the Project, approximately 2 permanent full time jobs wil be created in
real estate management and service positions.

The Project is exempt from the requirements of City Ordinance #07-123, which would
otherwise require the execution of a Project Labor Agreement. The Project contains

-4-
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more than 50% affordable housing and is, therefore, not a "Tax Abated Project" as
defined under Ordinance #07-123.

The Applicant agrees to execute a Project Employment Agreement simultaneously with
the execution of a Financial Agreement.

17. Compliance with State and Local Laws: A certification by the Applicant that the
Project meets the requirements of the laws of the State of New Jersey and the City of
Jersey City is attached hereto as Exhibit J.

18. Certification of Truthfulness and Dilgent Inquiry: A certification by the Applicant
that the statements contained herein are tre and subject to diligent inquiry is attached
hereto as Exhibit K.

19. Financial Agreement: The proposed Financial Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit
L.

20. Affordable Housing Contribution: No affordable housing contribution is required
pursuant to Section 304-28 of the Jersey City Code, as this Project contains affordable
housing units that are in excess of 15% of the overall number of units.

21. Fee: Since the Application concerns a Project providing for seniors oflow and moderate
income, no application fee is required.

-5-
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APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT

ST. BRIDGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

INDEX TO EXHfflTS
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Exhibit A

ST. BRIGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URAN RENEWAL, LLC

Legal Description of Property

St. Bridget's Senior Residence is a proposed multi-family low-income rental
senior housing development to be located on a portion of Block 380, Lots: N1, A,
and B as shown on the Offcial Assessment map of the City of Jersey City, and
more commonly referred to as 372 Montgomery Street, 193 and 195 Mercer
Street, Jersey City, NJ. Upon subdivision, the relevant portion of Lots N1, A, and
B shall be known as a new Lot to be determed by the Tax Assessor ("Propert").
See legal description of Propert attached hereto.
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678 Monlaii Boulevar Exslon
P.O. Bo4Q
Waren, NJ 0709
Tel 7356.97QO
ww.Dsads.co

PROPOSED NEW LOT 2, BLOCK 380

CIT OF JERSEY CIT , HUON COUNY
NEW JERSEY

BEGING at a point in the norrly right-of-way lie of Montgomery Str, said point being
distace of 87.66 feet, on a beang of South 67° 18' 01" East from the intersection of Montgomery
Strt with Brunswick Strt and runng thence.

1. North 22° 03' 56" Eat, a distance of 198.30 feet, to a point, thence.

2. South 67° 56' 04" Eat, a distance of 121.68 feet, to a point, thence.

3. South 22° 21' 29" West, a distace of 100.00 feet, to a point, thence.

4. South 67° 56' 04" East, a distace of 16.67 feet, to a point, thnce.

s. South 22° 21' 29" West, a distance of 99.82 feet, to a point in the norterly right-of-way lin of
Montgomery Stret, thence.

6. Along the same, North 67° 18' 01" West, a ditance of 137.34 feet, to the POIN OF
BEGING.

Containig an ar of 25,772 squar feet or 0.591 acrs, as calculad by Paulus, Sokolowski and

Saror, LLC in June 201 1.

c.~

i

I

i

r.

r
I.
i

i

Subject to any easments or restrctions of reord if any, which an acce title search may disclose.

Francis C. Wecht, Jr.
Professional Lad Surveyor
NJ License No. 27190
6/9/2011

I.

I

I
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EXHIBIT B

ST. BRIDGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URAN RENEWAL, LLC

DESCRIPTION OF RESIDENTIAL LEASES
GOOD FAITH ESTIMATE OF INITIAL RENTS

1. Name of Tenant: Various

2. Term of Lease: Initial term of lease not less than 1 year.

3. Number of Apartments:

Affordable Apartments: 43 (plus 3 non-income producing units)

5

33

5

Total 43

Studio

1/1

2/1

523

702

987

$218

$627

$751

* The exact square footage and rent could vary. The numbers above represent the average square footage
and rent for each type of apartment.

,

5. Premium paid directly by Tenant Annually

a. Fire & other insurance NONE

b. Real Estate Taxes of Assessments
on in project NONE

c. Operating and maintenance
expenses paid by tenant NONE

6. Special Features: common area

-8-
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Exhibit C

ST. BRIDGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

Estimated Total Project Cost

Total Project Cost (per N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(h))

Land Value

Sureying and Testing

$552,000

$420,000

$27,500

$7,382,355

Architects, Engineers, etc.

Construction Costs

Insurance, Interest, Finance Costs
durg construction $587,533

Commissions and Marketing Expenses
in connection with sale of Units $23,000

Real Estate Taxes and assessments durg
constrction period $0

$417,644Developer's overhead

Total $9,410,032
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Exhibit C-l

Total Project Cost Certification

On this 9th day of June 2011, the undersigned being the Architect for St. Bridget's Senior
Residence does certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief Exhbit C accurately reflects
the estimated Construction Cost ofthe Project proposed on a portion of Block 380 Lots: N1, A &
B more commonly referred to as 372 Montgomery Street, 193 & 195 Mercer Street, Jersey City,
New Jersey.

\(

By:
Name: Eli D. Marin, RA
Title: Architect
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Exhibit D

ST. BRIGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URAN RENEWAL, LLC

Annual Gross Revenue Calculation
Real Estate Tax Calculation for Tax Abatement

P.I.L.O.T on Residential

Gross Residential Rents
Less Vacancy (7%)

$306,432.00
(-)21,450.00

$284,982.00Effective Gross Rents

x Rate 8.00%

P.I.L.O.T
Admstrative Fee (2%)

County (5%)

$ 22,798.00

$ 455.96
$ 1,139.00

Total $ 24,392.96
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Exhibit E

ST. BRIGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

Projected Statement of Operations
(Income & Expenses)
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Exhibit E-l

Municipal Land Use Approvals

Resolution of the Planning Board of the City of Jersey City*

* The Applicant is scheduled to appear before the Planng Board of the City of Jersey City on
June 28, 2011. A Resolution granting Preliminar Site Plan Approval will be supplied upon
receipt.
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Exhibit F

ST. BRIDGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URAN RENEWAL, LLC

Real Estate Tax Assessments

-14-

2539586-02



Propert Detail
Prop Loc: 372 MONTGOMERY STREET Owner: CHURCH OF THE RESURRCTION, JC, TJE
Distnct: 0906 JERSEY CITY Street: 372 MONTGOMERY ST.
Class: 15D City State: JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

Additional Information
Addl Lots:
Land Desc: 225X197.33 IRR

Bldg Desc: CHURCH REC&CONV
Class4Cd: 0

Acreage: 0
Sale Infomition

Pnce: 0 NU#: 0

6/5/2011
Block:
Lot:

Qual:

380
N1

Pnor Block:
Pnor Lot:
Pnor Qual:
Updated:
Zone:

09/21/05

Acct Num: 00042135
Mtg Acct:
Bank Code: 0

Tax Codes:

Map Page: 0301

Sale Date: 00/00/00 Book:

Sr1a Date
Page:

Book Page Pnce NU#

TAX - LIST - HISTORY
Year Owner Infomition Land/Imp/Tot Exemption Assessed
2011 CHURCH OF THE RESURRCTION, JC, TJE 387000 0 1897200

372 MONTGOMERY ST. 1510200
JERSEY CITY/ NJ 07302 1897200

2010 CHURCH OF THE RESURRCTION, JC, TJE
372 MONTGOMERY ST.

JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

2009 CHURCH OF THE RESURRCTION, JC, TJE
372 MONTGOMERY ST.
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

2008 CHURCH OF THE RESURRCTION, JC/ TJE
372 MONTGOMERY ST.

JERSEY CITY / NJ 07302

taxl .CO. monmouth. nj. us/cgi-bin/m4.cg...

387000
1510200
1897200

387000
1510200
1897200

387000
1510200
1897200

o 1897200

o 1897200

o 1897200

Square Ft: 0
Year Built:
Style:

EPL Code: 23 1049

Statute: 54:4-3.6

Initial: 110170 Further: 110103

Desc : CONVENT
Taxes: 0.00/ 0.00

Ratio Grantee

1/1



6/5/2011
Block: 380 Prop Loc: 195 MERCER ST

Lot: A District: 0906 JERSEY CITY

Qual: Class: 15D

Prior Block: Acct Num: 00042143
Prior Lot: Mtg Acct:
Prior Qual: Bank Code: 0

Updated: 07/12/07 Tax Codes:

Zone: Map Page: 0301

Sale Date: 00/00/00 Book: Page:
Srla Date Book

Propert Detail
Owner: CHURCH OF THE RESURRCTION JoC.,THE
Street: 372 MONTGOMERY ST.
City State: JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

Additional Informtion
Addl Lots:
Land Desc: 46.66XL00
Bldg Desc: VACANT LAND
Class4Cd: 0

Acreage: 0.1071

Sale Informtion
o NU#: 0Price:

Page Price NU#

TAX-UST-HISTORY
Year Owner Informtion Land/Imp/Tot Exemption Assessed
2011 CHURCH OF THE RESURRCTION JoC.,THE 46700 0 46700
372 MONTGOMERY STo 0
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302 46700

2010 CHURCH OF THE RESURRECTION JoCo,THE

372 MONTGOMERY ST.
JERSEY CIT, NJ 07302

2009 CHURCH OF THE RESURRCTION JoCo,THE
372 MONTGOMERY STo

JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

2008 CHURCH OF THE RESURRCTION J.C.,THE
372 MONTGOMERY ST.
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

taxl.co.monmouth.nj. us/cgi-bin/m4.cg...

46700
o

46700

46700
o

46700

46700
o

46700

o 46700

o 46700

o 46700

Square Ft: 0
Year Built:
Style:

EPL Code:

Statute:
Initial:
Desc:
Taxes:

Ratio

2310780
54:4-306
110170 Further: 110103
PAVED PARKNG LOT
0.00/ DoDO

Grantee

1/1



6/5/2011
Block: 380 Prop Loc: 193 MERCER ST

Lot: B District: 0906 JERSEY CITY

Qual: Class: 15D

Prior Block: Acct Num: 00042150
Prior Lot: Mtg Acct:
Prior Qual: Bank Code: 30000
Updated: 09/21/05 Tax Codes:

Zone: Map Page: 0301

Sale Date: 00/00/00 Book: Page:
Srla Date Book

Propert Detail
Owner: CHURCH OF THE RESURRcrlON J.C.,THE
Street: 372 MONTGOMERY ST.
City State: JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

Additional Informtion
Addl Lots:
Land Desc: 16.67XL00
Bldg Desc: VACANT LAND
Class4Cd: 0

Acreage: 0.0383

Sa Ie Informt ion
o NU#: 0Price:

Page Price

TAX-UST-HISTORY
Year Owner Informtion Land/Imp/Tot Exemption Assessed
2011 CHURCH OF THE RESURREcrlON J.C.,THE 17600 0 17600
372 MONTGOMERY ST. 0
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302 17600

2010 CHURCH OF THE RESURRcrlON J.C.,THE
372 MONTGOMERY ST.
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

2009 CHURCH OF THE RESURRcrlON J.C.,THE
372 MONTGOMERY ST.
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

2008 CHURCH OF THE RESURRcrlON J.C.,THE
372 MONTGOMERY ST.
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

taxl.co. monmouth. nj. us/cgi-bin/m4.cg...

17600
o

17600

17600
o

17600

17600
o

17600

o 17600

o 17600

o 17600

NU#

Square Ft: 0
Year Built:
Style:

EPL Code:

Statute:
Initial:
Desc:
Taxes:

Ratio

2310780
54:4-3.3
110170 Further: 110103

PAVED PARKNG LOT
0.00/ 0.00

Grantee

1/1



Exhibit G

ST. BRIGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

Real Estate Taxes

The followig properties are owned by The Church of the Resurection J.e.:

Block 380, Lots N1, A, and B.

The street addresses for these properties are 372 Montgomery Street, 195
Mercer Street, and 193 Mercer Street respectively.

These properties are curently exempt from real estate taxation.

-15-
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Exhibit H

ST. BRIDGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

Disclosure Statement

&

Certificate of Formation

St. Bridget's Senior Residence Urban Renewal, LLC is an Urban Renewal
Limited Liability Company formed for the business of developing and owng a
multi-family low-income rental senior housing development located in Jersey
City, NJ.

50°.t Owner of Applicant - The Co-Managing Member is RCG Development
Group, LLC whose registered agent is Chrstopher Garlin located at 26 Park
Street, Montclair, NJ 07042.

50% Owner of Applicant - The Co-Managing Member is Joseph Alpert located
at One Parker Plaza, Fort Lee, NJ 07024.

The members ofRCG Development Group, LLC are as follows:

Christopher Garlin

Regina Mincey-Gar1in

50%

50%

-16-
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10HN A. PlNAB(1969)
GEORG W. CDNN (ZOOS)
ADBI M. PoLE, 1l
GEORGE 1. Kß
XETBP. K:miZM
SAM D. Loii
JlCI D. ~TEACCI
JlCB 1. BADOL*
PETE D. MA
10HN B. MmY
MA L. PLE1
KE 1. COA
THoMA S. COSM
KA'I S. MUI
PA7CX 1. McAll
PETEB.l. PJ+
KE B. GABNB
RoBEBT E. IlAN
MICH X. MClE*
JEFB W. MDllPEl. SM
BIU G. STEEl
PB F. MCGO, lB.
KAN PAI1lAL
LiM. WALSH
10HN P. LA
MICH 1. CRWL-

/
..

T! E. COBlN*
EB. W. SCJOELPl
PA7CX 1. BUGBE
lAM C. McCA
10HND. C1MI
ANGE A. IUso*
'W T. McGL
BJI luDGE
STE A. tn
CI 1. JlGTON Dr
STEV. FALGA.
TlCIO'1lY*
ANON F. VlO..
MA D. JI
loNA P. MC1
lAMl'.IlCA+BIl D. Sl
w. NEs McCA
THMA 1. O'LEM1 W. TAl
M. TiVOB. LYONS*
MICJL A. SBIA
PATBCI A. LE"
AGNlSZI ANoNI
C1G S. DEMsi
OW C. McCATB
NE V. MoDY

CONNELL FOLEY LLP
ATrORNYS AT LAW

HA01lE FIANCI CENT
2510 PL FI

IERS CIT, N.I. 07311-429
(201) 521-1000

FAX: (201) 521-0100

ROSELA OFFCE
B5 LIVIGSTON AVE

ROSELA, N.J. 0706B.3702
(973) 535.0500

FAX: (973) 535.9217

NEW YOIl OFFCE
BBB SEVENTH AVE

NEWYOIl, N.Y. 10106
(212) 262-2390

FAX: (212) 262.0050

PHIELPHI OPPICL
1500 MAT STIUET

PiADELPHI, PA 19102
(215) 246.3403

FAX: (215) 665.5727
t MIO AiIi IN NB You

+ ALia ADIoIH PIlYANl
.ONY ADMJIH NE Yau

PLEA REY TO Jl CI, Nl

June 8, 2011

Via: Regular Mail .. E-Mail
Karen Schwacha
Administrative Analyst

Department of Homeowner Protection
PO Box 805
Trenton, NJ 08625-0805

COUNSE
lOH W. BISE
FRci E. SCI*
EUGEN P. SQUEO*NOELD. B1
ANONY RoMAO D*ST BA
THoMA M. SCUEI

DOUGLA 1. SBOB.T* '
lANS M. MEo
MICH T. TANAL*
BEeTOAD. B.ui*
B.BEl A. VEIB*
.J C. ClCJ
PA7CX S. BlGAN
DAN B.. D'AMCO*
CH I. GANN*
Pi W. ALLOGR.NTO ID
LAUl B. KACJONIci*
ANII C. SAn
STEN D. KESSL
CBRSTOPB ABATEI.CO*
AANM. BENEI+
ANNY 1. COBIO.
WID. DEVE
CONOAP. Mu
MIGHA B. BAB
R.IOSÀAB L. LIGHA
STACI L. POWE

p

IC I. SPALING*
10DIAN BtsoN*
JlCJ A. lAGEN
loSEM. MU
"NACY A. SKMORE*
lASON E. MAAiB. LAZ

NICOLE B. DOB.CB 1. JE
loSEA. VI,lB.*
MICH Boßl
E. KEVOLZ+
CBOI' M. Blci
SUSA KWITEWSI
MONI SE
MESAD. LOPE
ANlEwL.1I
lASOND. FAL
lOAA S; JUCJ
MIGANK. Musso
EDMl 1. CAUL*
SYDNE 1. DABG*
.JCA L. PAL
NI V. SB
STEL Tmo*
TABL. TotlUM
MICH 1. CBGAN

Re: ST. BRIDGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

Dear Ms. Schwacha,

Enclosed please find the following documents:
Ji, .,

1. Original and five (5) copies of the Certificate of Formation of St. Bridget's Senior

Residence Urban Renewal, LLC.

2. Original and one (1) copy of the Urban Renewal Entities Disclosure Information.

Additionally, if there is a fee involved regarding the filing of the enclosed documents,
please advise me accordingly.

Kindly call me if you have any questions or comments concerning this matter or the
enclosed documents.

AEL/ga
Enclosure
cc: ChristopherGarli~, ~t,L~ridgets Senior Residence Urban Renewal, LLC, encl., via e-mail

/;:.

2537738-01
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CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION
OF"

ST. BRIDGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

1. Name of Limited Liabilty Company: ST. BRIDGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE
URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

2. The purpose for which this Limited Liabilty Company ("Company") is organized is:

To operate under P.L. 1991, c.431 (C.40A:20-1 et seq.) and to initiate and conduct
projects for the redevelopment of a" redevelopment area pursuant to a
redevelopment plan, or projects necessary, useful, or convenient for the relocation
of residents displaced or to be displaced by the redevelopment of all or part of one
or more redevelopment areas, or low and moderate income housing projects, and,
when authorized by financial agreement with the municipality, to acquire, plan,
develop, construct, alter, maintain or operate housing, senior citizen housing,

business, industrial, commercial, administrative, community, health, recreational,
educational or welfare projects, or any combination of two or more of these types of
improvement in a single project, under such conditions as to use, ownership,
management and control as regulated pursuantto P.L. 1991, c.431 (C.40A:20-1 et
seq.).

3. Date of formation: The date upon which this certificate of formation is filed in the
offce of the Department of Treasury of New Jersey.

4. Address of Registered Office: Connell Foley LLP
Harborside Financial Center
2510 Plaza Five.
Jersey City, NJ 07311

5. Registered Agent Name & Address: Charles J. Harrington, Esq.
Connell Foley LLP
Harborside Financial Center
2510 Plaza Five
Jersey City, NJ 07311

6. Dissolution date: Perpetual.

For so long as the Company is obligated under financial agreement with the City of
Jersey City made pursuantto P.L. 1991, c.431 (C.40A:20-1 et seq.), the Company
shall engage in no business other than the ownership, operation, and management
of the project described in the financial agreement with the City of Jersey City.

The Company has been organized to serve a public purpose and its operations
shall be directed toward: (1) the redevelopment of redevelopment areas, the

2537666-01
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faciltation of the relocation of residents displaced or to be displaced by
redevelopment, or the conduct of low and moderate income housing projects; and
(2) the acquisition, management and operation of a project, redevelopment
relocation housing project, or low and moderate income housing project under P.L.
1991, c.431 (C.40A:20-1 et seq.). The Company shall be subject to regulation by
the' City of Jersey City, and to a limitation on profits or dividends for so long as it
remains the owner of a project subject to P.L. 1991, c.431 (C.40A:20-1 et seq.).

The Company shall not voluntarily transfer more than 10% of the ownership of the
project or any portion thereof, undertaken by it under P.L. 1991, c. 431 (C.40A:20-1
et seq.), until it has first removed both itself and the project from all restrictions of
P.L. 1991, c. 431 (C.40A:20-1 et seq.) in the manner required by P.L. 1991, c. 431
(C.40A:20-1 et seq.) and, if the project includes housing units, has obtained the
consent of the Commissioner of Community Affairs to such transfer, with the
exception of any transfer to another urban renewal entity, as approved QY the City of
Jersey City, which other urban renewal entity shall assume all contractual
obligations of the transferor entity under the financial agreement with the City of
Jersey City.

The Company shall file annually with the governing body of the City of Jersey City a
disclosure ofthe persons having an ownership interest in the Project and the extent
of the ownership held by each.

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the urban
renewal entity itself provided that transfer, if greater than ten percent (10%), is
disclosed to the City of Jersey City in the annual disclosure statement or in

correspondence sent to the City of Jersey City in advance of the annual disclosure
statement referred to above.

The Company is subject to the provisions of Section 18 of P.L. 1991, c.431
(C.40A:20-18) respecting the powers of the City of Jersey City to alleviate financial
diffculties of the urban renewal entity or to perform actions on behalf of the entity
upon a determination of financial emergency.

Any housing units constructed or acquired by the Company shall be managed
subject to the supervision of, and rules adopted by, the Commissioner of

Community Affairs.

The undersigned represent(s) that this filng complies with requirements detailed in
N.J.S.A. 42:28-1 et. seq. The undersigned hereby represent(s) that it is authorized to sign
this certificate on behalf ofthe Company. ~ l

Dated: June 3, 2011 By: ~ GARLlN,
Authorized Representative

2537666-01
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NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
DMSION OF CODES AN~ STANDARDS

BUREAU OF HOMEOWNER PROTECTION
PO BOX 805

TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 08625.0805

URBAN RENEWAL ENTITIES
DISCLOSURE INFORMATION

Instrctions for Completion: You have tiled an application for approval'of an urban renewal entity pursuant to
the Long Term Tax Exemption Law (N.J.SA. 40A:20-1 etseq.). In order for us to proces the applicaon,
we require that you provide the following information and forwrd this form to the above address or fax it to
(609)984-7954. This form must be completed prior to Division approval of the enti. If you have any
questions, please call Karen Schwacha at (609)633-6606.

Name of Urban Renewal Entity: St. Br~dget' s Senior Residence Urban Renewal", LL

SECTION 1: TYPE OF APPROVAL REQUESTED (check one):

X Original certificate (of incorporation. limited partnership, formation, etc.)

Amendment to original certifcate (of incorporation, limited partnership, formation. etc.). Note: In
the case of amendments, please forwrd a copy of original certcate marked "tiled, State
Treasurer" or "filed, Secretary of Staten with this form.

. Other (please specify)

SECTION 2: PROJECT .iNFO~ TI0tl . ..
Project Name: St ~ Bridget s Senior Residence0_. . "'..-. .
Project Street Address:. 3.72 -Montgomer St. i 193 Mercer St.,: and 195 Mercer St.

Jersey City, NJ

Project Block Number(s) 380 Project Lot Numbers Nt, A & B

Municipality in which the Project is located Jersey City

. County in which the Project is located Htlson

SECTION 3 (for project listed in SECTION 2.)

(Check one)
_1. This project is solely a comm'ercial project (with no housing units) deVeloped in a redevelopment area

pursuant to a municipal redevelopment plan.

-next-
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URBAN RENEWAL ENTITIES
DISCLOSURE INFORMATION, PAGE 2

NAE OF URBA RENEW ENTllY: St. Bridget's Senior. Reside Urba Reewl, ll

seCTION 3 (cant.)

_2. This prec cosists soiel of ma rate hoUSg unit delopd in a __ are
pursuant to a municipal reevelopment plan.

NOTE: If you checked 1 or 2, complete SECTIONS 4, 6, and 7.

L 3. The prect consists of lo and mode Income hOusing units wh may IncUde seior clen lo
and moderate income housing units.

NOTE: If you checked 3, complete SeCTION 5, 6, and 7.

_4. This projec consists of mixed uses.

Speci ty:
- Market rate and low and moderate income housing.

- Commercial and market rate housing.
- Commercial and low and moderate income housing.
- Other (please describe).

NOTE: If you ch.ecked 4, complete SECTIONS 4, 5, 6, and 7.

SECTION 4:REDEVELOPMENT PLAN INFORMATION

Name of Municipa Red Agcy jersey City Reievlo¡t Ag""

Cittion of municpa ornanc adop the re pl S'13B-A t.. Motño

Redevelopment Plan
For housing projeçs, complete the fOllOWing:

Spe8ify type and numb.er of units as applicable:
~ Condominium units ._
-J Market rate rental
.. Low and moderate income'in mixed use projecs_

46 Senior clt in mbæd us prec low "income/senior houin
- Other (please specify)

Total number of units 46

Gateway

SECTION 5: PROJECT FUNDING SOURCES

The lo and mode inco housi proje Will be financ or insUre by whic of the .followng rclec
all applicable):
- Pnvate funds (Please specify)

- State or Federal financing or insunng agencies (Please specif below)

Other (Please specify)- :
-next-

..---
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URBAN RENEWAL ENtITIES
DISCLOSURE INFORMATION, PAGE 3

NAME OF URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY: St. Bridget's" Senior Residence Urban Renewal, ILC

SECTION 5: PROJECT FUNDING SOURCES (cant.)

State or Federal Financing or Insuring Agencies for the Projec (check all that apply):

NJ Department of Community Affairs:
_ Neighborhood Preservation Balanced Housing

_ Downown Living Initiative Program
_ HOME - Housing Production Investment Fund
_ HOME - Neighborhood Preservation

HOME - Rental Rehabiltation

NJ Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency:
_ NJ Community Housing Demo Program (developmental disabilties)
_ NJ Supportive Housing Program
_ Shared Residence Rental Housing Program (community residence)

_ Transitional Housing Revolving Loan Program
-- MUltifamily Rental Housing Program

_ PUblic Housing Construction and Pemaent Loan Progra
_ Rental Housing Incentive Finance Fund

_ 100% Mortgage Program
_ Urban Home Ownership Recovery Program

JL Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Allocation Program

NJ Redevelopment Authority:
_ NJ Urban Site Acquisition Program

US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) "
_ Section 811 Supportve Housing for Persons with Disabilties
_ Section 202 Supportive Housing for the Elderly

_ HOPE VI Grants
_ HOME Program

US Department of Agriculture
_ Rural Resources Administration (formerly Farmers' Home Administration)

1L Other (Please specify) Jersey City Affordable Housing and Stat.e"i,of New Jersey
Historic Preservation

List the information of the State or Federal financing or insuring agency's cotact person:
Name: SEE A'ICH SCHinE A .-
Title:
Department/Agency:
Address:

Telephone Number

-next-
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SCHEDULE A

Jersey City Affordable Housing
Darice Toon
30 Montgomery St # 404
Jersey City, NJ 07302-3864
(201) 547-5051

Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
Low Income Housing Tax Credit
Debbie Urban, Director of Tax Credit Services
Phone: 609-278-7577
e-mail: Durban(anjhmfa.state.nj.us

State of New Jersey-
Department of Environmental Protection
Historic Preservation Offce
PO Box 420
Trenton, NJ 08625-0420
TEL: (609) 984-0176
FAX: (609) 984-0578

2539211-01
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URBAN RENEWAL ENTITIES
DISCLOSURE INFORMATION, PAGE 4

NAME OF URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY: St. Bridget's Senior Residence Urba Renewal, LLC

SECTION 6: PROJECT CONSTRUCTION/OWNERSHIP

_1. The project is new constn.cton.

--2. An existing project is being rehabiltated.

If rehab, spe. cif name of individual, entityï etc. who is the current owner of the project.
Church of the Resu~ection a k/a St. Bridget's Church, Jersey City

_3. Ownership of an existing project is being transferred to the new urban renewal entity.
If transfer, specify name of individual, entity, etc. from whom the project is being or has been
transferred.

.;:

Is the transferor entity a limited dividend corporation or association, established pursuant to the
Limited Dividend and Nonprofit Housing Corporations and Associations Law, N.J.S.A.55:16-1 et
seq.? (yes or no)

Is the transferor entity an existing urban renewal entity established pursuant to the Long Term Tax
Exemption Law, N.J.S.A 40A:20-1 et seq.? (yes or no)

~ 4. Has this project caused or will this project cause displacement of individuals or businesses? (yes or
no) No

SECTION 7:CERTIFICA TlON
NOTE: This certfication must be completed by an indMdual authorized to execute the certifcate of
incorporation (incorporator), the certificate of limited partnership (general partner), or other similar certficate
or statement as may be required by law.

CERTIFICATION
I attest that the information stated herein is truthful and accurate to the best of my knowledge and

understand that failure to fully and accurately disclose any information may delay processing the application
while the Department investigates the application and project. Further, I understand that any project of the
urban renewal entit may be subject to additional Department review and approval, pursuant to
the requirements of the Limited Dividend and Nonprofit Corporations or Associations Law, N.J.S.A. 55:16-1

et seq., the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, N.J.S.A 40A:20-1 et seq., and/or rules governing Limited
Dividend and Nonprofit Housing Corporations and Associations and Urban Renewal Entities, N.J.AC. 5:13-
1 et seq. St. Bridge'S e Urban Renewal, llC:
Sworn to me and sub cribed befQre_IJr thiJiy: X

day of (mo/day/year) ali. (author" ed In

Christopher Gar lin
(print name of authonzed individual)



ExhibifI
ST. BRIGET'SSENIORRESlDENCE UJANRENEWAL,LLC

Certifcate of Construction Commencement

The undersigned being the .developerot St. Brldgets Senior Residence, a
proposed low.,incörie rental senior housing developnient, hereby certfies that;

i. t;oiitrctoRofthe Project.ha llotand Wil.iiot commenceprior.to~ie

fiáI approval and exeètion of a Finacial Agrement between the City
and the undersigned.

2. Th forgoing sttements made tl~tll day of June 2011 are tr to the bes
QfmyknowIedgeand lunderstaä tht ifitiswilfuUy fase, I amsubjecl
to punshment. .

St.B:rdgets Seniot Residence

Urban .Renewal,LL~
By: RC(JDevelopmenfuroup, LtC

By:
Naìe: Rev~CbrstophetGarlin

Title: Mang Memb,er

-17-
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ExhibitJ

ST. BRIGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URANRENEWAL,LLC

Compliance with State and Local Laws

On this,2tn dayofJune2011 the undersigned. being the developeròfSt, Btidgetis
Senior Residence, hereby afnnthat themuiti~famiy low~income rental senior
housingdevelopmèntwill eOirPlY withallappIiCäbleStae and Local Jaws.

St. Bridgets$enior Residence
Urban Renewal, LLC

By: RCG Development OrOUPI LLC_. '.

-18.
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Exhibit'K

ST. BRIGET'S SEN'IÖRRESIDENCE -UlAN REN:EW AL, LLC

Certfication of Truthfulness

The undersigned bemg the develöperof StBndget's Seior Residence, a

proposed multi~faly low-income renta senîor housing development to be

lQcatèd 011 apoi1on of Block 380t LotS NIt A & BasshøWn ónthe Offcial
Assessment.map otthe City of Jersy City, and more commonly referrd to as
372 MOl'tgomery$trt 193 ßG.' 195 MercerStret, (to Qe knOWl3$ a new Lotto
be dèterted by tht Tax Assessor) Jersey City, NI, hereby cettfiesas fòllöws:

1. AlLinòrnauon cónta~dli1 theâpplieatioii föruu. abätemeiit istiiie
and cottecttothedevelöpetlsknowledge. aferhelshe hainade
dîigent iiiqui tQconf theacc~cyofaUintorion.

2.. The'£or!loing statement made. bymeths2.tJ(Ïay of June 2011 is
trëtoilebe$t ofmykrøwledgea:dJunde~d tbifit is Willfuly
fal:. l.är. subJectto ptishnent.

St.. Bridget's Senior Residence
Urln RenewaI,LLC

By: RCG Development ,.' roup, LLC

By:
Name:ChrstóphetGarlin
Title:Mnnagg Memper

-19-

2539586-02

~;',;;~_,.iw¡,zM.,....w.,w.."""....~¡."",-.,_..."".o,."'...,,,....~,,o':.,~i~S:~;;;",.~"~,:-:-,~,;¡~:-;:-:-";""".:~"",,,,,,,,,:,:, "',,,,,,,,:_;';''';,.~,:-~;,:,:'',;¡,,,.~,,,*~,,,.;¡.,,,..,,,,,-~,:-,.;"y".":-::";';;':o.~v",.-..;--¡:-.;,.w.,,,~~,,,,,.:-,,..,..,..,,__,".,,,,~""",','''.''''.''Wm.-.W''""WM''''AV'''



Exhibit L

ST. BRIGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

Proposed Financial Agreement

-20-

2539586-02



Long Term Tax Exemption
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.
(Affordable Residential Rental)

Re: A portion of 372 Montgomery Street, 193 &

195 Mercer Street; Block 380 Lots: N1, A &
B, to be known as Lot_.

PREAMBLE

day of

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, (this "Agreement") is made as of ths _

, 2011, by and between ST. BRIDGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE

URAN RENEWAL, LLC an urban renewal limited liability company formed and qualified to

do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended

and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., having its principal office at 26 Park Street,

Montclair, NJ 07042 (the "Entity"), and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Muncipal Corporation

of the State of New Jersey, having its principal offce at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New

Jersey 07302 (the "City").

RECITALS
WITNESSETH:

WHREAS, the Entity is the Lessee of certain propert designated as a portion of

Block 380, Lots: N1, A and B more commonly known by the street address of 372 Montgomery

Street, 193 & 195 Mercer Street, to be known as Lot _' and more paricularly described by the

metes and bounds description set fort as Exhbit 1 to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, this propert is an affordable housing project located withi the

boundares of the Montgomery Gateway Redevelopment Area; and

WHREAS, the Entity plans to gut renovate, rehabilitate and adaptively reuse a

school, convent and rectory to create fort six (46) renta residential unts for low income senior

citizens; and

WHREAS, on , 2011, the Entity fied an Application with the City

for a long term ta exemption for the Project; and
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WHREAS, the City made the followig findings:

(A) Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs:

(1) the Property is curently exempt from conventional taes; whereas,

the Anual Service Charge, as estimated, will generate revenue to
the City of approximately $22,798;

(2) it is expected that the Project will create approximately 73 jobs

during constrction and 2 new permanent jobs;

(3) the project should stabilize and contribute to the economic growt

of existing local business and to the creation of new business,
which cater to the new residents;

(4) the project provides 46 rental unts of affordable housing which
advances an inerently beneficial public purose notwth-stading
that the City's impact analysis, on file with the Offce of the City
Clerk, indicates that the service charge will not support the cost of
providing muncipal services to the Project; and

(B) Assessment of the Importce of the Tax Exemption In obtaing

development of the project and infuencing the locational decisions of probable occupants:

(1) the relative stability and predictability of the anual service

charges will make the Project more attactive to investors and
lenders needed to finance the Project; and

(2) the relative stability and predictability of the service charges will
allow the owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high
level of maintenance to the building over the life of the Project,
which will insure the likelihood of the success of the Project and
insure that it wil have a positive impact on the surounding area;

WHREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance , on ,2011, the

Muncipal Council approved the above findings and the ta exemption application and

authorized the execution of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained,

and for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutully covenanted and agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I - GENERA PROVISIONS

Section 1.1 Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of the Long Term Tax
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Exemption Law, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., Executive Order of

the Mayor, 02-003, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance , which authorized the

execution of this Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly

relies upon the facts, data, and representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as

Exhbit 3, in granting this ta exemption.

Section 1.2 General Definitions

Unless specifically provided otherwse or the context otherwse requies, when

used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the followig meanngs:

(A) Afordable Low or Moderate Income - A Person or Household whose total

Gross Anual Income is equal to between 30% and 80% or less of the median gross income

figue established by geographic region and household size using the income guideline approved

for use by the New Jersey Council on Afordable Housing or as it may be amended pursuant to

N.J.A.C.5:92-12.

(B) Net Profit- The amount arived at by applying the Allowable Profit Rate to

Total Project Cost pursuat to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(c).

(C) Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per anum

arved at by adding 1.25% to the anual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity's intial

permanent mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a

governental agency, the mortgage insurance premium or simlar charge, if payable on a per

anum basis, shall be considered as interest for this purose. If there is no permanent mortgage

financing, or if the financing is internal or undertaken by a related party, the Allowable Profit

Rate shall be the greater of 12% or the percentage per anum arrived at by adding 1.25% per

anum to the interest rate per anum which the muncipality determines to be the prevailing rate

on mortgage financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.

(D) Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the
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Project of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees

from thrd paries, including but not limted to fees or income paid or received for parking,

laundr, health club user fees or other services (such as lease premiums for views, fireplaces,

etc.). No deductions will be allowed for operating or maintenance costs, including, but not

limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilties, garbage removal and insurance charges,

whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third par, except for customar operating expenses

of commercial tenants such as utilties, insurance and taes (including payments in lieu of taxes)

which shall be deducted from Gross Revenue based on the actual amount of such costs incured.

(E) Anual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City

for muncipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the

Improvements, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12.

(F) Auditor's Report - A complete financial statement outlining the financial

status of the Project (for a period of time as indicated by context), which shall also include a

certification of Total Project Cost and clear computation of Net Profit. The contents of the

Auditor's Report shall have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles and shall contai at a minimum the followig: a balance sheet, a statement of income,

a statement of retained earngs or changes in stockholders' equity, a statement of cash flows,

descriptions of accounting policies, notes to financial statements and appropriate schedules and

explanatory material results of operations, cash flows and any other items required by Law. The

Auditor's Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such principles by a certified public

accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in the State of New Jersey.

(G) Certificate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent,

issued by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in par, pursuant to N.J.S.A.

52:27D-133.

(H) Debt Service - The amount required to make anual payments of principal

and interest or the equivalent thereof on any constrction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other

financing including retus on institutional equity financing and market rate related pary debt
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for the project for a period equal to the term of ths agreement.

(I) Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any

obligation imposed upon the Entity by the terms of ths Agreement, or under the Law, beyond

any applicable grace or cure periods.

(J) Entity - The term Entity with ths Agreement shall mean St. Bridget's

Senior Residence Urban Renewal, LLC, which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5. It shall also include any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest of

the Project, provided they are formed and operate under the Law.

(K) Improvements or Project - Any building, strctue or fixtue permanently

affxed to the land and to be constrcted and ta exempted under ths Agreement.

(L) In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A sumar proceeding by

which the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owig by tax sale, under N.J.S.A. 54:5-1 to

54:5-129 et seq.

(M) Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value ofland, if any, on

which the project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land

Taxes may be exempt; however, if Land Taxes are levied, Entity shall receive a credit agaist the

Anual Service Charge.

(N) Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quaerly due dates, including

approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax

Collector.

(0) Law - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended

and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor 02-003 relating to

long term tax exemption, as it may be amended and supplemented; Ordinance

02-075, and Ordinance which authorized the execution of ths Agreement and all

other relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations.

(P) Minium Anual Service Charge - The Minmum Anual Service Charge

shall be the greater of:
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(i) the amount of the total taxes levied against all real propert in the

area covered by the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to taxation, or in

the case of tax exempt propert, the proj ected ta levy based upon the assessed value for the year

in which the application is filed, which amount the paries agree would be $1.00; or

(ii) the sum of $22,798 per year, which sum will be prorated only in

the years in which Substantial Completion occurs and ths Agreement terminates.

The Minmum Anual Service Charge shall be paid in each year in which the

Anual Service Charge, calculated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12 or this Agreement, would be

less than the Minimum Anual Service Charge.

(Q) Net Profit - The Gross Revenues of the Entity less all operating and non-

operating expenses of the Entity, all determined in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles, but:

(i) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Anual Service Charges paid

pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12; (b) all payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-15 or N.J.S.A. 40A:20-16; (c) an anual amount sufcient to amortize (utilizing

the straight line method-equal anual amounts) the Tota Project Cost and all capital costs

determned in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity

whose revenue is included in the computation of excess profits over the term of ths agreement;

(d) all reasonable anual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is

included in the computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees,

brokerage commissions, insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting,

or other professional service fees, utilities, building maitenance costs, building and offce

supplies and payments into repai or maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent

including but not limited to ground rent by the Entity; and (f) all debt service.

(iii) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or

obsolescence, interest on debt, except interest which is par of debt service, income taxes or
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salaries, bonuses or other compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, offcers and

stockholders of the entity, or officers, parers or other persons holding a proprietary ownership

interest in the entity.

(R) Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, femine or neuter gender,

the singuar, as well as the plural, as context requires.

(S) Substatial Completion - The determnation by the City that the Project, in

whole or in par, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the

Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of the

Project.

(T) Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the terms of this

Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax abatement.

(U) Total Project Cost - The total cost of constrcting the Project though the

date a Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set

forth in N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(h). There shall be included in Tota Project Cost the actul costs

incured by the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which

are associated with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or

contaminants in accordance with State or Federal law and any extraordinar costs incured

including the cost of demolishig strctues, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of

relocating displaced residents or buildings and the clearing of title. The Entity agrees that final

Total Project Cost shall not be less than its estimated Total Project Cost.

ARTICLE II - APPROVAL

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Abatement

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax abatement for all the Improvements

to be constrcted and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement

and the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constrcted on certai propert

known on the Offcial Tax Assessor's Map of the City as: a portion of Block 380 Lots: Nl, A and

- 7 -

2539586-02



B, more commonly known by the street address of 372 Montgomery Street, 193 & 195 Mercer

Street, to be known as Lot _ and described by metes and bounds in Exhbit 1 attched hereto.

Section 2.2 Approval of Entity

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached

hereto as Exhbit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of

the Law; has been reviewed and approved by the Commssioner of the Deparent of

Communty Mfairs; and has been filed with, as appropriate, the Offce of the State Treasurer in

accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5.

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed

Entity represents that it will gut renovate, rehabilitate, and adaptively reuse a

school, rectory and convent to construct fort-six (46) rental residential unts for low income

senior citizens, as well as a ground floor common area, an outdoor allocation garden and five (5)

parkig spaces at grade level, all of which is specifically described in the Application attached

hereto as Exhbit 3.

Section 2.4 Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete

the Project in accordance with the Estimated Constrction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhbit

5.

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the lessee of the propert upon which the Project is

to be constrcted. Upon constrction, the Entity represents that the Improvements wil be

managed and controlled as follows:

The Entity represents that it is the lessee of the Land upon which the project is to

be constrcted and it or its affliate will manage and control the Project. The City acknowledges

that the Entity may enter into futue management agreements so long as such agreements are not

used to reduce the City's economic benefits under this Agreement and the management fees to be

paid are comparable to those disclosed in the application.
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2.6 Financial Plan

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with

the Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhbit 6. The Plan sets fort estimated Total Project Cost,

the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of fuds, the interest rates to be paid

on constrction financing, the source and amount of paid-in capital, and the terms of any

mortgage amortization.

2.7 Statement of Rental Schedules and Lease Terms

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rental schedules

and lease terms are set forth in Exhbit 7.

ARTICLE III - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Term

So long as there is compliance with the Law and ths Agreement, it is understood

and agreed by the paries hereto that ths Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of 35

years from the date of the adoption of Ordinance _ on , 2011,

which approved the tax exemption or 30 years from the date of Substatial Completion of the

Project. The tax exemption shall only be effective durng the period of usefuess of the Project

and shall continue in force only while the Project is owned by a corporation or association

formed and operating under the Law.

ARTICLE IV - ANAL SERVICE CHAGE

Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following payme-

nts to the City:

City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minum Anual

Service Charge or an Anual Service Charge equal to 8% of the Anual Gross Revenue for the

low income unts. The Anual Service Charge shall be biled initially based upon the Entity's

estimates of Anual Gross Revenue which shall not be less than the its estimate of Gross
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Revenue as set fort in its Financial Plan, attached hereto as Exhbit 6. Thereafer, the Anual

Service Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with Section 4.2 of ths Agreement.

(B) A Minmum Anual Service Charge shall be due beginnng on the

effective date of ths Agreement. The Anual Service Charge shall be due on the first day of the

month following the Substantial Completion of the Project. If the event the Entity fails to timely

pay the Minium Anual Service Charge or the Anual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall

bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or ta liens on land until

paid.

Section 4.2 Schedule of Annual Service Charge

(A) Stage One: The first stage of the exemption period shall commence with the

1 st day of the month followig Substantial Completion of the Project and continue until the last

day of the 15th year. During the first stage of the exemption period, the Entity shall pay the

muncipality an anual service charge for muncipal services supplied to the Project in

accordance with Section 4.1 above.

(B) Stage Two: The second stage of the exemption period shall continue for six

(6) years beginnng on the 1 st day of the 16th year following Substantial completion until the last

day of the 21 st year. During the second stage of the exemption period, the Entity shall pay the

muncipality an anual service charge for muncipal services supplied to the Project in

accordance with Section 4.1 above or 20% of the amount of taxes otherwise due on the value of

the land and Improvements, whichever shall be greater.

(C) Stage Three: The third stage of the exemption period shall continue for six (6)

years beginng on the 1 st day of the 22nd year following Substantial Completion until the last

day of the 27th year. During the thid stage of the exemption period, the Entity shall pay the

muncipality an anual service charge for muncipal services supplied to the Project in

accordance with Section 4.1 above or 40% of the amount of taxes otherwse due on the value of

the land and Improvements, whichever shall be greater.

(D) Stage Four: The fourh stage of the exemption period shall continue for a
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period of two (2) years, beging on the 1 st day of the 28th year following Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 29th year. During the fourh stage of the exemption period,

the Entity shall pay the muncipality an anual service charge for muncipal services supplied to

the Project in accordance with Section 4.1 above or 60% of the amount of taxes otherwse due on

the value of land and Improvements, whichever shall be greater.

(E) Final Stage: The final stage of the exemption period shall continue for one (1)

year beginng on the 1 st day of the 30th year followig Substantial Completion though the date

that the tax exemption expires. During the final stage of the exemption period, the Entity shall

pay the muncipality an anual service charge for muncipal services supplied to the Project in

accordance with Section 4.1 above or 80% of the amount of taxes otherwse due on the value of

the land and Improvements, whichever shall be greater.

Section 4.3 Credits

The Entity is required to pay both the Anual Service Charge and the Land Tax

Payments. The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the

pre-existing improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit agaist the Anual

Service Charge for the subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount,

without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarerly installments

against the Anual Service Charge. In any quarter that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax

Payments when due and owig, such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land

Tax Payment credits agaist the Anual Service Charge for that quarer. No credit wil be

applied agaist the Anual Service Charge for parial payments of Land Taxes. In addition, the

City shall have, among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed against the propert

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or declare a Default

and terminate this Agreement.

Section 4.4 Quarterly Installments

The Entity expressly agrees that the Anual Service Charge shall be made in

quarerly installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject,
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neverteless, to adjustment for over or underpayment within thirt (30) days after the close of

each calendar year. In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Anual Service Charge, the

unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permtted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax

liens on the land until paid.

Section 4.5 Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an anual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to

the Anual Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Adminstrative Fee shall be calculated as

two (2%) percent of each prior year's Anual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due

on or before December 31st of each year, and collected in the same maner as the Anual

Service Charge. In the event that the Entity fails to timely pay the Adminstrative Fee, the

amount unpaid shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax

liens on the land until paid.

Section 4.6 Material Conditions

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes,

Minmum Anual Service Charges, Anual Service Charges, including adjustments thereto,

Admnistrative Fees, and any interest thereon, are material conditions of this Agreement (the

"Material Conditions").

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1 Project Employment and Contractig Agreement

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certin employment and

other economic related opportties, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the

Project Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhbit 8.

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Section 6.1 Certficate of Occupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtai all

Certificates of Occupancy in a timely maner so as to complete constrction in accordance with
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the proposed constrction schedule attached hereto as Exhbit 5. The failure to secure the

Certificates of Occupancy shall subject the propert to full taation for the period between the

date of Substantial Completion and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained.

Section 6.2 Filng of Certifcate of Occupancy

It shall be the primar responsibility of the Entity to fortwith file with both the

Tax Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Failure of the Entity to fie such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by

the preceding paragraph, shall not militate agaist any action or non-action, taken by the City,

including, if appropriate retroactive biling with interest for any charges determned to be due, in

the absence of such filing by the Entity.

ARTICLE VII - ANAL REPORTS

Section 7.1 Accountig System

The Entity agrees to mainta a system of accounting and internal controls

established and admstered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

(A) An Auditor's Report: With niety (90) days after the close of each fiscal

or calendar year, depending on the Entity's accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in

effect, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor and Muncipal Council and the NJ Division of Local

Governent Services in the Deparment of Communty Mfairs, its Auditor's Report for the

preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor's Report shall include, but not be limited to:

purchase price, and the terms and interest rate on any mortgagee s) associated with the purchase

or constrction of the Project and such details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity

and to its operation and performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The

Report shall clearly identify and calculate the Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year.

(B) Disclosure Statement: On the anversar date of the execution of ths

Agreement, and each and every year thereafer while ths agreement is in effect, the Entity shall
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submit to the Muncipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those

municipal officials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the persons having an

ownership interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such

additional information as the City may request from time to time.

Section 7.3 Inspection! Audit

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its propert, equipment, buildings and

other facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessar, any other related Entity by

representatives duly authorized by the City and the NJ Division of Local Governent Services in

the Deparent of Communty Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit

of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examnation or audit shall be made

during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an offcer or agent designated

by the Entity.

All costs incured by the City to conduct the audit, including reasonable attorneys'

fees if appropriate, shall be biled to the Entity and paid to the City as par of the Entity's Anual

Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same rate as for a delinquent

service charge.

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves

Durg the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject

to a limtation of its profits pursuant to the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 40A:20-15.

The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid

rentals, and reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the Gross

Revenue of the Entity for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such par of

the excess Net Profits as is necessar to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-15. The reserve is to be non-cumulative, it being intended that no fuher

credits thereto shall be permitted afer the reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five
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(5%) percent of the preceding year's Gross Revenue. Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-14(b) there is

expressly excluded from the calculation of Gross Revenue and Net Profit in the determnation of

Excess Profit, any gai realized by the Entity on the sale of any condominium unt, whether or

not taable under federal or state law.

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit

In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any fiscal year, shall exceed the,

Allowable Net Profits for such period, then the Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days

afer the end of such fiscal year, shall pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional

service charge; provided, however, that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined

pursuant to aforementioned section 8.1. The calculation of the entity's excess net profits shall

include those project costs directly attibutable to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any

other costs excluded in the definition of Total Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this agreement

even though those costs may have been deducted from the project costs for puroses of

calculating the anual service charge.

Section 8.3 Payment of Reserve/ Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale

The date of termnation, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of

the fiscal year of the Entity. Withn ninety (90) days afer such date, the Entity shall pay to the

City the amount of the reserve, if any, maitaied by it pursuant to ths section and the excess

Net Profit, ifany.

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AN/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1 Approval

Any sale or transfer of the Project, shall be void uness approved in advance by

Ordinance of the Muncipal CounciL. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written

application by the Entity, will not uneasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and

the transfer of this Agreement provided (a) the new Entity does not own any other Project subject

to long term tax exemption at the time of transfer; (b) the new entity is formed and eligible to
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operate under the Law; (c) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; (d) the

Entity's obligations under this Agreement is fully assumed by the new Entity; and (e) the Entity

shall pay the City a transfer fee equal to 2% of the then curent Anual Service Charge as

requied by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-10(d).

Section 9.2 Fee

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in

ownership or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new

tax exemption application fee for the legal and adminstrative services of the City, as it relates to

the review, preparation and/or submission of documents to the Muncipal Council for appropriate

action on the. requested assignent. The fee shall be non-refudable.

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE

Section 10.1 Operation

Durg the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maitained and operated

in accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under ths Agreement shall

not only be termable as provided by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq., as curently amended and

supplemented, but also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with

the Law shall constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other

remedies, have the right to terminate the tax exemption.

Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative

During the term of ths Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order

2002-005, and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative

Status. The Entity's failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute

a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to

terminate the tax exemption.

ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default
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Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement

or failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable

notice, cure or grace period.

Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of

the Default ("Default Notice"). The Default Notice shall set forth with paricularty the basis of

the alleged Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to

cure any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However,

if, in the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default canot be cured withn sixt (60) days using

reasonable dilgence, the City wil extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have

the right to termnate ths Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.

Should the Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as

Material Conditions in Section 4.6, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural

remedies as provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed imediately to terminate the

Agreement as provided in Aricle XII herein.

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the

propert pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or may declare

a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default arsing out of the Entity's failure to pay

Land Taxes, the Minmum Anua Service Charge, Admstrative Fees, or the Anual Service

Charges shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided in Aricle Xl herein,

but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided in

Aricle XII. All of the remedies provided in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and

remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be cumulative and concurent. No termination of

any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions agaist

the Entity because of its failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minum Anual Service Charge,
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Anual Service Charge or Admistrative Fees. This right shall apply to arearages that are due

and owing at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the futue become due as if

there had been no termnation. Furer, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minum

Anual Service Charge, the Anual Service Charge, Admstrative Fees or for breach of

covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall

not be constred as a waiver of the rights to terminate the tax, exemption or proceed with a tax

sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any other specified remedy.

In the event of a Default on the par of the Entity to pay any charges set fort in

Aricle IV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's

land and propert, in the maner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act

supplementa or amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taes appear, or is applied, directly or

impliedly to mean taxes or muncipal liens on land, such statutory - provisions shall be read, as

far as is pertinent to ths Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or muncipal liens on land.

ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default with the time period

provided in Section 11.2, the City may termate this Agreement upon th (30) days written

notice to the Entity ("Notice of Termnation").

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity

The Entity may after the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion

of the Project notify the City that as of a certain date designated in the notice, it relinquishes its

status as a tax exempt Project. As of the date so set, the tax abatement, the Anual Service

Charges and the profit and dividend restrictions shall terminate.

Section 12.3 Final Accounting

Withn ninety (90) days afer the date of termnation, whether by affirmative

action of the Entity or by vire of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this
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Agreement, the Entity shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any,

pursuant to the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any excess Net Profits. For

puroses of rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be

the end of the fiscal year for the Entity.

Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes

Upon Termination or expiration of ths Agreement, the tax exemption for the

Project shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafer be assessed and

conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable

property in the City.

ARTICLE XIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 13.1 Arbitration

In the event of a breach of the withn Agreement by either of the paries hereto or

a dispute arising between the paries in reference to the terms and provisions as set fort herein,

either par may apply to the Superior Cour of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to

settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the puroses of the Law.

In the event the Superior Cour shall not entertain jursdiction, then the paries shall submit the

dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance

with its rules and reguations in such a fashion to accomplish the purose of the Long Term Tax

Exemption Law. The cost for the arbitration shall be borne equally by the paries. The paries

agree that the Entity may not fie an action in Superior Cour or with the Arbitration Association

uness the Entity has first paid in ful all charges defined in Aricle III, Section 4.6 as Material

Conditions.

ARTICLE XIV - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver

Nothing contained in ths Financial Agreement or otherwse shall constitute a

waiver or relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation,
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the right to termnate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions

provided herein. Nothng herein shall be deemed to limit any right of recovery of any amount

which the City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of ths Agreement.

ARTICLE XV INDEMNFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as par

defendant in any action alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this

Agreement and/or the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., the Entity shall indemnfy and

hold the City harless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable

attorneys' fees and costs, through trial and all stages of any appeal, including the cost of

enforcing this indemnty) arsing out of Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives all

statutory or common law defenses or legal priciples which would defeat the puroses of ths

indemnfication. The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense. However, the City

maitains the right to intervene as a par thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the

expense thereofto be borne by the City.

ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE

Section 16.1 Certfied Mail

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either pary to the other shall be sent

by certified or registered mail, retu receipt requested.

Section 16.2 Sent by City

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

St. Bridget's Senior Residence Urban Renewal, LLC
c/o RCG Development Group, LLC
26 Park Street
Montclai, NJ 07042

uness prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with
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ths Agreement, of the name and address of Entity's Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such

Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk
City Hall
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Admistrator, and the Tax Collector

uness prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwse. The notice

to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the

Propert's Block and Lot number).

ARTICLE XVII - SEVERAILITY

Section 17.1 Severabilty

If any term, covenant or condition of ths Agreement or the Application, except a

Material Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of

this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or

circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be

afected thereby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be

enforced to the fullest extent permtted by law.

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable

and provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the paries shall cooperate with each

other to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a maner contemplated

by the paries and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-

execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the

paries and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would

modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of ths

Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City.
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ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANOUS,

Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be constred and enforced in accordance with the laws of

the State of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rue requiring

constrction agaist the par drawing or causing ths Agreement to be drawn since counsel for

both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.

Section 18.2 Conflcts

The paries agree that in the event of a confict between the Application and the

language contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevaiL. In the event of

confict between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevaiL.

Section 18.3 Oral Representations

There have been no oral representations made by either of the paries hereto

which are not contaied in ths Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the

Agreement, and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the paries and there

shall be no modifications thereto other than by a written instruent approved and executed by

both paries and delivered to each par.

Section 18.4 Entire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Muncipal Council

approving this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a par hereof.

Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity

and the City.

Section 18.6 Pending Litigation

The Entity fully and freely holds the City harless and assumes any risk that may

effect the present or futue validity of the within fmancial agreement, arising from any other

litigation.
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ARTICLE xix - EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits

The followig Exhbits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set fort

at lengt herein:

(A) Metes and Bounds description of the Project;
(B) Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;
(C) The Application with Exhbits;

(D) Certificate of the Entity; Estimated Constrction Schedule;
(E) The Financial Plan for the undertg of the Project;
(F) Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rental Schedule and Lease Terms;
(G) Project Employment and Contracting Agreement;

(H) Architect's Certification of Actual Constrction Costs.

IN WITNSS WHREOF, the paries have caused these presents to be executed
the day and year first above wrtten.

ATTEST: ST. BRIDGET'S SENIOR RESIDENCE
URAN RENEWAL, LLC

Christopher Garli., Authorized Signatory

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

John Kelly
Business Administrator
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